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2020 655
100 100 Market Street
2019 12 19 2020
2020 25 368
The Cabot (
2020 26 25
2021 24 2021 2,772
Qibao Vanke Plaza
50 2021 24
2021 31 134 127
2021
Happy Valley Shopping Mall 2,099
2021
7.2A
2021 31

10
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2021 31

S&P

CHIMAO
6.75 BBB— Baa3 BBB— 22,647 21,409 0.01
04/15/21

YUEXIU
4.875 - Baa3 BBB-— 23,345 22,575 0.01
04/19/21

YXREIT
4.75 BBB- Baa3 - 124,171 120,412 0.06
04/27/21

C0GO
4.875 BBB— Baa2 BBB 11,064 10,733 0.005
06/01/21

HRINTH
3.25 BBB+ - A 27,575 27,286 0.01
06/03/21

CHINAM
Float BBB+ Baal - 39,445 38,880 0.02
07/16/21

CHALHK
4.875 - - A- 18,537 18,057 0.01
09/07/21

HRINTH
3.625 BBB+ - A 63,401 63,421 0.03
11/22/21

BCLMHK
4 A- - A 12,530 12,482 0.01
01/22/22

CHJIMAO
3.6 BBB— Baa3 BBB— 92,931 92,756 0.04
03/03/22

SINOCE
5.25 - Baa3 BBB— 39,016 38,644 0.02
04/30/22

CICCHK
3.375 BBB - BBB+ 47,067 47,649 0.02
05/03/22

CICCHK
Float BBB - BBB+ 80,349 79,250 0.04
05/03/22

CATIC
3.5 - Baal A- 47,082 47,577 0.02
05/31/22

LNGFOR
3.875 - - BBB 59,229 59,255 0.03
07/13/22

HAOHUA
3.5 BBB - A- 94,314 95,221 0.05
07/19/22

CIIANT
3.375 - - A+ 156,185 159,352 0.08
07/25/22

CHIOLI
3.95 BBB+ Baal - 24,048 24,319 0.01
11/15/22
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YUEXIU
4.5 - Baa3 BBB- 47,297 47,936 0.02
01/24/23

POLYRE
3.95 BBB- Baa3 BBB+ 266,371 273,557 0.13
02/05/23

HAOHUA
4.625 BBB - A- 65,204 65,374 0.03
03/14/23

VNKRLE
4.15 BBB Baa2 BBB+ 80,310 81,999 0.04
04/18/23

VNKRLE
Float BBB Baa2 BBB+ 7,853 7,798 0.004
05/25/23

PINGIN
4.375 - Baa2 - 65,035 66,531 0.03
09/10/23

POLYRE
4.75 BBB— Baa3 BBB+ 47,203 48,125 0.02
09/17/23

YUEXIU
5.375 - Baa3 BBB- 90,771 92,568 0.04
10/19/23

HYNMTR
4.3 BBB+ Baal - 204,052 211,473 0.10
02/01/24

VNKRLE
5.35 BBB Baa2 BBB+ 64,328 66,338 0.03
03/11/24

CHIOLI
5.95 BBB+ Baal A- 17,426 17,648 0.01
05/08/24

CCBL
3.5 A - A 156,630 165,684 0.08
05/16/24

SHGANG
4 - - A- 94,278 99,376 0.05
05/23/24

YXREIT
3.6 - Baa3 - 30,000 30,877 0.01
05/28/24

HRINTH
3.75 - Baal A 39,421 40,813 0.02
05/29/24

VNKRLE
4.2 BBB Baa2 BBB+ 38,914 40,740 0.02
06/07/24

HAOHUA
3.375 - Baa2 A- 39,863 40,365 0.02
06/19/24

CHIMAO
4 BBB— - - 53,159 53,891 0.03
06/21/24

WB
3.5 BBB Baa2 - 39,923 41,029 0.02
07/05/24

CNBG
3.375 BBB - A- 127,189 129,581 0.06
07/16/24

JOHNEL
4.125 BBB Baal - 41,682 43,034 0.02
07/30/24

HRINTH
3.25 - Baal A 156,140 162,196 0.08
11/13/24
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2,755,987 | 2,806,210 1.35 |
2021 31
1.35 2021 31 7.2C
4.6
linkreit._com
) )
CBRE CBRE Limited 5.5 47.9
2.0 17.6
0.9 8.1
Rich Concept Strategy Properties 0.5 4.0
Limited
Knight
Frank Hong Kong Limited 0.5 4.0
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( ) )

Jetline
Company Limited 138.5 7.1

Gammon
Construction Limited 111.0 5.7
Pat Davie Limited 56.3 » 9
55.9 2.9

1SG 1SG Asia (Hong
Kong) Limited 52.8 2.7

30

21.3 7.1
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Nicholas Charles ALLEN

66 2016 2016

CLP CLP Holdings Limited
Lenovo Group Limited Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited
Mordril Properties Limited

Stevin Rock LLC RAK
RAK Rock LLC
Hysan Development Company Limited AIM
VinalLand Limited
2007
Securities and Futures Appeals Panel Takeovers and Mergers Panel

Takeovers Appeal Committee Share Registrars’ Disciplinary
Committee Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Financial Reporting Council
of Hong Kong 2047 Vision 2047 Foundation

The University of Manchester
Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors 2017 Directors
of the Year 2017

George Kwok Lung HONGCHOY

59 2009 2010
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Tracker Fund of Hong Kong 104
Urban Land Institute Our
Hong Kong Foundation Limited 2016 2018
Charoen Pokphand Group 2018 11
2020 10 International Council of
Shopping Centers Asia-Pacific Advisory Board
Harvard Business Review 2019 CE0100 100
Best-Performing CEOs in the World 2019 EY 2017

EY Entrepreneur of the Year 2017 China Award
Country Winner of Hong Kong/Macau Region 2015 DHL SCMP
DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards Business Person of
the Year 2011 -

University of Canterbury
The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
Corporate Advisory Council
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Institute of
Shopping Centre Management

NG Kok Siong

50 2020 2018
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2005 CapitalLand
Group CapitalLand
Limited CapitaMalls Asia Limited

CapitalLand Mall Asia Limited

REIT
CapitaLand Retail China Trust Management Limited
CapitalLand Retail China
Trust REIT
CapitalLand Malaysia Mall REIT Management Sdn. Bhd.
CapitalLand Malaysia Mall Trust

Nanyang Technological University
Dartmouth College Tuck Executive Program

lan Keith GRIFFITHS

66 2007
1983 2006 10
Aedas 12
1,200
1978 1980
The Royal Institute of British Architects
The Hong Kong Institute of Architects
2009 Griffiths-Roch Foundation
Roch Castle Penrhiw Priory

Twr y Felin
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Christopher John BROOKE

52 2018

Proxy Inc

2018 11 2019 12

Hong Kong Rugby Union
2016 10 2020
Limited
CBRE
Asia Pacific Strategic Group
Insignia Brooke CBRE
2003

Brooke International

1992 1989

Ed CHAN Yiu Cheong

58 2016

Treasury Wine Estates Limited
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RICS

Governing Council

Brooke Husband
2002 2015 12

CBRE
2003

CBRE 1992
Brooke Hillier Parker

Hillier Parker

Gaorong Capital
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C.P. C.P. Lotus
Corporation Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited SoftBank
Investment Advisers Yum
China Holdings, Inc.
2006 11 2011 10
Walmart China 2001 11 2006 11
Dairy Farm Group
Bertelsmann

Music Group

McKinsey & Co
The University of Chicago
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
Sloan School of Management

Lincoln LEONG Kwok Kuen

60 2021

e
SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.
Mandarin
Oriental International Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
MTR MTR Corporation Limited
Jardine Strategic Holdings Limited

The Community Chest of Hong Kong The Hong Kong
Housing Society University Grants
Committee Quality Assurance Council

1985 1987
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Blair Chilton PICKERELL

64 2016

NASDAQ Principal
Financial Group, Inc.
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

First Pacific Company Limited

104
Tracker Fund
of Hong Kong 2019 2021
Anthemis Insurance Venture Growth Fund
2008 12 2014 11
Faculty of Business
and Economics
Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong

2015
1984 Jardine Matheson Holdings Group
2003 HSBC HSBC
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited HSBC
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
2007 2010
Morgan Stanley Investment Management
2013 2017 12

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited

Harvard Business School MBA
Stanford University
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Poh Lee TAN

62 2015 11

2010 11 2012 10 Baker & McKenzie
2008 10 2010 10

Mighty Oaks Foundation Limited
Independent Schools Foundation
London School of Economics
and Political Science University of Cambridge
Queens’ College

May Siew Boi TAN

65 2013
CLP
N.V. Home Credit N.V. HSBC HSBC Insurance (Asia)
Limited HSBC HSBC Life (International) Limited
2014 2017
Cazenove Asia Limited Cazenove
and Co. 2009
Standard Chartered Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited (Standard Chartered Hong Kong)
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2016 The Hong Kong Association of Banks Hong
Kong Trade Development Council Hong Kong Monetary Authority
The Exchange Fund Advisory Committee Currency Board
Sub-Committee 2012 2015
Listing Committee 2001 2013

Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service
Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation
Oxfam Hong Kong

The University of Sheffield

Peter TSE Pak Wing
70 2014
2012 CLP
2013 1981 CLP
Co. Deloitte & Co. Swire
Group 2018 12 2018 11 29
Hong Kong
Aircraft Engineering Company Limited
University of
Stirling

Nancy TSE Sau Ling

68 2014
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1991 Hospital Authority
2013 Prince Philip
Dental Hospital The
Jockey Club School of Public Health and Primary Care of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
The Financial Reporting Council
Oversight, Policy and Governance Committee

2021
The Wharf (Holdings) Limited
DBS DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
HSBC HSBC Provident Fund
Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited
Wheelock and Company Limited 2020 27

University of California, Los Angeles

Elaine Carole YOUNG

56 2013

Shama 2010
ONYX Hospitality Group

Ascott Residence Trust
Ascott Residence Trust Management Limited

co-living TULU

Warburg Pincus
NOVA NOVA Property Investment Co. Ltd.
2009 RBS
RBS Coutts/Financial Times Women in Asia Awards
Entrepreneur of the Year
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Eric YAU Siu Kei

47

DBS Asia Capital Limited

UBS Investment Bank

Financial Treasury Service Committee

Pacific Real Estate Association
Companies
Relations Association
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2010 11
2015
DBS
UBS
Jardine Fleming

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce

Asia
The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
IR Hong Kong Investor
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Kenneth Tai Lun WONG

51
2019
27
HNA HNA Group (International)
Company Limited
Hong Kong International Construction Investment
Management Group Co., Limited Hilton Grand
Vacations Inc. HNA
LLP(Nixon Peabody LLP)
CWL Nixon Peabody CWL
14
2014 20
Greenery Elderly Home
New Territories 15
2015 Elderly Commission
Friends of Caritas of Hong Kong
Chu Hai College of Higher Education Board of Governors

Heung Yee Kuk of the New Territories
London School of Economics and

Political Science

Christine CHAN Suk Han

46
20
China Resources Group
Harvest Capital Partners Limited ARA

ARA Asset Management (Prosperity) Limited
Hutchison Whampoa Properties Limited

New York University

Stern School of Business
General Practice Surveyor

The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
Hong Kong Advisory

Board
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Lorraine CHAN Kuen Kuen

52
2019
Link Together Initiatives
20
University of Strathclyde
MBA
2016 Stanford
Executive Program 2018
Gary FOK Yip Sang
54
2014
29
NF InfraRed
NF Investment Advisers Limited
New World Group
Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
Henderson Land Development Company Limited
Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate Administrators
William LAl Hon Ming
58
2019
30 2007

Kennedy Western University MBA
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Keith NG Man Keung
49
2009

28
Hutchison Whampoa Property Group

Accountants CFA

Phyllis NG Yuen Fan
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Hongkong Land Group
Dao Heng Bank Group

Association of Chartered Certified
Chartered Financial Analyst

2013

Guanghua School of Management of the Peking University

HKR International Limited

Wong Tung & Partners Limited

57
2016
17
MBA
Max WONG Hon Keung
56
2013
HKR
Kwan and Associates Limited
Person
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2005 11 25
12
2017 LTI
2021 31 2,184,937
2022 30 2023 30 2024 30
12
2017 LTI 2021
31 450,760
2022 30 2023 30 2024 30
2005 11

2005 11
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30
2020
31
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1

30

12

31

—(#

50

2021

90

98/437

31

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

25



99/437

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50

100/437



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

123 2005

101/437



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50
90

2021 31
— 1 —5 —(D)

102/437



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50
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50
LTV 45
LTV 40
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COVID-19

COVID-19

2020 300
2020 600

2020 30

COVID-19 COVID-19
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2015 11

ACBMs
ACBMs
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COVID-19

CovID-19
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100

63.5

31
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@

2008 31
2021 30

2022

®

15

2021 31 1,554.6
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@( )
0.02 (b) 0.015 0.06
30
150,000

Q)
@
Q)
0.05 Gi) (i)

20

31 14.9
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®

104

2021 31
16.5

8.5
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2021 31
)
20 15
2013 2037 12 31 2.1
20 15 2013 2037 12
31 2.1
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2014 37 14
37
14 2014 2023 12 31 10
100 2016
120
37 14 5 8 2024 1 1 2028 12 31 5
102
20 2023 18
2016 37 14
37 14 2016 2023 12 31
80
20 2023 18
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20 15 2013 2037
12 31 2.1
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)
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5
€H)
2021 31
)
( ) ( )
2,075 1.307
436 0.275
201 0.127
30 0.019
124,581 78.491
31,516 19.856
7,760 4.889
20,713 13.050
6,447 4.062
4,038 2.544
4,019 2.532
199,074 125.424
8,069 5.084
(51,192) (32.253)
27 0.017
158,720 100.000
— 2 —3

—@
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
31 31 31 31 31
10,744 10,718 10,037 10,023 9,255
(2,506) (2,498) (2,348) (2,360) (2,261)
8,238 8,220 7,689 7,663 6,994
(428) (416) (405) 417) (342)
(5.322) (23,948) 12,269 35,493 11,494
126 183 85 19 4
(770) (630) (598) (665) (567)
- - 2,761 7,306 1,387
1,844 (16,591) 21,801 49,399 18,970
(1,092) (712) (1,359) (1,420) (1,057)
752 (17,303) 20,442 47,979 17,913
(5,920) (5,930) (5.,517) (5.254) (4,898)
(5,168) (23,233) 14,925 42,725 13,015
(2.566) (24,835) 13,260 44,609 12,461
(2,169) 1,783 1,552 (2,102) 352
(433) (181) 113 218 202
(5.168) (23,233) 14,925 42,725 13,015
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
31 31 31 31 31
1,185 (17,122) 20,329 47,761 17,711
4,910 23,831 (12,151) (35,270) (11,290)
12) (454) 250 368 73
32 157) - - -
(320) (276) 90 - -
54 41 - - -
(129) (189) 87) (122) (107)
- - - (150) (83)
- - (2,761) (7.306) (1,312)
290 291 53 150 83
6,010 5,965 5,723 5,431 5,075
141.65 141.47 130.62 121.50 111.75
148.34 145.72 140.55 128.28 116.66
289.99 287.19 271.17 249.78 228.41
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

31 31 31 31 31
199,074 193,224 218,496 203,001 174,006
10,811 14,395 8,441 13,313 1,934
209, 885 207,619 226,937 216,404 175,940
51,192 47,502 37,611 37,336 37,443
@n 406 587 474 256
158,720 159,711 188,739 178,594 138,241
18.4 16.7 10.7 11.9 15.6
24.4 22.9 16.6 17.3 21.3
199,074 193,224 218,496 203,001 174,006
3.10-4.50 3.10-4.50 3.00-4.20 3.00-4.20 3.00-5.20
3.10-5.30 3.10-5.30 3.50-4.80 3.50-4.80 3.80-5.70

3.00 3.00
4.25-4.75 4.25-4.75 4.25-4.75 4.50-4.75 4.50
4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25
4.50
5.24

76.24 77.61 89.48 83.06 62.47
70.80 65.70 91.80 67.00 54.45
147,396 135,204 193,636 144,054 120,498
) (15.3) 2.6 (19.3) (12.8)
2,081,862,866 [2,057,898,386 |2,109,321,254 |2,150,058,972 |2,213,002,276
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
31 31 31 31 31
62.4 64.6 62.9 58.0 51.2
(1.8) 13.5 22.8 31.2 25.8
96.8 9.5 97.1 97.0 96.1
77.1 77.1 76.4 76.4 75.3
2,776 2,827 2,719 2,492 2,239
76.3 73.7
11.1 31.6 32.2 39.8 36.3
(8.0) 7.9 27.0 14.4 12.0
96.3 97.8 98.5 99.5 99.6
95.8 97.4 95.5 99.3 100.0
76.7 77.2 78.7 77.4 80.0
100.0
100.0
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
31 31 31 31 31
22.19 2.77
(19.99) (14.21) (23.68) (28.86) (17.37)
4.1 4.4 3.0 3.7 4.2
10.30
28.2 27.9 26.3 24.3 22.2
75.75
2020 99.80 56.25 2020 63.40
2021 31 70.80 2020 65.70
2021 31 289.99
2020 287.19
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2021 31 2020 31
(¢ )

4,881 5,095 (4.2)

954 886 7.7

140 139 0.7

184 168 9.5

741 934 (20.7)

6,900 7,222 (4.5)

4,826 2020 5,028
55 2020 67
2021 31
(18.7) 16.9
5.4 10.4
(14.5) 16.4
9.9 14.1
2021 2020
2021 2020 31 31 2021
31 31 31

97.0 96.4 (5.8) 13.0 84.0
94.4 95.0 18.2 19.5 9.2
98.4 99.4 5.3 12.3 6.8
96.8 96.5 (1.8) 13.5 100.0
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2021 2020
2021 31 31
2021 31
31 2021 2020
2021 31 31
31
)
6 26,751 1,212 79.3 83.7 94.0 93.3
35 68,567 3,487 69.2 71.6 97.6 96.9
57 29,263 1,460 44.6 45.6 97.2 97.4
98 124,581 6,159 62.4 64.6 96.8 96.5

131/437



2021

2021

2020

Xiaomi

1.5

1.8 2,776

31
31,516 558,000
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2021 31 2020 31
( )
1,432 1,494 4.1)
451 418 7.9
5 5
1,888 1,917 (1-5)
Kowloon East The Quayside
2021 82.9
3.6 76.8 2020 76.6
2.4
2020
9.7
10.3
23.0
2020 COVID-19

LEED
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2021 31 2020 31
)
592 578 2.4
367 380 (3.4
227 207 9.7
236 263 (10.3)
270 313 (13.7)
139 113 23.0
91 85 7.1
167 229 (27.1)
2,089 2,168 (3.6)
Link CentralWalk
COVID-19
6.3 6.9
200 98
2021

2021 31

9

60 54.6

50 i

40 N 0352

32.6
30 o 5 28 7 31,2
2.6
g 201
10 Y
L1
0 o m’ m°
H0F2EE H023sE 20044 g
IAM THM 3 PEGE
L F FI4A
BEREH-SHETS (%) EERSH-SHITE (%)

BAEARNCSNLHE (%) (E1) BAHAK-SHLEME (% GE1)
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90

95.8

2021
Qibao Vanke Plaza 50
97.8

2021
Tianhe

Town
70.3
Macheng

Cabot 2020

11.1

96.3
2021

2020

2012

100 100 Market Street

2020
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2021 31
COVID-19
2021 31
8.0
2022 10

3,205
Zhujiang New
WALE

The

371 270
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2021 31
90
100
100 10
2021
345
Kai Tin Shopping Centre 153
2021
Lok Fu
Place 10.1 Choi Yuen Plaza 9.1
12.1
Lam Tin
434
10
)
Tai Wo Plaza 50 2021
Hing Wah Shopping Centre 30 2021
Link CentralWalk 327 2021
Tai Yuen Market 27 2022
434
COVID-19
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LIBOR 2020 1.44 2021 0.19
HIBOR HIBOR 2020 1.94 2021
0.23

2020

2020
10.1 2.35

2020
10

2020
10

2020 10
400 18 2.18

2021
200

2021
500

2021
650 2.8

2021
250 2.8

100 25

17 4.3
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2021 31 98
18.4 2020 31 16.7
40
2021 31 386 2020 31 346
2021

10,0

3.1

55

0. 1

5.4

1.9
15 1.1 1.2

0.1
Il.ﬂu._| I

R ORI A48 MESHE 6% ATE HIGE M00F 0E
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2021 31
0.4 41.3 46. 3
BARNOMERE (o0} I —
WA W ST T L F—L s —F (TN
W siws - o

63.5 265
EESH-EUEHS (o) M
DAL W EERH N EneN

(ERAT o TERE

8541 66, 9 20.5
BEAMMOMAREMRE o I ——

[ RE TR 33 T

B ZEHSENA W SEN

72.9 7.310.19.7
RO (5) I
(EHRTFERE) mEsre mARR BEFL B EHFE

2021 63.11
100 2022 14
2020 31 2020 30

Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited
2021 31 2021 31

3.0 199,074
2021 31

2.3 0.7 124,581 31,516
8,943
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27,160 2020 31 25,317
1,843
0.9
2021 31
4,038 4,019

2021 2020

31 31 2021 2020

31 31

124,581 127,515 3.10 4.50 3.10 -4.50
31,516 31,732 3.10 -5.30 3.10 -5.30
8,943 9,914 3.00 3.00

165,040 169,161
20,713 19,146 4.25 -4.75 4.25 -4.75
6,447 6,171 4.25 4.25
27,160 25,317
4,038 - 4.50
4,019 - 5.24

200,257 194,478

199,074 193,224

2021 31 2005
14
HSBC
2021 17
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)
2021 31

POLYRE 3.95 02/05/23 265,217 273,557 0.168%
HYNMTR 4.3 02/01/24 201,046 211,473 0.127%
3 CCBL 3.5 05/16/24 157,319 165,684 0.099%
4 HRINTH 3.25 11/13/24 157,161 162,196 0.099%
5 CJIANT 3.375 07/25/22 156,432 159,352 0.099%
6 CNBG 3.375 07/16/24 126,550 129,581 0.080%
7 YXREIT 4.75 04/27/21 122,724 120,412 0.077%
8 SHGANG 4 05/23/24 94,724 99,376 0.060%
9 HAOHUA 3.5 07/19/22 94,016 95,221 0.059%
10 CHIMAO 3.6 03/03/22 91,916 92,756 0.058%
11 YUEXIU 5.375 10/19/23 90,197 92,568 0.057%
12 VNKRLE 4.15 04/18/23 80,324 81,999 0.051%
13 CICCHK Float 05/03/22 81,504 79,250 0.051%
14 PINGIN 4.375 09/10/23 63,691 66,531 0.040%
15 VNKRLE 5.35 03/11/24 62,497 66,338 0.039%
16 HAOHUA 4.625 03/14/23 63,627 65,374 0.040%
17 HRINTH 3.625 11/22/21 63,507 63,421 0.040%
18 LNGFOR 3.875 07/13/22 58,562 59,255 0.037%
19 CHIMAO 4 06/21/24 52,918 53,891 0.033%
20 POLYRE 4.75 09/17/23 46,160 48,125 0.029%
21 YUEXIU 4.5 01/24/23 46,750 47,936 0.029%
22 CICCHK 3.375 05/03/22 47,296 47,649 0.030%
23 CATIC 3.5 05/31/22 47,194 47,577 0.030%
24 JOHNEL 4.125 07/30/24 41,335 43,034 0.026%
25 WB 3.5 07/05/24 39,702 41,029 0.025%
26 HRINTH 3.75 05/29/24 39,608 40,813 0.025%
27 VNKRLE 4.2 06/07/24 38,810 40,740 0.024%
28 HAOHUA 3.375 06/19/24 39,724 40,365 0.025%
29 CHINAM Float 07/16/21 39,936 38,880 0.025%
30 SINOCE 5.25 04/30/22 38,759 38,644 0.024%
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852 2828 9888
852 2828 9899
18 www.col liers.com
5701

21-17202/

21-17202/H3/NC/AL

2021 25
77 20
HSBC
HSBC 17
2021 31
SFC 2005
SEHK
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
2021
HSBC

127

142/437



1VSC

2020 HKIS
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100

HKIS

2020 12
RICS
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2021 31

SFC
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3.25
4.00
3.01
3.01

4.25
4.25
4.25

5.24

4.50

4.50
5.30

5.10

4.75
4.75
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. 2021

. 2020

. 2020

. 2020

. 2020

. 2021

. 2021

. 2020

. 2020

. 2020

31

2021

2021

2021

2021

31

2018 2017 10 12

31

2021

2021

2021
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. 2020

. 2021

. 2020

. 2021

. 2021

. 2020

. 2021

. 2020

. 2020

31

31

31

31

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021
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2021 31 165,039,900,000 1,650 3,990
4.60
124,124,700,000 1,241 2,470
4.81
31,070,100,000 310 7,010
4.95
9,845,100,000 98 4,510
2021 31 22,960,000,000 229 6,000
4.00
6,550,000,000 65 5,000
4.70
2,940,000,000 29 4,000

5.07
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4,460,000,000 44 6,000
5.01

2,540,000,000 25 4,000
3.66

6,470,000,000 64 7,000
2.26

376,600,000 7,660

683,000,000 8,300

10.764
3.2808

MSc MRICS MHKIS RPS GP
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127

15

109

124

116

119

83

108

74

115

121

101

123

96

93

122

95

112

107

86

113

78

100

87

105

90

700
700 Nathan Road, Mong Kok

(Butterfly Plaza)
(Car Park within Ching Wang Court)
(Car Park within Chuk Yuen (North) Estate)
(Car Park within Fung Lai Court)
(Car Park within Hong Keung Court)
(Car Park within Ka Tin Court)
(Car Park within Kam On Court)
(Car Park within Kin Ming Estate)
(Car Park within King Lai Court)
(Car Park within Kwai Hong Court)
(Car Park within Lai On Estate)
|

(Car Park within Lower Wong Tai Sin () Estate)
(Car Park within Ming Nga Court)
(Car Park within Ning Fung Court)
(Car Park within Pang Ching Court)
(Car Park within Po Pui Court)
(Car Park within San Wai Court)

|
(Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (I) Estate)
(Car Park within Tin King Estate)
(Car Park within Tin Yau Court)
(Car Park within Tin Yuet Estate)
(Car Park within Tsui Ping South Estate)
(Car Park within Tsz Man Estate)

(Car Park within Upper Ngau Tau Kok Estate)

(Car Park within Wah Lai Estate)

94

110

114

97

99

10

62

14

28

16

22

26

45

54

32

48

24

46

35

40

67

53

63

64

34
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(Car Park within Wang Fuk Court)
(Car Park within Yee Kok Court)
(Car Park within Yee Nga Court)
(Car Park within Ying Ming Court)
(Car Park within Yue On Court)
(Cheung Fat Plaza)
(Cheung Wah Shopping Centre)
(Choi Ming Shopping Centre)
(Choi Wan Commercial Complex)
(Choi Yuen Plaza)
(Chuk Yuen Plaza)
(Chung On Shopping Centre)
(Nam Cheong Place)
(Fu Heng Shopping Centre)
(Fu Shin Shopping Centre)

Fu Tai Shopping Centre
(Fu Tung Plaza)
(Fung Tak Shopping Centre)
(Heng On Commercial Centre)
(Hin Keng Shopping Centre)
(Hing Tung Shopping Centre)
(Hing Wah Plaza)
(Hiu Lai Shopping Centre)
(Hoi Fu Shopping Centre)
(Homantin Plaza)

(Kai Tin Shopping Centre)
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68

57

39

41

11

59

49

56

60

52

31

30

50

70

80

51

36

75

7

84

76

120

88

117

82

125

106

79

102

(Kin Sang Shopping Centre)

(Kwong Fuk Commercial Centre)

(Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre)

(Lek Yuen Plaza)

(Leung King Plaza)

(Lok Fu Place)

(Lok Wah Commercial Centre)

(Long Ping Commercial Centre)

(Lung Hang Commercial Centre)

(Maritime Bay)

(Mei Lam Shopping Centre)

(Nan Fung Plaza)

(Oi Man Plaza)

(Oi Tung Shopping Centre)

(Ping Tin Shopping Centre)

(Po Hei Court Commercial Centre)

(Po Lam Shopping Centre)

(Po Tat Shopping Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung On Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung Wang Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Ching Wah Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Pak Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Shui Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Yat Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hung Hom Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Ko Chun Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Ko Yee Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Lok Nga Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Lok Wah (South) Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Nam Cheong Estate)

104

91

118

85

89

92

103

71

81

98

111

66

27

33

72

23

43

44

47

18

38

29

126

17

20

25
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1l
(Retail and Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (IIl) Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wah Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wang Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Yat Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tong Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsui Wan Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsz Oi Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tung Tau Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Wo Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Yan Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Ying Fuk Court)
(Sam Shing Commercial Centre)
(Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre)
(Sha Kok Commercial Centre)
(Shun Lee Commercial Centre)
(Shun On Commercial Centre)
(Siu Sai Wan Plaza)
(Stanley Plaza)
(Sun Chui Shopping Centre)
T
(T Town)
(Tai Hing Commercial Centre)
(Tai Wo Plaza)
(Tai Yuen Commercial Centre)
(Tak Tin Plaza)

Temple Mall North

Temple Mall South

The Quayside
(Tin Chak Shopping Centre)
(Tin Shing Shopping Centre)

(Tin Shui Shopping Centre)
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65

21

42

55

58

(Tin Tsz Shopping Centre)
(Tin Yiu Plaza)
TKO
TKO Gateway
TKO
(TKO Spot)
(Tsui Ping North Shopping Circuit)
(Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre)

(Un Chau Shopping Centre)

(Wan Tsui Commercial Complex)

Link Square, Shanghai

Link Plaza ¢ Zhongguancun, Beijing

Link Plaza + Guangzhou, Guangzhou

Link Plaza ¢ Jingtong, Beijing

Link CentralWalk, Shenzhen

The Cabot, London

100
100 Market Street, Sydney

12

13

19

73

61

69

37
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(Wo Che Plaza)
(Yat Tung Shopping Centre)
(Yau Mei & Ko Cheung (Lei Yue Mun Plaza))
(Yin Lai Court Shopping Centre)
(Yiu On Shopping Centre)
(Yiu Tung Shopping Centre)

(Yu Chui Shopping Centre)
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2021 31
Lok Fu Place 361,659 793 317.7 4.22% 6,781.3 4.68%
Lok Fu Plaza 1983 1991
Wang Shun House Wang Tat House

Wang Yat House
Lok Fu Estate

793
Link Properties Limited
New Kowloon Inland 6451 107,428/335,530
2007 12 31 50
T T Town
206,447 1,177 259.1 4.03% 5,517.9 4.69%
Chung Fu Plaza 1999 2000
206,649
206,447
Tin Chung Court
1,177
— Tin Shui Wai Town 18 A
2,021/363,535
— 41 50,802/297,568
1999 50
B 198,170 940 210.0 4.34% 4,349.0 4.83%
Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre
1997
A
B
Tsz Lok Estate
940
6442 81,055/481,546
2007 10 50
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2021 31
4 TKO TKO Gateway
165,935 623 191.3 4.00% 4,024.7 4._75%
11 Hau Tak Il Shopping Centre 1993
Hau Tak Estate
623
Tseung Kwan O Town 99 49,962/324,918
2005 10 14 50
5
Temple Mall South 146,040 688 181.0 4.12% 3,865.0 4.68%
Wong Tai Sin Plaza 1982 1983
Lung Kwong House Lung Fai House
Lung Lok House Lung On House
11 Lower Wong Tai Sin 11 Estate
688
6438 51,200/323,235
2007 17 50
6 Kai
Tin Shopping Centre 184,242 461 181.1 4.32% 3,851.4 4._70%
1999 2003
Kai Tin Estate 461
6481 65,207/256,946
2009 29 50
7 TKO TKO Spot
130,649 1,280 180.1 4.24% 3,841.9 4.69%
Sheung Tak Shopping Centre 1998
A
B
C
Sheung Mei House
Sheung Tak Estate
1,280
98 95,092/467,545

2007 26 50
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2021 31
8
Temple Mall North 137,622 473 148.1 3.94% 3,623.1 4.09%
Lung Cheung Plaza 2001
Upper Wong Tai Sin Estate
473
6439 53,974/311,854
2007 23 50
9
Sau Mau Ping Shopping
155,554 611 187.3 4.31% 3,572.7 5.24%
Centre
2002
A
Sau Mau Ping Estate
611
6453 57,670/833,450
10/833,450
2007 23 50
10 Cheung Fat
Plaza 165,572 590 159.1 4.34% 3,196.3 4.98%
1987
Cheung Fat Estate
590
Tsing Yi Town 172 49,331/171,904
2005 50
11 Leung King
Plaza 184,012 616 161.8 4._45% 3,051.9 5.30%
1988
Leung King Estate
616
(Tuen Mun Town) 458 54,922/426,295

2001 50
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13

14

Wo Che Plaza

Yat Tung Shopping
Centre

Choi
Ming Shopping Centre
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2021 31
170,612 828 142.2 4.13% 2,994.5 4.75%
1977
— Tai Wo House Foo Wo House
Hau Wo House Chi Wo house King
Wo House
Wo Che Estate
828
Sha Tin Town 549 55,437/474,742
2007 23 50
193,063 1,900 154.4 4.41% 2,948.1 5.24%
2001 2003
Yat Tung Estate
1,900
Tung Chung Town 30 107,811/930,819
2009 50
92,857 765 145.8 4.33% 2,912.8 5.01%
2001 2003
— Choi Ming Court
Kin Ming Estate
765
82 44,614/346,996
109 39,133/420,644
2001 50 82 2010
15 50 109
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15
Plaza

16
Plaza

17

Centre

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)

2021

Butterfly
174,169 313 151.1 4.53%
1983
— Tip Ling House
House
Butterfly Estate
313
473 38,316/248,783
2005 10 14 50
Choi Yuen
125,394 536 134.9 4.37%
1982
— Choi Chu House
House Choi Ping House
536
Fan ing Sheung Shui Town
2005 17 50
Tin Chak Shopping
130,719 302 128.0 4.31%
2001
Tin Chak Estate
302
37 38,810/272,897

2005 10 14 50

157/437
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31
2,894.0 5.22%
Tip Sum
2,822.2 4.78%
Choi Yuk
Choi Wah House
230 34,746/286,392
2,679.5 4.78%
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2021 31
18 Tai Wo Plaza
125,769 454 125.0 4.39% 2,636.4 4.74%
1989
0i Wo House
On Wo House
Hei Wo House
125,272
125,769
454
Tai Po Town 176 40,117/414,930
2000 10 50
19
Yau Mei Ko
R 102,309 0 134.9 4.30% 2,623.0 5.14%
Cheung Lei Yue Mun Plaza
2001
Yau Mei Court J K L
6459 19,357/392,161
2005 50
20 Tin
Shing Shopping Centre 78,235 1,458 124.3 4.33% 2,497.4 4.98%
2000
— Ting Shing Court
1,458
17 A 1,480/357,800
1997 11 28 50
21 Tin Yiu Plaza
93,297 480 121.8 4.34% 2,406.8 5.06%
1992
Tin Yiu Estate
480
38 31,581/574,611
2005 17 50
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22
Plaza

23
Plaza

24

25

Centre

Chuk Yuen

Siu Sai Wan

Fu Tung Plaza

Tin Shui Shopping

138,546

99,942

104,879

74,948
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1,103 114.7 4._44%
1984
Chui Yuen House
Sau Yuen House
Chuk Yuen South Estate
1,103
6452
2007 16 50
558 117.8 4.47%
1989
— Sui Yick House
558
Chai Wan Inland 176
2007 26 50
537 117.0 4.45%
1997
Fu Tung Estate
537
40 44,218/209,377
2008 30 50
577 108.4 4.40%
1992
Tin Shui Estate
577
39 34,646/599,404

2007 50

159/437

2021 31

2,327.2

62,198/354,665

2,272.9

34,606/418,894

2,177.6

2,109.5

4.93%

5.18%

5.37%

5.14%



26

Centre

27

Centre

28

Complex

29
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2021 31
Chung On Shopping
82,430 995 104.2 4._44% 1,994.2 5.22%
1996
Chun Ping House
Chung On Estate
995
544 41,385/223,886
2005 10 14 50
Sha Kok Commercial
' 96,488 662 102.8 4.34% 1,988.4 5.17%
1980
— Osprey House Sand
Martin House Sha Kok Estate
662
552 32,438/340,309
2008 50
Choi  Wan  Commercial
167,567 859 92.7 4._44% 1,923.5 4.82%
1980
Fei Fung House
Choi Wan Estate
859
6461 61,003/394,552
2008 12 29 50
Tak Tin Plaza
97,580 754 91.8 4_47% 1,914.0 4._80%
1991
A
B
Tak Hong House C
Tak King House
Tak Shing House
754
6326 25,782/308,756

1999 18 50
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2021 31
30 01 Man Plaza
183,692 808 92.1 4.48% 1,873.7 4.91%
1975
A D
Chiu Man House Hong Man House
Chung Man House
0i Man Estate
808
9826 54,395/204,983
1968 75
31 Nan Fung Plaza
81,434 0 73.7 4.00% 1,780.2 4.14%
1999
187
23 154,634/1,485,995
8648 1995 11 21 2047 30
32
Fu Shin Shopping Centre 107,037 525 82.0 4.36% 1,758.1 4.67%
1986
Fu Shin Estate
105,549
107,037
525
189 33,761/330,620
2005 10 14 50
33
Shun Lee Commercial
201,691 731 85.1 4._46% 1,755.8 4.84%
Centre
1978
|
1
A
B
C
Lee Foo House Lee Hong House Lee Yat
House Lee Yip House

Shun Lee Estate
731

6465

2010 31 50

161/437

56,354/295,872
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34 Homantin
Plaza 101,179 299 82.8 4.43% 1,719.6 4.81%
2001
Ho Man Tin Estate
299
11119 A 3,411/57,202
20,327/214,270
1998 11 20 50
35
Heng On Commercial
9 ! 114,747 585 80.4 4.32% 1,658.1 4.85%
Centre
1987
Heng On Estate
585
500 C 39,206/40,831
812/247,314
1998 50
36 Po
Tat Shopping Centre 82,838 1,083 79.2 4.30% 1,617.2 4.89%
2002
1
11
Tat Cheung House
Po Tat Estate
1,083
6470 75,195/546,029
2009 50
37 Yu
Chui Shopping Centre 112,769 1,175 79.5 4.21% 1,614.9 4.92%
2001

Yu Chui Court
1,175

462 48,967/361,200
2001 18 50

162/437
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38
Tai Yuen Commercial
137,491 594 64.5 4.41% 1,606.7 4.02%
Centre
1980
A
B
Tai Man House Tai Tak House Tai
Wing House
Tai Yuen Estate
136,435
137,491
594
192 38,718/396,392
2007 29 50
39
Kwong Yuen Shopping
81,542 736 77.8 4._34% 1,597.7 4.87%
Centre
1991
Kwong Yuen Estate
736
506 29,929/279,026
2001 50
40
Hin Keng Shopping Centre 94,374 636 78.2 4.36% 1,595.5 4.90%
1987
Hing Keng Estate
636
94,374 94,383

503 37,320/396,392
2000 10 50

163/437
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2021 31
41 Lek Yuen Plaza
106,156 438 74.9 4.22% 1,586.1 4.72%
1976
Wing Shui House Wah Fung House Fu
Yu House (Fook Hoi House) Kwai Wo House
Lek Yuen Estate
438
550 28,600/199,774
2007 50
42
Tsui Ping North
R R B 113,912 421 73.7 4.21% 1,563.7 4.71%
Shopping Circuit
1990
Tsui Tsz House Tsui Lau House Tsui Pak
House Tsui O House Tsui Yue House
Tsui To House
Tsui Ping North Estate
421
Kwun Tong Inland 754 31,542/345,220
2002 24 50
43 Stanley Plaza
98,382 411 71.7 4.19% 1,443.6 4.97%
1999 2000

Village Square

411

Murray House

Ma Hang Estate

Stanley Inland 98 37,045/116,974

2009 11 50

164/437
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44
Sun  Chui Shopping
75,506 620 67.2 4.26% 1,404.5 4.78%
Centre
1983
Sun Yee House
Sun Chui Estate
620
554 27,934/395,903
2009 25 50
45 (Nam Cheong
Place) 56,541 547 66.3 4.33% 1,337.1 4.96%
Fu Cheong Shopping Centre 2002
547
6437 31,469/355,647
2005 17 50
46
Fung Tak Shopping Centre 71,212 487 63.0 4.29% 1,324.6 4.76%
1991
Bang Fung House Ngan Fung House
487
6318 A C
1,070/202,138
1998 50
47 Tai
Hing Commercial Centre 101,698 672 60.4 4._42% 1,314.3 4._59%
1977
Tai Hing Estate
672
484 27,288/474,882

2009 18 50

165/437



48

49

50

51
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2021 31
Fu Tai Shopping Centre 60,893 635 63.6 4.19% 1,294.4 4.92%
2000
Fu Tai Estate
635
418 38,769/382,833
2001 12 50
Long Ping Commercial
g m1ng 92,061 564 63.5 4.50% 1,261.6 5.04%
Centre
1987
Yuk Ping House Shek Ping House
Kang Ping House
Long Ping Estate
564
Yuen Long Town 521 32,958/498,969
2006 15 50
0i
Tung Shopping Centre 81,029 634 63.0 4.36% 1,239.1 5.08%
2000
Oi Sin House
0i Tung Estate
634
Shau Kei Wan Inland 849 34,910/194,191
2005 17 50
Po Lam Shopping Centre 85,610 398 60.3 4.45% 1,237.8 4.87%
1989
|
11
— Po Ning House Po Kan House
Po Lam Estate
398
88 25,495/341,494
2004 10 19 50

166/437
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52 Mei
Lam Shopping Centre 75,884 375 54.2 4.24% 1,194.7 4.54%
Mei Lam Commercial Centre 1981
— Mei Fung House
75,843
75,884
375
558 29,125/273,313
2010 22 50
53 Hing Wah Plaza
82,011 268 60.5 4.38% 1,178.9 5.13%
2000
May Wah House
Hing Wah Estate
82,011
82,011
268
177 27,675/160,197
2007 28 50
54 Fu
Heng Shopping Centre 55,030 517 56.4 4.38% 1,170.4 4.82%
1990
Fu Heng Estate
517
178 22,900/358,013
2000 10 50
55
Un Chau Shoppin
PPING 50,868 213 48.3 3.86% 1,158.9 4.17%
Centre
1999
213

6478 17,388/355,830
2010 11 50

167/437



56
Lung Hang Commercial
Centre

57
Kwong Fuk Commercial
Centre

58

Wan Tsui Commercial Complex

64,037 440 53.9 4.25%
1983
440
557 23,047/289,255
2010 31 50
69,596 461 53.4 4_45%
1983
Kwong Yan House
Kwong Fuk Estate
461
196 23,946/351,384
2010 17 50
82,296 359 55.1 4.39%
1978

Yee Tsui House
Lee Tsui House
Wan Tsui Estate
359

180
2010 31 50

168/437
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1,133.9 4.75%
1,133.6 4.71%
1,101.2 5.01%

Shing Tsui House

26,208/222,534
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59
Lok Wah Commercial
98,078 650 50.3 4.31% 1,068.6
Centre
1985
Po Wah House Kan Wah House
House Tat Wah House Ning Wah House
Shun Wah House
Lok Wah North Estate
650
6460 38,134/513,788
2008 50
60 Maritime Bay
41,017 0 47.1 4.00% 1,039.7
1998
HK Great Land (HK) Limited
49 573/5,411
SK 8530 1995 27 2047 30
61 Yiu
On Shopping Centre 50,765 547 48.5 4.27% 978.5
1989
Yiu On Estate
547
505 12,616/306,501
1999 18 50
62
Cheung Wah Shopping
72,166 353 43.9 4.34% 942.0
Centre
1984
Cheung Lai House Cheung Chung House
Cheung Wah Estate
353
226 26,310/299,811

2004 16 50

169/437

4.70%

Lap Wah

4.53%

4.96%

4.66%
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63 Hiu
Lai Shopping Centre 34,560 637 45.0 4.32% 933.9 4.82%
1996
Hiu Tin House
Hiu On House
637
6205 A 1,000/249,375
1994 11 11 2047 30
64 Hoi
Fu Shopping Centre 40,335 225 41.8 4.20% 910.1 4.60%
1999
E J—
D —
225
11141 9,413/204,120
1999 16 50
65 Tin
Tsz Shopping Centre 36,865 289 39.6 4.26% 809.8 4.89%
1997
Tsz Ping House
Tin Tsz Estate
289
40 17 511/202 482
2007 29 50
66
Sam Shing Commercial
69,580 176 42.0 4.38% 805.6 5.21%
Centre
1980
Chun Yu House Moon Yu House Fung
Yu House
176

481 14,434/115,271
2010 22 50

170/437
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67 Hing
Tung Shopping Centre 53,034 420 28.1 4.36% 600.8 4.67%
1995
420
851 23,786/155,258
2010 50
68 Kin
S Shoppi
ang >noppng 36,623 273 26.7 4.26% 561.6 4.75%
Centre
1990
Kin Sang Estate
273
441 A 14,100/28,621
1998 50
69 Yiu
Tung Shopping Centre 63,103 685 25.8 4.46% 536.2 4.80%
1994
Yiu Tung Estate
685
852 35,548/381,831
2010 29 50
70
Ping Tin Shopping Centre 24,344 406 25.3 4.51% 518.3 4.87%
1997
Ping Tin Estate
406
6446 16,966/362,174

2009 30 50

171/437



71
Retail
and Car Park within Tung 38,060 493 22.8
Tau Estate
1982
Cheung Tung House
On Tung House
Tung Tau Estate
493
2002 24
72
Shun On Commercial
80,993 459 21.5
Centre
1978
On Kwan House
Yat House
Shun On Estate
459
2008 28
73
Yin Lai t Sh i
in Lai Court Shopping 10,584 150 18.3
Centre
1991
150
389
1990 21
74
Car Park within Kin Ming
0 763 19.5
Estate
2003
Kin Ming Estate
763

2010 15

6413
50

6472
50

2047

109
50

172/437
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4.44% 491.0 4.65%

Hong Tung House

Yue Tung House Wong Tung House

16,942/349,186

4.43% 473.3 4.54%
On Chung House On
20,130/179,429
4.26% 376.2 4.88%
A
30
5.00% 366.9 5.33%

39,133/420,644



75
Retail and Car Park

- 3,915 484
within Cheung On Estate

On Tao House

484
403/293,522
1998
76
Retail and Car Park
I 17,956 549
within Hong Pak Court
549
1991
77
Retail and Car Park
within Cheung Wang 11,532 333
Estate
333
2009
78
Car Park within Tin Yuet
560
Estate
2000
560
2010

18.0 4.58%
1988
160 D
50
17.7 4.39%
1993
6095
25 2047 30
18.4 4.64%
2001
178 13,010/259, 640
25 50
13.4 4.40%
41 50,802/297,568
50

173/437
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366.2 4.90%
F
363.6 4.86%
A
345.6 5.34%
283.8 4.73%



79
Retail and Car
Park within Lok Wah South 16,409 226 13.1
Estate
1982
Chin Wah House
On Wah House
226
6460
2008 50
80
Po Hei Court Commercial
13,686 0 10.1
Centre
1993
A B
6117
1992 17 2047
81
Retail and Car Park 7,342 379 11.5
within Wo Ming Court
1999
Wo Yat House
379
52
1997 11 28 50
82
Retail and Car Park within
7,332 323 11.4
Ko Chun Court
1993
Chun Moon House
323
6189
1993 2047

174/437
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2021 31

4.62% 269.9 4.84%

13,231/513,788 667/513,788

3.30% 261.9 3.85%
1,354/20,256
30
4_30% 245.7 4_67%
A 728/82,796
4.47% 239.3 4.76%
A 530/81,791
30



83 Car
Park within Ka Tin Court

84

Retail and Car Park
within Ching Wah Court

85
Retail and Car
Park within Tin Yat Estate

86
Car Park

Estate

within Tin King

0 348

1988

348

1898

9,118 348

2001

348

1999

8,784 446

446

2008

0 380

1989

380

1999

1751437
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2021 31
11.4 4._40% 233.2
290 A
99 2047
10.7 4._39%% 227.9
137 2,516/36,665
20 50
11.3 4.56% 226.8
2001
15,485/226,221
10 28 50
10.7 4.30% 224.7
444 4,036/197,161
18 50

4.88%

30

4_70%

4.97%

4.74%



87 Car
Park within Tsz Man Estate

88
Retail
within Hong Yat Court

and Car Park

89
Retail and Car Park within
Tong Ming
Court

90 Car
Park within Wah Lai Estate

7,040

21,283

364

355

291

411

364

1994

2008

355

2001

291

Tong Wong House
Tong Fu House

1997

411

2001

2001

2021 31
11.7 4.90% 217.5
6441 9,121/139,291
28 50
10.2 4.39%% 216.1
1993
6329 4,582/99,200
50
9.4 4.29% 216.0
1999
54 A 1,153/98,512
26 2047 30
10.6 4.60% 215.4
445 A 21,700/102,614
25 50

176/437
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5.38%

4.74%

4.36%

4.91%



91

Retail and Car Park within Tin
Wah Estate

92
Retail and Car Park within
Tsui Wan Estate

93 Car
Park within Ning Fung Court

94

Car Park within Wang Fuk

Court

1,476

13,631

287

182

299

408

287 9.9
1999
43
2010 12
182 9.1
1993
166
1999 18
299 8.6
2001
477
1999 10 15
408 8.4
1983
27
1898

1771437

50

50

50

99
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4.36% 204.8

11,225/236,423

4.39% 195.6
3,254/123,068

4.20% 189.2
3,072/78,707

4.10% 186.8

2047

4.82%

4.66%

4.56%

4.50%

30



95

Car Park within Po Pui

Court

96 Car
Park within Ming Nga Court

97 Car
Park within Ying Ming Court

98

Retail and Car Park within Yan
Ming Court

99

Car Park within Yue On

Court

7,019

277 8.5
1995
277
728
1994 2047
345 7.8
1985
345
36 A
1898 99
274 7.8
1989
274
Junk Bay Town
1898 99
262 7.2
1990
262
A
1987 22 2047
296 7.4
1988
296
117
1982 75

178/437

4._30%

30

4.00%

4.30%

4.38%

30

4.30%

75
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178.7

175.7

2047

167.1

2047

165.7

157.1

4.73%

4.42%

30

4.67%

30

4.37%

4.68%
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2021 31
100
Car Park within Tsui Ping
5,275 229 8.5 5.05% 150.6 5.61%
South Estate
1990
229
755 6,785/291,576
2009 11 27 50
101 Car
Park within Lai On Estate 0 181 7.2 4.80% 1443 5.02%
1993
181
6482 5,099/90,111
2009 50
102
Retail and Car Park 8,112 156 6.2 4.31% 140.5 4.45%
within Nam Cheong Estate
1989
Cheong Shun House Cheong Yat House
Cheong On House Cheong Yin House
156
6427 3,670/109,764
2005 17 50
103
Retail and Car Park within
- 13,306 199 6.7 4.73% 139.7 4.78%
Tsz Oi Court
1997 2000
11
199
6211 A
1995 2047 30
6265 699/113,761
1999 50

179/437



205

2007

228

2002

2008

265

1898

395

2002

104 11
Retail and
Car Park within Sau Mau Ping 1,507
11l Estate
205
105
Car Park within
Upper Ngau Tau Kok 0
Estate
228
106
Retail and Car Park
- 12,616
within Lok Nga Court
265
107 1
Car Park within Sau Mau 0
Ping | Estate
395
10/833,450

2007

6.7

1996

6453

23 50

6.6

6471
50

5.4

1984

5969

99

5.1

6453

23 50

180/437
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2021 31
4.54% 129.8 5.13%
7,222/833,450
4.80% 128.6 5.15%
9,334/126,664
4.13% 126.3 4.25%
A 1/28,952
2047 30
4.00% 123.9 4.12%
14,364/833,450



108 Car

Park within Kam On Court 0
109 Car

Park within Ching Wang Court 0
110 Car

Park within Yee Kok Court 0
111

Retail and Car Park

within Ying Fuk 786

Court
112 Car

Park within San Wai Court 0

238 5.6 4.30%
1987
238
283 A
1898 99
179 5.4 4.30%
2001
179
137 2,516/36,665
1999 20 50
240 4.7 4.10%
1981
240
5911
1898 99
163 5.2 4.54%
2001
163
6266
1999 50
185 5.2 4.30%
1990
185
326 A
1989 2047 30

181/437
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2021 31
120.3 4.68%
2047 30
120.1 4.46%
111.9 4.20%
A
2047 30
111.6 4.65%
107.2 4.82%



113
Park within Tin Yau Court

114
Car Park within Yee
Court

115
Park within King Lai Court

116
Park within Fung Lai Court

117
Retail and Car
within Hung Hom Estate

Car

Nga

Car

Car

Park

3,994

192

159

158

134

45

192

1992

1992

159

1993

1991

158

1989

1985

134

1997

1996

45

4.8

10
23

4.5

120
22

4.0

3.3

3.0

1999

Hung Fai House

2047

2047

5943
2047

6240
2047

Hung Hom Inland

2008

29

182/437

50

4.30%

4.10%

30

4._20%

30

4.10%
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2021 31
106.3
100.5
93.7
A
80.4

1,512/33,911

30

4.08%

554

1,573/51,548

4.53%

4.44%

4._28%

4.14%

3.94%



118
Retail and Car Park
within Tin Wang Court

119
Car Park within Hong Keung
Court

120
Retail and Car Park
within Hong Shui Court

121 Car
Park within Kwai Hong Court

122
Car Park within Pang Ching
Court

9,946

345

79

93

102

88

67

79

1991

93

1999

1999

102

1998

88

1993

1990

67

1991

1990
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2.8 4.38%
1992
6131
21 2047 30
2.6 4.70%
6239
50
2.8 4.30%
1999
6227 A
14 50
2.4 4._50%
420 1,100/35,351
2047 30
1.9 4.70%
6121 A
21 2047 30

183/437

31

4.45%

4.51%

4.89%

4.30%

4.79%
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123 1
Car Park within
o 70 1.5 4.10% 33.2 4.45%
Lower Wong Tai Sin 1 Estate
1982
70
6373 674/240,107
2001 50
124
Car Park within Chuk
0 61 1.0 5.10% 22.1 4.59%
Yuen North Estate
1987
61
6327 687/364,071
1999 18 50
125
Retail and Car Park
I 485 38 0.7 4.02% 17.0 4.03%
within Ko Yee Estate
1994
38
6480 1,518/80,343
2010 50

184/437



126 The Quayside 883,127
2019
457
20240 2015
127 700
700 Nathan Road,
176,643
Mong Kok
T.0.P
11419 1980
. 7,375 75,780
Link Square, Shanghai i ’
2003
226
Ltd.
2001 16
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2021 31
9,845.1

Century Land Investment Limited
6512
23 50
1,183.0

2021 31

4,095.5

Trade and Industry Department Tower 2017
T.0.P This is our Place
Link Monte Hong Kong Limited.

10470 24,750/25,000
30 75

2021 31

226 308 4.29% 6,550.0 4.70%

Shanghai Xing Bang Properties Co.,

2051 15 50

185/437



Link Plaza ¢ Zhongguancun, 55,423 0 367 149
Beijing
2009
367
ECM
Ltd.)
2011 13 2051 12
Link
88,726 0 1,034 224
Plaza * Guangzhou, Guangzhou
2011
The Riverside
1,034
Estate Company Ltd. 271
2002 10 21 2042 10 20
(Link
. . 67,546 0 576 93
Plaza * Jingtong, Beijing
2014
B L
576
Real Estate Management Company Limited
2010 12 2050 12
Link CentralWalk, 83,900 0 741 146
Shenzhen
2006
741
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 344
2002 29 2042 28

186/437
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2021 31

4.50% 2,940.0 5.07%

(ECM Property Holding (Tianjin) Co.,

40

4.75% 4,460.0 5.01%

Guangzhou Qian Qing Hui Real

40
4.75% 2,540.0 3.66%
Beijing Yateng
40
4.25% 6,470.0 2.26%

Baoyi Property Management

40
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2021 31
The
44,743 65 11 5.24% 376.6
Cabot, London
1991 2020
65
25 S.ar.l 25 Cabot Square S.ar.l
S.ar.l Cabot Square Retail S.ar.1l
EGL 317234 EGL 513746
2021 31
100
100 Market Street, 28,339 0 27 4.50% 683.0
Sydney
1970 2011 Westfield
Sydney
Westfield Sydney Complex
No. Scentre Sydney No. 1 Pty Ltd

999,997/2,000,000 )

Ltd (999,997/2,000,000 )

Pty Ltd (6/2,000,000 )
Market Sub TC Pty Ltd

187/437

No. Scentre Sydney No. 2 Pty
Windsor Sub TC

TC

TC



19
31
60
80

74
78
83
86
87
90
93
94
95
96
97
99
100
101
105
107
108
109
110
112
113
114
115
116
119
121
122
123
124

2021

31

188/437
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Ol B W N - = = o

«

10

11

700 (

100

(Lok Fu Place)
T
(T Town)
(Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre)
TKO
TKO Gateway
Temple Mall South
(Kai Tin Shopping Centre)
TKO
(TKO Spot)
Temple Mall North
(Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre)

(Cheung Fat Plaza)

(Leung King Plaza)

189/437

OoOooodd

4.272%

3.475%

2.740%

2.535%

2.435%

2.426%

2.421%

2.283%

2.251%

2.014%

1.923%
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12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

(Wo Che Plaza)

(Yat Tung Shopping Centre)

(Choi Ming Shopping Centre)

(Butterfly Plaza)

(Choi Yuen Plaza)

(Tin Chak Shopping Centre)

(Tai Wo Plaza)

(Yau Mei & Ko Cheung (Lei Yue Mun Plaza))

(Tin Shing Shopping Centre)

(Tin Yiu Plaza)

(Chuk Yuen Plaza)

(Siu Sai Wan Plaza)

(Fu Tung Plaza)

(Tin Shui Shopping Centre)

(Chung On Shopping Centre)

(Sha Kok Commercial Centre)

(Choi Wan Commercial Complex)

(Tak Tin Plaza)

(Oi Man Plaza)

(Nan Fung Plaza)

(Fu Shin Shopping Centre)

(Shun Lee Commercial Centre)

(Homantin Plaza)

(Heng On Commercial Centre)

(Po Tat Shopping Centre)

190/437
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1.887%

1.857%

1.835%

1.823%

1.778%

1.688%

1.661%

1.653%

1.573%

1.516%

1.466%

1.432%

1.372%

1.329%

1.256%

1.253%

1.212%

1.206%

1.181%

1.122%

1.108%

1.106%

1.083%

1.045%

1.019%
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37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

(Yu Chui Shopping Centre)

(Tai Yuen Commercial Centre)

(Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre)

(Hin Keng Shopping Centre)

(Lek Yuen Plaza)

(Tsui Ping North Shopping Circuit)

(Stanley Plaza)

(Sun Chui Shopping Centre)

(Nam Cheong Place)

(Fung Tak Shopping Centre)

(Tai Hing Commercial Centre)

Fu Tai Shopping Centre

(Long Ping Commercial Centre)

(Oi Tung Shopping Centre)

(Po Lam Shopping Centre)

(Mei Lam Shopping Centre)

(Hing Wah Plaza)

(Fu Heng Shopping Centre)

(Un Chau Shopping Centre)

(Lung Hang Commercial Centre)

(Kwong Fuk Commercial Centre)

(Wan Tsui Commercial Complex)

(Lok Wah Commercial Centre)

(Maritime Bay)

(Yiu On Shopping Centre)

191/437
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1.017%

1.012%

1.007%

1.005%

0.999%

0.985%

0.910%

0.885%

0.842%

0.835%

0.828%

0.816%

0.795%

0.781%

0.780%

0.753%

0.743%

0.737%

0.730%

0.714%

0.714%

0.694%

0.673%

0.655%

0.616%
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63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

(Cheung Wah Shopping Centre)

(Hiu Lai Shopping Centre)

(Hoi Fu Shopping Centre)

(Tin Tsz Shopping Centre)

(Sam Shing Commercial Centre)

(Hing Tung Shopping Centre)

(Kin Sang Shopping Centre)

(Yiu Tung Shopping Centre)

(Ping Tin Shopping Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Tung Tau Estate)

(Shun On Commercial Centre)

(Yin Lai Court Shopping Centre)

(Car Park within Kin Ming Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung On Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Pak Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung Wang Estate)

(Car Park within Tin Yuet Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Lok Wah (South) Estate)

(Po Hei Court Commercial Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Wo Ming Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Ko Chun Court)

(Car Park within Ka Tin Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Ching Wah Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Tin Yat Estate)

(Car Park within Tin King Estate)
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0.593%

0.588%

0.573%

0.510%

0.508%

0.379%

0.354%

0.338%

0.327%

0.309%

0.298%

0.237%

0.231%

0.231%

0.229%

0.218%

0.179%

0.170%

0.165%

0.155%

0.151%

0.147%

0.144%

0.143%

0.142%



87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

(Car Park within Tsz Man Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Hong Yat Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tong Ming Court)
(Car Park within Wah Lai Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wah Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsui Wan Estate)
(Car Park within Ning Fung Court)
(Car Park within Wang Fuk Court)
(Car Park within Po Pui Court)
(Car Park within Ming Nga Court)
(Car Park within Ying Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Yan Ming Court)
(Car Park within Yue On Court)
(Car Park within Tsui Ping South Estate)
(Car Park within Lai On Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Nam Cheong Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsz Oi Court)

1
(Retail and Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (l11) Estate)
(Car Park within Upper Ngau Tau Kok Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Lok Nga Court)

|
(Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (I) Estate)
(Car Park within Kam On Court)
(Car Park within Ching Wang Court)

(Car Park within Yee Kok Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Ying Fuk Court)
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0.137%

0.136%

0.136%

0.136%

0.129%

0.123%

0.119%

0.118%

0.113%

0.111%

0.105%

0.104%

0.099%

0.095%

0.091%

0.089%

0.088%

0.082%

0.081%

0.080%

0.078%

0.076%

0.076%

0.071%

0.070%



112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

(Car Park within San Wai Court)
(Car Park within Tin Yau Court)
(Car Park within Yee Nga Court)
(Car Park within King Lai Court)
(Car Park within Fung Lai Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Hung Hom Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wang Court)
(Car Park within Hong Keung Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Hong Shui Court)
(Car Park within Kwai Hong Court)
(Car Park within Pang Ching Court)
|

(Car Park within Lower Wong Tai Sin (I) Estate)
(Car Park within Chuk Yuen (North) Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Ko Yee Estate)

The Quayside

700

700 Nathan Road, Mong Kok

Link Square, Shanghai

Link Plaza ¢+ Zhongguancun, Beijing

Link Plaza * Guangzhou, Guangzhou

Link Plaza + Jingtong, Beijing

Link CentralWalk, Shenzhen

The Cabot, London

100
100 Market Street, Sydney
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0.068%

0.067%

0.063%

0.059%

0.051%

0.048%

0.040%

0.037%

0.037%

0.035%

0.024%

0.021%

0.014%

0.011%

5.457%

2.580%

4.882%

2.191%

3.324%

1.893%

4.822%

2.532%

2.544%

125.424%



HKIS

RICS

2021

31
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2021 31

2020
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2021 31 2020 31
9,285 9,007
7,821,857 7,791,925
6,159 6,288
) 8,076,429 8,074,377
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
31 31 31 31 31
96.8 96.5 97.1 97.0 96.1
2019 2020 31 2020
2020 2021 31 2021 31
2021 31
883,127
457
2020
2021 31 2020 31
703 733
1,154 1,239
378,750 378,750
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
31 31 31 31 31
96.3 97.8 98.5 99.5 99.6
95.8 97.4 95.5 99.3 100.0
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2021 31 2020 31
21
297
73,082
100
100
10
10
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®)
14 15 16
( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )
( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
14
2019 ¢ | 188,739 (2,674,432 | 185,775 (2,632,432 89.48 1,268 88.07 1,248
15
2020 ¢ | 159,711 (2,263,105 | 156,712 2,220,609 77.61 1,100 76.15 1,079
16
2001 ¢ )| 158,720 (2,249,062 | 155,631 2,205,291 76.24 1,080 74.76 1,059
2018 12 10 2,759
2019 12 10 2,966
2020 12 28 2,921
2005 11 25
2020 63.00 892.71
2020 10 59.05 836.74
2020 11 68.00 963.56
2020 12 70.60 1000.40
2021 67.70 959.31
2021 73.20 1037.24
2021 70.80 1003.24
2021 73.45 1040.79
2021 73.90 1047.16
2021 75.25 1066.29
2021 74.30 1052.83
2021 71.55 1013.86
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14

2018 2019 31 5,723 271.17
15

2019 2020 31 5,965 287.19
16

2020 2021 31 6,010 289.99
14

2018 2019 31 11.0 3.0
15

2019 2020 31 (10.3) 4.4
16

2020 2021 31 2.0 4.1

A - Bx 100
A+ Bx 100
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4
14 1,407,782 0 42,145,500
2018 2019 31 ,407, ,145,
15
2019 2020 31 477,632 0 51,900,500
16
2020 2021 31 29,964,480 0 6,000,000
2021 31 2020 31
2020 30 29,964,480

6,000,000
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2
1
2
2008
2021 30
2021 30

2,081,862,866
208,186,286

31

10
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(H

(in)

)

)

(M) (i) (1ii)
(iv) )
(vi)
(vii)
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GAV - D % V

GAV

HKIS
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104
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)

)

)

31

@

CCASS

HKSCC CCASS
CCASS

CCASS CCASS CCASS
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)

®

80

*

31

®

15
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(

(

(

20
i ii
20
iii
20
i ii iii
2021 31 6,000,000
— 1 —5 4 — 2
—2
)
)
)
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(

)

)

HSBC

2021

31

212/437

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

29

50,000,000

30



15
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@

15

0.10
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25

20
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10

10



(vii)

viii)

)]

Q)

(H

(i)
(iv)

(H

(i)
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(i)

(vi)

20

Q)



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15
2021 31
L
S
LP
BlackRock, L 188,105,560 9.03
Inc.
S 257,659 0.01
Citigroup L 4,431,820
Inc. S 1,590,150
L 140,594,595
L 6.75
S 1,590,150 S 007

(L&LP) .
136,162,775 LP 136,162,775 LP 6.54

A

L 113,471,409 5.45
ABP Stichting Pensioenfonds ABP
188,105,560 257,659
197,394
521,513
371,000
36,566 113,947
649,532
191,000 73,132
385,400
APG N.V. APG N.V. APG N.V.
ABP APG
N.V. APG N.V. ABP
113,471,409
2021 31 2,081,862,866
15
2021 31
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15
2021 31
2021 2020
31 30
)

110,500 - - - 51,756 162,256 0.0077 162,256

412,543 - - - | 2,487,937 2,900,480 0.1393 2,900,480

52,250 - - - 426,444 478,694 0.0229 477,606

80,650 - - - 15,676 96,326 0.0046 94,646

3,250 - - - 15,676 18,926 0.0009 18,926

8,000 - - - 16,816 24,816 0.0011 24,816

8,500 - - - 17,222 25,722 0.0012 25,722

20,000 - 12,540 - 17,130 49,670 0.0023 49,409

137,000 - - - 19,758 156,758 0.0075 156,758

33,250 - - - 18,503 51,753 0.0024 51,753

28,999 - - - 17,130 46,129 0.0022 45,525

17,000 - - - 17,066 34,066 0.0016 34,066

2021 31 2,081,862,866
63,750
2021 31

15
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 30
1,265,660 0.06 7,573,097
The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited HSBC
28,200 0.00 23,100
Principal Financial Services, Inc.
HSBC HSBC
2021 31 1,679
2021 31 2,081,862,866
2021 31 2021 31
2021 31
146,009 131,644 80,208 105,230
MTN
a 2009 The Link Finance
(Cayman) 2009 Limited 2011 10 2021 3.3 589
2021 2020
31 30
HSBC 300,000,000 50.93 | 390,000,000
589
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b 2009 2012 28 2027
3.55 500
2021 2020
31 30
HSBC 100,000,000 20.00 | 100,000,000
500
c 2009 2013 2028
3.1 500
2021 2020
31 30
HSBC 50,000,000 10.00 | 50,000,000
500
d 2009 2014 2024
3.6 500
2021 2020
31 30
Dah Sing Bank, Limited 20,734,000 4.15 | 20,734,000
HSBC 34,171,000 6.83 | 34,171,000
500
e 2009 2015 10 2022
2.4 650
2021 2020
31 30
HSBC 252,000,000

650
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T 2009 2015 31 2030
3.0 740

2021 2020
31 30

HSBC 240,000,000

740
g 2009 2016 21 2026
2.875 500

2021 2020
31 30
49,700,000 9.94 | 49,700,000

HSBC 10,035,000 2.01 35,000

500
2024
CB Link CB Limited 2019
1.6 40

2021 2020
31 30

HSBC 16,000,000 0.40 | 18,000,000

40
2017 LTI
2017 10 2017 LTI
2007 LTI 2007 23 2017

2017 LTI
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2017 LTI
i)
2017 LTI 2020
515,483
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
10
10
12
12
0.1
50
50
2017 LTI

2017 LTI
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2017 LTI
i
i
iii
2017 LTI a b
CEO
8.1 (d)
2017 LTI
2017 LTI 2017
10 10 221,456,347
12
2017 LTI
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12 2017 LTI

0.1

2021
Aon

2017 LTI 10
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2017 LTI
2021 31 2017 LTI

2020 2021 2021

31 31

2017 2017 14 11,250 -1 @i.250) - - - 61 814
14 2020 30

2018 2018 10,500 -1 @o,500) - - - 86 727
2020 30

2018 2018 10,500 - - - - 10,500 321 749
2021 30

2019 2019 8,072 - - - - 8,072 327 530
2021 30

2019 2019 8,072 - - - - 8,072 218 354
2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 12,556 - - - 12,556 340 340
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 12,556 - - - 12,556 227 227
29 2023 30

2017 2017 14 269,075 - | (194,452) - (74,621) - 1,98 15,151
14 2020 30

2018 2018 518,763 - - -1 (s18,763) - | (9.064) 7,735
2020 30

2018 2018 518,763 - - - - 518,763 | (8,628) 7,141
2021 30

2019 2019 591,693 - - - - 591,693 61 8,682
2021 30

2019 2019 591,693 - - - - 591,693 (100) 5,661
2022 30

2020 2020 29 -| 392,804 - - - 392,894 | 10,641 10,641
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 -| 392,804 - - - 392,804 | 7,004 7,004
29 2023 30

2018 2018 65,800 - - - (65,800) - | @.150) 981
2020 30

2018 2018 65,800 - - - - 65,800 | (1,094) 906
2021 30

2019 2019 116,443 - - - - 116,443 12 1,709
2021 30

2019 2019 116,443 - - - - 116,443 20) 1,114
2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 63,879 - - - 63,879 | 1,730 1,730
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 63,879 - - - 63,879 | 1,153 1,153
29 2023 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 -1 .500) - - - 19 253
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 -1 @.250) - - - 26 225
2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - - - 3,250 99 232
2021 30

2019 2019 2,414 - - - - 2,414 98 159
2021 30

2019 2019 2,414 - - - - 2,414 65 106
2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 3,799 - - - 3,799 103 103
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 3,799 - - - 3,799 69 69
29 2023 30
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2020 2021 2021
31 31

2018 2018 3,250 - (3,250) - - - 26 225
2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - - - 3,250 99 232
2021 30

2019 2019 2,414 - - - - 2,414 98 159
2021 30

2019 2019 2,414 - - - - 2,414 65 106
2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 3,799 - - - 3,799 103 103
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 3,799 - - - 3,799 69 69
29 2023 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - (3,500) - - 19 253
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - (3,250) - - 26 225
2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - - - 3,250 99 232
2021 30

2019 2019 2,642 - - - - 2,642 107 174
2021 30

2019 2019 2,642 - - - - 2,642 71 116
2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,141 - - - 4,141 112 112
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,141 - - - 4,141 75 75
29 2023 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - (3,500) - - 19 253
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - (3,250) - - 26 225
2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 o B - - 3,250 99 232
2021 30

2019 2019 2,719 - - - - 2,719 110 179
2021 30

2019 2019 2,719 - - - - 2,719 73 119
2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,267 - - - 4,267 116 116
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,267 - - - 4,267 7 7
29 2023 30

2017 2017 14 3,750 - (3,750) - - - 20 271
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 o (3,500) - - - 29 242
2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 - - - - 3,500 107 250
2021 30

2019 2019 2,662 - - - - 2,662 108 175
2021 30

2019 2019 2,662 - - - - 2,662 72 117
2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,153 - - - 4,153 112 112
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,153 - - - 4,153 75 75
29 2023 30

2017 2017 14 4,250 o (4,250) - - - 23 307
14 2020 30

2018 2018 4,000 - (4,000) - - - 33 277
2020 30

2018 2018 4,000 - - - - 4,000 122 285
2021 30

2019 2019 3,091 - - - - 3,001 125 203
2021 30

2019 2019 3,091 - - - - 3,001 84 135
2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,788 - - - 4,788 130 130
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,788 B - - 4,788 86 86
29 2023 30
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2020 2021 2021
3L 31

2017 2017 14 4,500 -1 .500) - - - 24 325
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,750 -1 @50 - - - 31 260
2020 30

2018 2018 3,750 - - - - 3,750 115 267
2021 30

2019 2019 2,878 - - - - 2,878 117 189
2021 30

2019 2019 2,877 - - - - 2,877 78 126
2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,499 - - - 4,499 122 122
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,499 - - - 4,499 81 81
29 2023 30

2017 2017 14 3,750 -1 @0 - - - 20 271
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 -|  @.500) - - - 29 242
2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 - - - - 3,500 107 250
2021 30

2019 2019 2,662 - - - - 2,662 108 175
2021 30

2019 2019 2,662 - - - - 2,662 72 117
2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,153 - - - 4,153 112 112
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,153 - - - 4,153 75 75
29 2023 30

2017 2017 14 3,750 -1 @50 - - - 20 271
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 -1 .500) - - - 29 242
2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 - - - - 3,500 107 250
2021 30

2019 2019 2,642 - - - - 2,642 107 174
2021 30

2019 2019 2,642 - - - - 2,642 71 116
2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,141 - - - 4,141 112 112
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 - 4,141 - - - 4,141 75 75
29 2023 30

2017 2017 14 350,306 - | (251,029) - (99,277) - 2,580 19,848
14 2020 30

2018 2018 363,532 - - -1 e63,532) - | (5,428) 4,632
2020 30

2018 2018 358,675 - - - (52,877) 305,798 | (5,085) 4,207
2021 30

2019 2019 383,421 - - - (48,353) 335,068 36 4,916
2021 30

2019 2019 383,421 - - - (48,353) 335,068 7) 3,205
2022 30

2020 2020 29 -| 315,479 - - (33,311) 282,168 | 7,642 7,642
29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 -| 315,479 - - (33,311) 282,168 | 5,005 5,005
29 2023 30

4,883,469 | 1,645,096 | (515,483) [ (13,500) | (1,338,198) | 4,661,384 | 13,702 | 133,930
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(126) (183)
770 630
40 (48)
5,322 23,948
(130) (300)
(299) (32)
22) 25
(68) (42)
(379) (933)
7,078 6,589
()
1,954 2020
©
)
2020 30,688 3,910 101 (143) 3,777 38,333
20,627 20,627
(17,458) (17,458)
49 49
(65) (759) (26) (78) (928)
®) ®)
3,169 (65) (764) (26) (29) 2,285
(63) (63)
22) 157 734 143 96 1,108
799 1 - - 800
777 157 735 80 96 1,845
2021 31 34,634 4,002 72 (89) 3,844 42,463
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( )
2019 24,217 81 204 3,552 28,054
) 21,629 21,629
(15,474) (15,474)
) 3,974 3,974
159 159
(32) (841) 36 (45) (882)
) (2)
6,155 3,942 (843) 36 114 9,404
58 58
485 (32) 857 (441) 111 980
(169) 6 (163)
316 (32) 863 (383) 111 875
2020 31 30,688 3,910 101 (143) 3,777 38,333
30
2019 12 19
655 3,132
190
2020
100 100
2020 24 25 S.ar.l.
S.ar.l. 368 3,751
28 2020 25
25 S.ar.l. S.a r.l.
25
( )
100
15 3,457 3,796 7,253
7 7
(135) 24) (159)
3,322 3,779 7,101
(365) (365)
) (©)
2,957 3,772 6,729
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31
( )
2021 2020
709 691

32

@

REIT HKAS 24
2021 31
HSBC
HSBC :
O)
)
)
)
DBS
REIT
) 2021 31
2019
11 17
) 2019 30
REIT 2019 11 17
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)
HKFRS
( )
2021 2020
() (15) (23)
HSBC ()
HSBC (65) (61)
HSBC 35 38
HSBC 17 20
() ()
0 0
@
@
©
)
(13)
)
() O W @
) ) )
) ) 8 S
Yy () ®) @
DBS
() ) @
)
)
0.006 0.015 2020
0.008 0.03
150,000
(H
() 2019 11 17
2019 30
2021 31
) 2020
)
0.3
0.4 ) 2020
)
)
( ) DBS
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©
2021 2020
@ ®
HSBC (2,531) (2,820)
HSBC 2 ®)
HSBC ®) 0))
HSBC 31 o
HSBC 1,688 6,569
O]
@
2021 31 11
“ Audited”
26 28
2021 2020
10 9
100 128
13 33
123 170
2020 2021 HKFRS
2020 2021
2021 2020
)
1,000,001 3,000,000 1
3,000,001 5,000,000 3 2
5,000,001 7,000,000 4 2
7,500,001 8,000,000 1 2
8,500,001 9,000,000 2
9,500,001 10,000,000 1
10,000,001 10,500,000 1
11,000,001 11,500,000 1
13,500,001 14,000,000 1®
14,000,001 14,500,000 1®
31,500,001 32,000,000 1®
73,500,001 74,000,000 1®
() 12 12
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)
) @ ®)
2020 2020 31
26 27
78
81
() 2020
2020
2020
( )
2021 2020
10 9
11 21
4 2
25 32
33
2021 31
( )
2021 2020
6,437 6,384
9,989 10,061
2,508 1,125
18,934 17,570
2020
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2021 31

100
22,000,000 100
160,539, 360 100
100
39,500,000 100
162,500,000 100
HK 100
S-a 11,000 100

r.l
60
5,000 100
ECH 1,242,300,418 100
R.E. 100
HK 1,000,000 100
600,000,000 100

cB 2019

cB 100
HK 100
100
1,000,000 100
5,000,000 100
252,000,100 100
100
615,014,654 100
100
(HK 100
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25 Ss.ar.l.
35
2021 24
2,772 3,325 )
856 1,027
6,400 7,677
2,305
2021
620  5/3
2021
2,099 2,552
1,106 1,345
36

2021 17
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287,595,000 100
100
100
100
11,000 100
50
) 50 2021 31
3,205 3,897
36



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000000000O(E15194)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Gowernance, Dol canrss s Frearclef Sinissmsns | Comldnisd roms SRatemant —

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 March 202)

2030
HNate HEE'M

Ravanua B 10744 W
Propeny oparating exparses 8 (2.506) [2,496]
Mt propeny income 8238 8,220
Gararal snd sdministiaiive expensas (428} e8]
Charga in bnir valses af rmastmant propoaifies and impairmant ol goodwill HEils [5.322) (33,5:H]
Imerast ncome 128 183
Finance costE g [rroy 1630)
Prodidfflosa] belore taxation and transacbiohs with Unitholders 10 B4t |.591
Tooanticen 12 {LO9Z) [712)
Profiiffloss) for the year, befors transactions with Unitholderns T83 {Ir.203)
Distnbutions posd 30 Unitholdar:
= 201 inkerim: dist riution 2921 -
~ 20620 firal dest ribution 12868} -
= 2020 inlerim distribution - (2.966)
« 208 fingl dintributicn - [2,064)
(E168) [33.233)
Reoprasented by
Changa in nel assals atinbutatée to Unithakdars,
exchuding ssues of new units and wnits bought back {2,666} (24,835]
Amaunt actaing from exchangs reesene and
cash low hedging resene movements A (2,168} 1,783
Mon-controling inferest 1433} ilﬂl
(5168} [33,133)
Prodit Moz s} for the year, belons trarsactiong with
Uniaheidisrs atlributabhe to
« Uritholdemns [Nale) L&) (R1-13 7.22)
- Mor-conimbireg inkesest 1433} (FE)
752 {17, 303)

The notes on pages 105 16158 are an Integral part of thasa consolidated financial statameants,
Mate: Eamincs!llassi pef s, basnd tpon prolil oo (P yaar, balor ensactions wish Uinithaldes aftrbutabla 0 Unitholders a0d tha welghind

average turnbe of uriis iy s, m st oul i Note 13 1 e consolicsted limncel slalemeils.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Far the year ended 31 March 2021

Tranamclions lrnnano L
with with

Lmnitk 5 Unitholders
I Taotal
HKS'M

Far lhe year anded 31 Marah 2021

Profit for ihe yvear LIBS [3,354) [Z368) 3] {2,602)

Cnhed comprehenssm INcime

hama thal rmary b reclossilied subsoguanby to
he consoldabed inCome Saleman

= Cash liow hedging msene 120 - 120 - 120
- Exchamge resane 2048 - 2049 - 2,049
Tolal comprebensive incoma For the paar 3,354 [2,354) - 333 (335

Foor thes year anded 31 March 2020

Loss for the yaar (Ti2a ELA05 ¥y i [ian 16052

Cihes compraheanesin incormes

Eame that muy b rsciiaalied subsaouamby 1o
(e Corsilabed inCome siensmen

- Cash llew hadging resedve 28] - [@6] - (=5}
= Exctuange mserne [LEAT] = (1GAT . (LE8Ty
Total commehansive hoss for the year (18.805] Ba0s - [ [{Lil]

The notes on pages 105 10 158 are on integral pan of those consolidatad financial statements.

Hodas:

81 Transactions wish Unithalders comprise the distibutions 1o Linkhoiders of HEE5,020 maon Q020 HKEE 030 milkan] and change in net assels
alributatde in Uniholders, ssciuding issuss al new unils and urils bought back, which is 0 dec-eass of HK$2 568 millon 020 HKE24 535
it

i Inaccondanca weah ire Trost Deed, e arits of Link Real Fatase Inasinend Tiusi conbain comirscs ol olbigations to pay in i Linithaldens cash
disirbutions ard also upon teimiination of the ust & shais ol o net cash proceeds derived Bom e Sake of fealisation of Bhe asseis of the tust
\eeg @y Labiines, in acoordance with thedr progcriona b indenests in Tha st ot the dale of the fenmination, Lnitholdens” furds am thanaslons
clissifiod i o firancl Eatdity riher Han eouly i aooordancs with Hang Kong Accounting Standand 32 Financial instnaments: Prasentation
Consssiant with Unithoklars” funds beeng Classfied &5 o linancal iabiliy, tre dietribenions (o Undholcars and changa in ral 086828 anituisbis io
Urithilders, saciuding it of now unts and ures Boughl back, are inanos coste. Ascomingly, e 1ot comprehanass incoma altrisutabls 1o
Usshoddors, afor e rancactions with Unitholdory, o e,

B0 | Lk Raad Estann bregstrmant Trost
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Consolidated Statement of Distributions

For the year ended 31 March 2021
2020
Rate HEEM

Profitfloss) for tha year, before transactions with

Unithalders attributable to Unitholders Lias [l rdl

Adjustments
= Changa in tnirvalmes of imesimant propedies and impakmant of goodwil

attributnble to Unithaldars 4.910 2383
= Dedermed taeation on change in tair values of imestrant proparties

attnbutabla 1o Unithaldars na |454]
- Chesimge i lafr vailuers of detivative comiponenl of comvetible bonds 32 157
= Changa in fair values of fimancial instrumans {220) [278)
- Depreciution snd amonisation ol real estale amd elstied asseis S 4l
= Othair rof-cosh incame 2y [1agy
Digesutionsry disributien [Nota (il 0 |
Total istributable Amownd (Mate |1 (285 1] 5066
Intarim degiribution, paid 283 2066
Fnadl disaribunion, 1o Be pakd 10 ths Uhithaksars 3,089 2989
Tetal distributions for tha year 6,000 5965
Unite: in issue at 31 Manch & 2081 862,866 2,057 B3B.386
Distributions per uni 1o Unitholdes:
= Intarim destribution par wnit, paid (Mota (il HKI41 85 cants HKE AT cents
- Fenal distribution per und, to bé paid o the Uniiholdans (hote G| HK148.34 cents HEMETZ cents
Distribulion per unit for the yoar HEZ89 99 cents HEZET, 1 conts

The noles on pages 105 10158 ara an intagral part of thase consolidated financial statemants.

Motes:

14 Urader rhe terrs of the Trost Dess, Link Al Batate invessmnent Troot s meoaned to destibute fo Unahoidan no kess man 90% of s disinbuinbs
Ircome for each Srancial yenr. Distibutobis income, acconding o the Truat Deéd. is 1he Group's corsclidated peofil afber tanbion atinbutabls
Unitroicars, a8 pdjusbed 1o slamingda the effect ol connin non-cash adiusimants which nave baen mcorcad n he conschdnied nomms sislement
for the nelewant yedr. For he yoer anded 31 March 2001, the Manager has decided 1o distritsibe 100% (020 100/ ol ks distributable incorne 1o
Urnithelsars. in addition, the Manages recormmended a capital rebum n tha fam ol a discretionary damrisution of HIKEIRO0 milicon 2020 HIKE201
million}. Togathed with this dscrationary distribution, Total Distributstes Amount represented 105% Q2020 10554 of the dsirbutabls inoome of the
Gronsp for the yaar enchedd 31 WMarch 2031

% The mberim defibution per wnit ol HKI1EE cants (000 HEKMLAT oshta} for the six monghe ended 30 Saptermber 2020 wos coloulsied based on
s inberim cistribution of HICELGCH milion COGLE HRES2G68 mislion) for he poriod and & 062 427,385 prets E2000; 2,006, M5 858 units) in ssue 2
130 Septamber 2020, The imeim distribation wars ped o Unitholders on 26 December 2020,

[#] The final distribution per unit of HKREE 38 carda 2020 HEME T2 oants) lor The year ended 31 Manch 2021 s calculated based an the linal
eIk 10 be pid 1o the Listholders. of HKE3,089 milon 020 HXS2.099 milion) for the sacond hall of e Inancial yesr and 2081562 BES
unis (2030 2,007, 536,380 units} in sswe 2 ot 31 Mach 2027, without faking ino acgourd amy changa in Bhe numbser of unlts in issue subseqeent
10 the sppeovsl of the consolidaad Snancisd aiasemants. Tha final cistrition wil be paid 10 Linthaldees on 12 Aagust 2001

Armuml Bapor 20200071 | KX
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2021
-
Note HEE'M
Azzalu
Goodwin i a2 424
IFrei S rmi Qi pe Fie: 15 g OTa 183 71
Proparty, plart and equiprsan L] 1300 1550
Firanciad assets o smonsed cost Ir 2.TAZ 2746
Deposits and pesnmens 2433 4a7
Rarivathos financial instnumant s a5 218 230
Trade and cihar recevanies ;] L5 1231
Cash and cash equivalans b 2,630 TET
Mempmrn® L ot B -zl
Liabilitien, axcluding not assets sttributablde 1o Unitholdars
Dolarred tax labikthos 0 3,029 2871
Lorg-torm inconihg coharmas provsson i B2 136
Orher Ealelias 22 4,08 5.0F
IMenost beanng labditos 23 34,634 0838
Comertible bonds 24 4,00 3810
Socity deposis 1,789 a2
Darivalive financial instrumants 5 L] Ba
Prewdiabon lar toxation ] aro
Techn payables, mceipls in advancs and sccruals 8 2,604 2840
AR RAD ek, KOG L IR B O L etz o
Non-contolinginterest @n 406
Mot assats atiribulable to Unitholdors 158,720 156,71
Linits in Es1e ar 2,081 BEZ HES 2057608 345
el asses per unh sithEutasie 10 Unithaksers HKSTE.24 HRETTE

The notes on pages 105 10 158 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statemenis,

On behalt of the Board of Directons of
Link Assat Management Limited, as manager of Link Real Estate isestmant Trust

Micholas Charles ALLEN George Kwok Lung HONGCHOY
Charrman Chif Executive Officer
17 Juna 2021 17 June 2021

2 I Livd Rial Eatano brvedtmmant Troml
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

For the year ended 31 March 2021

AL Apnl 2020

Issuance of units undar destribyution eimestment scheme
Unis bought back lor canceilatian

Preaalit far the ysar anded 31 March 702, bedom transactions

Hal assels

attribuisbl

Total

rEsarves

HEKE'M

with Unitholders 1185 - {433}
Diatrbiions pakd io Unitholdens
= 201 ineiim digtibaaian ez - -
- 2020 final distribution {2, 080) 2 e
Change i fair values of cash low hedges 28 - 83 -
Ambint iranstedred o the contsaldaled mearms slaterant b | - 57 -
Foriign cumency transkitions I8 - 2,049 -
Aumount astaing fom exchange sessve and cash Bow

hadging rEEENE Movemamls 28 2168 [2.169 -
Changa in not asdots altiibutsbio 1o Unithdlders and mon

cantrolling irdenest lor 1he yearendoed 31 March 2021,

waciuding iususes ol e unity @nd unils boughl back (2. EltE) - 433)
At 3 Morch 2021 158,720 L] (Fi]
A1 Apnd 2008 188,730 SB0 68T
Issuance ol units undar ihe 2007 LT Plan 4T - -
Unile bought back lor cancellalion 4240 - -
Lo far the poad snded 31 Mareh 2020, balong ransscions

with Uinhholdars [lrdvrd - (=]
Distribidions paid o Unithoidars
- 2020 interim distsibution [2.966] - -

2010 Inal distibutc (X084L]
Changs in fair vaiues of cash fiow hadges 28 - (58 -
Amount iransferred o the conaolidaled noome atatermant i | - i 2 -
Foraign curmency translalons 8 - 11567 -
Ampunt arsirg from exchangs reserve and cash Baw

hadging IBGRNE MOowTanis i {1,783 LTE3 -
Changs in nel aasets stinbutabie 1o Unitholdars snd non-

cantfolling irenest lor 1he year endad 31 March 2020,

exciuding [Baues ol new unls snd s beught kack [24,B35] - (181}
Az 31 March 2020 1T 580 408
The nates on pages 105 10158 are an integral part of thase consolidated financial slatements.

Annunl Raport 20200030710 | 103
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Far the year ended 31 March 2021
-
Note HES'M
Oparaling activities
Net cash generatad fram oparating activities ZiKa) .0 [ ]
Invesiing scitvities
Aesuisition ol ansols a0 8,729 =
Acquisiion ol busiressas [F&0) 1]
AdddRians o syeslmant propanios [a5g) (388}
AckdRigns (o propany, plam and eoquipment @n il 1]
Purchaee of Hinarcial sesels at amonised cost - (27T
IMiereas (peorms rcened 38 B3
Doponin paid fer acquisition of o joint vaniure [2.305) -
Depoais paid for acquisdion of a propeny - 355}
Dacroass in bank dogosits with ohiginal malunty of mone than thros mont be - 4 005
Nat cash uned In Investing aativilies o543 530
Financing nctivities
Proceads rom interes! baaring kaidites, net o! ransaction costs 200827 2625
Repryment of intesmat baosing kabilitas {17.458) (15474}
Procoeds Iredn comsanible bonds, net of tansaction coals - 31974
Ircraesn m amount due 1o non-controlli ng infenes?
Imzreat exparses paid
Poymant of lsaze linbiltxes
Digtnbutions pasd to Linkholders

Urits beught baek for cancehalion

Net cash used in financing activities
MRS ARASAS ASALASASASALALA LARA LA LAaRhad daad e b o bad dh dka bl dlde e e e e e e A

et (decreaselincraase in cash and cash equivalens

Cash and cash aguivalents at 1 Ageil 7,877 LES
Eflect on exchangs rate changes on cash and cash equsalants T (il
Cash and cash equivalants ot 31 March 2530 T.aIT

The notes on pages 105 to 158 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

e I Livsk Faad Estann brreastenant T ot
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Corporate Information

Link Real Estate Investimeant Trust {("Link") i5 a colleclive investiment schame authorised under section 104 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kongl. Link ks governed by a First Ameanding
and Restating Deed antered into on B Fabruary 2021 (ihe “Trust Deed”),

Thi principal acthvity of Link and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is investing in real estate and may undaraking
property development and redated activities in respect of all types of dovefopmenis. The addresses of the
registered officas of the Manager, Link Asset Management Limited, and tha Trustea, HSBC Institutional Trust
Sanvices (Asa) Limited, are 20/F,, Towar 1, The Guayside, 7T Hol Bun Road, Kwun Tang, Kowloon, Hong Kong
and 1 Guean's Road Caniral, Hong Kong, respactivady.

2 Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance

The conscidated financlal statemanis have been prapared in accordance with the Hong Kang Financlal
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSS®), the requirermants of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosurs
requirements as set out in Appendix C of the Code on Real Estate Investment Trusts (the "REIT Code™)
Isseed by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, HKFRSs i a callective term wiich
Includes all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Cartified Public Accountants,

(b) Accounting Convention

The consoiidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost comvention, as
modilied by the revaluation of derivalive financial insfrumeants, long-tarm incentive schemes provision,
carivative component of convertible bonds, investment properties and non-controlling interest pul option
cbligation, which ane stated at fair values as explained in the signiican! accounting policies sat out inNote 3,

(c) Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Policies

For the year ended 31 March 2031, the Group has adopted all the new siandards and amendments that are
currently in issue and affectiva.

HEAS T and HRAS B Amendments Detinition af Material

HEAS 39, HEFRS 7 and HKFRS 8 Amendments  Interast Rate Benchmark Rafom

Conceplual Framework for Financial Revised Concaplual Framework for Financial Reporting
Repoiting 2018

The acoption of these new standards and amendments has not had any significant effect on the results
repared and the financial position of the Group.

Armuml Bapot 20060011 | 106
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2 Basis of Preparation continued

(c) Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Policies [Continued)

The tollowing now standards and amondmonts, which have boen published but one not yot offective,
have not baen early adapted In the consotidatod financial statemants. Thoso ame alfective for the Group's
accouniing perods baginning on or after 1 Apni 2021

HEAS 1 Amendmanis Classification of Liabilities a5 Current or Mon-current®™
HEKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclogure of Accounting Policies™

Amandmants
HKAS B Amandmanis Definition of Accounting Estimates™

HEFRS 3, HKAS 15 and HKAS 37 Amandments  Narmow-Seops Amandmeants®

HEFRS 4, HEFRS T, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and Interest Rate Benchmark Redorm - Phase 28
HEAS 38 Amendmeanis

HEFRS 10 and HKAS 2B Amandmants Sala of Contribution of Assats batwoean an lmeasior and
s Assoclate or Joint Yen ume™

HEFRS 16 Amenaments COVID-19-Related Rent Concassions™

HEFRS 16 Amendmonts COVID-19-Related Rent Concegsions bovond 30 June
2O

HEFRS 17 Insurance Confracts™

Annual Improvements AM8-2020 Cycle™

5 gffectym for OCOUrRng Diods Ceginning on of aRoT 1. Jung Z020

2 gHoeckv Tor DCCOURTING: Do Eaginning on or afiar 1 Jsmiary 2031

| affecive 10f ASCOUNING DENO0N Baginning onor amar | Aan 2020

= gHectvm lor accourtng peiods Bagitning on or aller 1 Jemuary 2022

& gifective lor acoourting pediods baginning on of afar | Aemiany 20223

= o mandatony effective dato is determinec ot but sarky spplcation is permitied

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new standards and
amanidmants upan Initial application

5 I Livd Rial Eatano brvedtmmant Troml
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting palicies adopted in 1he preparation of the consolidated linancial statamerts are se1
oul below, Save as the adaption of new and revisad accounting policies, thesa policies have besn consistantly
applied 10 all the years presanted.

(a) Basis of Consclidation

The consciidated financial stalaments incoqparate the assels and labillities of Link and all its subsidlaries as
at 31 March 2021 and thair resulls for the year then ended.

Subsidianes are entitles, including struciured entites, over which the Group has control, The Group controls
an entity whion the Group s exposed to, or has nghts to, vasable returns from its Imohemaent with the entity
and has the ability to affect those retums through i1s power over the antity.

Subsidianes ara consolidated from the date on which control is transfarred to the Group, They are
oaconsolidated lrom the date that control ceases,

Inter-comparny transaciions, balances and unrealised gains on ransactions batween group companieas ana
aliminated. Unrealizad 0ssas ane also aliminated unlass ihs transaction provides avidence of impaimment
cf The assat transdemed,

The Group applles the acquisition meihod toaccount for business combinations. The conshderation
transfarred for the acouisitlon of a subsidiary s the fair valuas of the assets transferred, the labllities
incurred 1o the former owners of the acquiree and the unils Issued by the Growp, The considesation
translemed includes the falr value of any asset or llability resultkng from & contingent consideration
amangement. Idantifisbie assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a8 business
comblnation are measured Initially at their falr values at the acqulsition date. Acquisition related costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the pericd in'which they are Incurred.

Whare tha Group enters into a conlract that contains an obligation (for exarmple a writben put oplion
exarcisable by the contract counterparty] 1o acauire shares in a partly-cwned subsidiary company from
the non-controling interest, which is not part of a business combination, 1he Group reconds a financial
[rability for the presont value of the edemplion amount with a corresponding charge directly to net assals
attributable to Unitholders. Changes o tha value of the financial Rability are recognisad in the consolidatod
Income statament.

(b} Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable componen of the Group that is engaged either in praviding a particular type
of sarvice, or in providing services within a particular econcmic enviranmani, and which is subject to risks
and rewands that are ditterent from those of other segments. Consistent with the Group's Intermal financial
reparting to the Managaer, baing the chiel operating decksion maker, for the purpose of making decisions
about alfocating resources and assessing performance, segment assets consist primarily of tangible assets
and receivables and segment llabdities malnly comprise cperaiing (labities.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued

Ll |

(c) Foreign Currency Translation

i

Functional and Presentation Currencies

terms incleded in the linanclal statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency ).
The conscolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong Dodars, which is the
functional currency of Link and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactlons and Balances

Forelgn cumency transactions are translated Into the functional cumency using the exchange rales
prevailing &t the dates of tha transactions or valuation where items are re-measurad, Foreign exchange
galns and losses resulling from the settiement of such ransactions and from the transiation at the
reporting date exchange rales of monetary assets and llabllities denominated in foreign cumencies

are recognised in the consolidated Income statement, except whean deferred In other comprehensive
income as qualifying cash flow hedges and gualifying net investment hadges.

Group Companios

The results and financlal position of all the Group’s entiies that have a functional currency different
from the presentation cumrency afe transiated Info the presentation cumency as follows:

- assels and liabilities for each statement of financial position of the Gr‘Dl.Ip'S- entities are translated at
the reparting date closing rate:

- come and expenditures fof each income statement of the Group's entities ane ranstated at
avernge axchange rales (unkess this average is nol a reasonable approximation of 1he curmulative
affect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which cass Income and expanditures ane
transtated ot the rates on the dates of the transactions); and

- all rasulting currency translation differences are recognised in other comprahansive incoma,

Goodwill and fair value adjusiments arising on the acquisition of a loreign entity are treated as sssels
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the reparting date closing rate. Currency translatian
differences arlsing are recognised in olhar comprahansive income,
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(d}

()

Investment Properties

A property that is hola fof long-torm rental yields o for capital opprociation or both, is classifiod a5 an
Investrman propery. It also heludes proportios that ane baing constructed or dovadoped far future use a5
investment proparies.

Investment property comprises land heid under govemment leases and treated uncear finance lease and
bulldings held under finance leases.

An invesiment prapany is measured initiaky at is cost, including ratated tansacion cosis.

Alter Initial recognition, an investment property s camed at falr value, representing open market valua
cetermined at each reparilng date. The camying value of the Invesiment property s reviewed every shx
monihs and I8 independanily valeed by external valuer at least annually.

Any gain or loss ariging on dispasal of the investment property (calculated as the differance Detween
the dispesal proceeds and tha carrying amount, including revaluation, of the asset] s recognised In the
consolidated income statement in the periad In which the investment property is disposed of.

Changes in lair values of the investment properties ans recognised in the consolidated income statamant.

Subsequent expenditure is capltalised to the asset's camying amount onky when [t s probable that fulure
coonamic benedits aasociated with the itam will flow to the Group and the cost of the fem can be measured
redlably. All other repair and malntenance costs are expensed |n the consolidated income statemaent during
the pariod in which they ane incurmad.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipmaent, including right-of-use assats arising from property leased for own use, are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciathon and accumulated impalment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attrbutable to the scquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carying amount or recognised as a separale assel, as
appropriate, only whean it is probable that future economic benelils associated with the item will lhow 1o
the Group and the cost of the itam can be measimed reliably. All other repair and mainienance casts are
expansed in the consalidated income statement duning the pariod in which they are incurmed,

Dapreciathon of pecperty, plant and equipmeant is calculated using the stralght-line method to allocate
cost less estimated residual value less accumukated impalrment kosses over the estimated usaful lives as

folows:

Land and building Lease terms

Leasehold improvemeants Fve years of lzase terms (if appilcabla)
Right-of-use assels Lease terms

Equipmeant Three to five years

Motor vehicles Five years

An asset's residual value and uselul life are reviewsd and ad|usted If appeopriate, at each reporting date.

An assel's camying amaunt is written down iImmediately 1o its recoverable amount If the asset's carmying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverabla amount, a5 an impaimmeant loss.

Gains and lozzes on disposals ane determined by comparing the procasds with the carrying ameunis and
ara recognised in the consolidated Income staiement.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued
(f} Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

ne |

Financiol as501s al amortised cost aro recogniscd initially at fair waluo and swebsequently moasurod ot
amartised cost, less peovision for impalimont. The Group holds conain dobt securties with the objective
to callect the contractual cash flows which represents solaly payments of principal and interasts and
therefore measures them subaaguently at amorisoed cost using the affective interest method, Regular way
purchases or sales of debl securntles ane recognised and deracognised on a lrace date basis.

Inierest income from financial assets al amorised cost ks recognised using the effective Interest rate
method, Tha Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit kosses associated with the
financial assats atamortised cost. The iImpairment methodology appied depends on whather there has
been a significant increass in credin risk,

(gl Trade and Other Receivables

Tradae and ather recanvables are recogrised nitially at lair value and subsegusntly maaswred al amortised
cast, less provision for iImpasrment. The Group halds the trade and olhear recelvables with the objective 1o
caliect the contractual cash llows and inerefore measures them subsaquently a1 amonised cost using

the elfective interast method. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach in assessing expecled
credil lssas which wses a lifetime expectad loss aliowance for rade recehvables, Tha expacied credil
logses on trade recelvables are calculated using a provision matrix where a provision rate applies based on
s historical observed detaull rales adjusied by current and Torward-looking information.

Oiher receivables ame considerad (o be low risk, and tharalore ihe impaimeant provision is delarmined as
12 manths expected credit losses which cansidar curmant and forward-looking infarmation. The Impaiment
methodology applied depends on wheathat thare has been a significant incraasa in credil risk.

{h) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(i)

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shart-term highly
lquid imvestments with onginal maturities of thres months or less and bank cverdralis.

Goodwill

Goodwlll rephesants tha excess of the cost of an acquisithan over the lair value of the Group's ahare of

the niet identifiable assels of the acquined business al the date of acquisition. Goodwill on business
cambinathons is stated a5 8 separate osset. Separately recognised goodwill is tested anrually for
impaiment and camied at cost less accumuloted impairment losaas, Impairment losses on goadwill are nat
reversed Gains and losses on the dispesal of an entity Include the carrying amount of goodwill rokating 1o
the entity sold. Goodwill is allocated (o cosh-generating units for the purpose of impalment testing.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(il Unitholders' Funds as a Financial Liability

In accondance with the Trust Deed, Link is requined o distribute 10 Unithelders not less than 90% of the
Group's Total Distributable Income for aach financkl yoar. The tust also has a limited Bfa of BO yoars from
the date of establishment, Accordingly, the units contain contractual chligations of the trust 1o pay 1o s
Unitheiders cash distributions and also upan termination of the trust, a share of all net cash proceeds
cerved fram the sale or reslisation of the assels of the trust less any Rabilities, in accordance with thair
proportionate inlarests in the trust a1 the date of tha tarmination. Unithalders® funds ane therafors classifhed
as a financial liability rather than aquity in accordance with HKAS 32: Financial Instruments: Presantation,
Thiz liability is shown on the consaldated statement of inancial position as tha net assets attributable to
Unitholders. Distributions to Linithokders are recognisad in the consclidated income statemeant

(k) Trade Payables and Provisions
{y Trade Payables

Trade pavables are recognised initiafly at tair value and subsequently measured et amoriised cost using
tha eflective intarest mathod.

{li}y Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when thare is a presant legal or constructive obligation as a result of

past evenis, it Is probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settie the obligation and a
refiable estimata of the amount can be made. Where a provisian is expected to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separale assel bul only when the reimbursement Is virtually certain.

Prewvisions are measured at the presont value of the expenditures expecied to bo recuired 1o sottie
tha cbligation using a pre-tax rata that reflects curant marke! assessments of the tima valua of
manay and the risks specilic (o tha obligation, The increasa in the provision dua 1o passage of time is
racagnised as Inlorest axpanse,

() Leases

Lesases ama recognised as a right-ol-use assel and a corresponding liability 81 the date at which the leased
assat ks avalable for vea by the group, except for shart-term leases that have a lease tarm of 12 months or
less and leasas ol low-value assels. Assals and llabliities arising from a bease ane initially measured on a
prasent value basis. Leasa liabilites ara tha net present value of the fixed lease payments discounted using
the intarest rale implict in the lease and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The financa cost is charged ta the
consolidated income statemeant over he lease parlod 50 88 1o produce 2 constant panadic rate of interast
on the remalning balance of tha liabllity for each penod,

On the Group’s consolidated staterment of inancial positian, nght-ol-uss assel has bean included in
property, plant and eguipmant and lease liabilities have been included in accruals.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued

m

(m) Current and Deferred Taxation

The lax axpanse for the year comprises curent and dofermed tax. Tax s recognised in the consclidated
Incorme statomant, excopt 1o tho axtont that it relates to iterms recognised in othor comprahonshvo Income
or diractly in equity, In this case the tax is also recognised in other comarahansiva incoma or directly in
equity, respactivaly.

The current income tax change s calculated on the basks of the 1ax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date in tha countries where the Group’s subsidianes operate anc generate taxable income.
Managemeant perodically evaluates positions taken in tax refurns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax requiation is subject to intarpretation, It establishes provisions where appropriata on the
basks of amounts expected 1o be paid 1o the 1ax authorities.

Defarred taxation is provided in full, uging the llability method, on lemporary differences atising batwean
the tax bases of assats and liabilities and their carmying amounts in the conrsolidated financial slatements.
Deferred Laation is determined using 1@ @ies (and Ews) hal have been anacted of substantially snacted
by 1M reporting date and are expactad 1o apply whan the related deferiad 1ax assel is realised of the
dleferred tax liability [= settled,

Deterred tax assels are recognised 1o the axtent that i s probable that future taxable profit will be avallabie
against which the lemporary differences can be utilised,

Deferred taxation is provided on temparary differences arising on invesiments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporany differences is controlied by the Group and it is probabioe that the
termporary difersnces will not raverse in the lofesesable future,

Detarred taxaticn ansing from investment property is determined based on the expected mannar as 10 how
the Investrment propanies will be eecoverad (through sals e through usa) with the comrespondbng tax mta
applied

(n} Intarest Bearing Liabilities

Interast baaring kabilities are recognised Initiaily at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Interest
baaring liabllities are subsequantly stated al amoriised cost any difference between the proceeds (nat of
transaction cosis) and the recamplion value is recognised in the consolidatad incomea statement ovar the
penod of tha instrumant using the affective interest method.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued)
(o) Convertible Bonds

Comarible bonds with comvarsion right comprise a dorivalive componant and a liability componant.

At intial recognition the dervative component of The convartible bonds |s measured o fair valua. Amy
excess of the proceeds over the amount inltially recognised as the derivative component s recognised

ag the liability component. Transaction costs relating to 1he issue of the corvertible bonds are allocated

to the Habidlity and dervative components in proportion to the abliocation of proceeds. The portion of the
transaction costs ralating to the lisbility componant (s recognisad initially s part of tha Eability componant
and the portion redating to the denvative component is recognised immediately in the consolidated income
stalemeant.

The dervalive componant IS subsequantly remeasurad an fair vaiue, with changes in fair valua recognised
Immediately in the consolidated income statement. Tha liability componant |s subseguently measured

at amortisad cost. The inlerest axpanse recognisad in the consclidated income sialamant on the liabiity
component 1$ calculaled using the elfectve interest mathod

(p) Impairment of Non-financial Assets

(a)

Assals that are subject 10 depreciaiion and amonisation are reviewed by (the Group Tor impainment
whenever evants of changes in crocumsiances indicale (hal the carying amownt may nol be recoverable.
An impaimment less is recognised for tha amount by which the assol's canying amounl exceads i1s
recoverables amount The recoverable amount is the higher o an assal's fair value less costs o sell and
walue in use: Man-financial assels ather than goodwill that suffer impairmeant are reviewed Tor passible
reversal of the impairmen? at each reparting date.

Revenue Recognition
[} Rentals from Retail and Commercial Properties

Qperating lease rental income |5 recognised on a siraighi-line basis over the term of the lease
agreament. Cantingent rental income (representing incoma aver and above base ranl) such as furnover
rent, ks recognised according to the terms of the lesse agreements when the amount can be reliably
measured, in the accounting pariod inwhich it ks samed, Leass incentives proviced, such as rent-frea
periods, are amortised on a straight-line basls and are recognised as a reduction of rental Incomea over
the raspactive 1armof the lease.

(i) Rentals from Car Parks
Renta‘s from car parks are recognised as revenue onan accrual basis.
{lili Service Fees and Charges

Servica lees and charges such as alr conditioning income arising fram the provision of services are
recagnised over time when such services are renderad.

() Interest Income
Intarast NCome s recognised on a me-propoion bass using affective intenast method.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued

L |

(r)

(s)

Expenditure
Expenditures, including propony related outgoings and othor axpenses, and recognised on on accrual bagis,

Employee Benefits

Emploves bonefits such oo wages, salaries and bonusoes 050 recognised as on axpense whon the employes
has rendered the service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimaled liabilty for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employess up to the reporting
date. Empioyee entithements to sick leave and matarnity leave are not recognised until the time of leave,
The employver's contributions to the Mandatory Prowident Fund for employeses are expensed as incurred,

Employees' Long-term Incentive Schemes

Incentives in the form of a long-term iIncentve schemes are provided to eligible employeas (including
directors].

Emploves sericas rendered in exchange far the grant af the lang-term incantive schames awards ara
racognisad as an axpanse, with a comesponding increasa in the liability incurred, This expanss is changed
1o the consolidated income sialemeant over the vesting perlods. Lintil the liability |s settled, the value of
1he liadility is re-maasured a1 each reporing date and a1 the date of seTemant, with any changes in value
recagnisad in the consolidated incame statement for tha year, At each reporting date, estimates of the
murmiber of long-term incentive schermes ewards thal are expactaed (o vestwill be revised and the impact
ol the revision is recognised in the consolidated income statement. The camying value of the long-larm
incentive schemes awards is reviewed every six months and is independently valued by external valuer

at least annually. Il the awards da not vest an the vesting dates, the amounts charged to the consalidated
income statemant will ba wiitten back
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(u) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

A dervative is initally recogrised at far value on the dote a dervative contract is entered into and is
sibssquently re-maasured at its falr valuo, Tha mothod of recognising the resulting galn of loss deponds
con whethar the darivativa is designated as a hadging Instrumeant, and if 5o, tha nature of e item being
hadged

At the Inception of the hedging, the Group documents the economic relalionship between hedging
Instruments and hedged items, as wel a3 iis riek management objective and strategy for undartaking its
hedge transactions,

0]

]

Cosh Flow Hodgo

Hadging ralationships are classified az cashi flow hedges whan such relationships are used 1o hedga
against exposura o variability in cash flows that are atinbutable to & particular risk associated with a
recognized assat or ligbilty and such variability coule atfact profit or loss,

The changes in the fait value ol the elfective porlion of darivatives that are designed and quality
as cash How hadges a%e recognisad in other compranensive incomea and deferred in a cash MNow
hedging resarsa. The gain o loss relating to the inaffective porion is recognised immadiately in the
consclidated incorme Statemeant,

Amounts accumulated n hadging resenves are translamed 1o tha consolidated Ircome statemant in
the periods when the hadged item affects prolit or loss, However, whira Lhe hedged tam subsequeantly
results in the recognition of a non-financid assel or & non-financia! liability, the gains of losses
deferred In cash low hedging resane are ransherred rom hedging resenve and included within the
in‘tial cost of the asset or liability.

When a hedging Instrument expires, or ks sodd or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria far hedge accounting, any cumulative defered galn or loss and deferred costs of hedaging in the
cash flow hedging resarve at that time remains in hedging reserve until the forecast trensaction occurs,
resulting in the recognition of a non-financial asset such as inventory. When the forecast trensaction

Is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative geln or loss that was reporied in hedging resenve ams
immediataly reclassified to the consolidated income statement,

Fair Value Hedge

Derivatives designated as hedging instrumenis to hedge the fair value of recognised assets or
lishlkties may qualify as fair value hedges.

Th Group Uses interest rate Swap contfacts 1o hadge ia exposure Lo varability in fair values of
racognised liabilities agains! changes in markel interest rates,

Tha Group USes Cross CUMTancy swap contracts 1o hadge |18 exposure to vartability in fair vaiue of
recognised forelgn currancy liabliitles agalnst changes in foreign currency exchange rates and market
intarest rates: The changes in falr values of the cross cumency Swap contracts are recognised directly
In the consolidated Income statemant.

Changes in the falr values of thase darvalive contracts, together with the changes in the lalr valuas

of the hadgad liahilities atinbutabie tothe hadged risk are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as linance costs on infares! baaring Habilities, At the sama 1ime ihe camying amounts ol the
hedged liabilitias in the consolidated stalamsant of linancial position are adjusted for the changes in falr
values,
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued
{u} Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities (continued)

iv)

Met Investment Hedge

Hedges of net invesiments in foreign operaticns are accounted for similarly o cash llow hedges. Any
gain or loss on the hedging Instrument refating o the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in
other comprehensive Income and accumulated in resenves in equity, The gain or loss relaling to the
ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the consolidated income staterment.

Gains ard losses accurmulated in eguity are reciassilied 1o (he consolidated income statermant when
i loreign operation is disposod ol.

Derivatives That Do Not Quallfy for Hedge Accounting

Cedtain derivative (nstiuments do nat quality for hedge acoounting. Changes in the fais value of any
darivativa instrument that doas not quality for hedge accounting are recognised immediataty in the
consolidated income statemant,

Hedge ineffectiveness

Hedge efiectivenass is determined ai the inceplion of the hadge nelationshin, and throwgh periodic
prospective elfectivenass assessmeanis Lo ensure (hal an economic relalionship exists belween the
hedged ilem and hedging insinument.

Thia Group enlers o kedge relationships whens the critical teims of the hedglng Instrumeant mateh
exactly with the terms of the hedged item. The Group tharelone performs a qualitative assessmeant of
effectivenass. Il ehanges In ciicumstances alfect the terms of the hedged itam such that the critical
18rms na langer match exactly with the critical terms of the hedging Instrument, the Group uses the
hypothetlcal derlvative methed to assess offectiveness.

In hedges of foreign currency purchases, ineffectivenass may arise if the liming of the fomecast
transaction changes from what was originally estimated, or if thera ara changes in tha credit rigk of tha
darivativa counterparty.

{v] Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly altnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assels,
which are assels thal necassarily take a substantial period of tima o get ready for thair intlended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, unidl such time as the assats are substantially ready for thair
intendad use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognisad in the consolidated income statameant in the
period in which they are incurred.

4 Financial Risk Management
(a) Financial Risk Factors

The Group's aclivities expose it 1o a varaty ol linancial risks: marked risk (including inlerest rata nsk and
currency risk], credit risk and Bouidity risk.

Rizk management is cared out by the Manager. The Group's overall risk management programme locuses
on the unpredictabity of financial marke:s and seeks (o menimise polential adverse affects on the Group’s
fimancial performance. The Group uses derlvailve financial instruments such as interest rate swap coniracis
ang cross currency swap contracts 1o manage financial riss.
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4 Financial Risk Management (continued)
(a) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
[ Market Rizk

14} Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed 1o interast rate sk through the impact of rate changes in intarest baaring
liablities and assets. Tha rizsks can ba saparated into cash tlow interest raie rsk and fair vakie
Interest rate risk,

Cash fiow Interest rale risk |s the risk that changes In market Interest rates will Impact cash fiows
arising from variable rate financial instruments. Borrowings at floating rates therefore expose
the Group 1o cash flow interest rate risk. The Group manages Its cash flow inlerest rate risk by
using Noating-1o-Tixed inerest rale swap coniracts. Such interest rate swap contracis have the
economic edfect of converting bomowings from fioating rates (o fixed rates.

Falr valu® [filefast rate sk is the risk that the valies of linancial llabilities will fluctuate bacause of
changes in markel interest ratles, The Group manages its fair value interest rate risk by entering
into interest rate swap contracts which have tha sconomic allect of converting borrowings lrom
fixed rates o floatirg rates,

The effecis of the intercst rate swaps on the Group's financial position and performmancs e os

follows:
2020
HEE'
Camying amount — nssaisliabiinies) ED 16491
Matianal ameount 9,054 5,400
Maturily dose October 2023 - August 00 -
March 2030 Lanch 030
Hadge ratic 1 8]
Change i lak vaiue of oustanding hedging sinemenls
since beginring of year &1 [42)
Changs in value of hedped tem used 1o detarming
Fesdge eflectivaness 1) 42
Weighled average hedges mie for tha year 0.77% D8

As gt 31 March 2021, il inferes! rates on oating rate interes! bearing labilitles net of oating

rate Interest bearing assets had been 100 basis points higherlower with all other variablas held
constant, profit for the year, before transactions with Unitholders, would have been HKS101 million
lowerhigher [2020: loss for the year, before transaciions with Unitholders, would have been
HKETT million higherfiower), mainly as a result of higharlower intarest expenss on ficating rate
borrowings, Asat 31 March 2021, If interest rates had been 100 basis points higherfower, the
hedging reserve would have been HKEITT million £ HKE401 million (2020; HKS54 million £ HKSE0
million) higherfiowsr mainly as a result of an increasa/dacreassa in the fair values of the cash flow
hedges as described above.

Armuml Baport 200200031 | 7
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4 Financial Risk Management (continued

(a) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
(il Market Risk (Continued)

8] Currency Risk

Currancy nsk ansas on account of moneiary assats and llabllites dencminatad in a currancy that is
nat e Tunctional curmamncy,

Az at 31 March 2021, the Group has ceraln investments in Malnland China, Australiz and United
Kingdom [2020: Mainland Ching), whose net asseis are exposed (o forelgn cummency translation
ris4, This gave rise 1o an aggregated unreslised gain of approsimately HKS2,099 milllon (2020;
HEE1,6687 million loss) on iransiation of these cperations’ net agsets (o the Group's Hong Kong
Daltar reporting currency, which s rellected as a movement in resendes under the heading of
exchange resemve.

Alter Laking accounts tha Gross cuffency Swap conlracts, the Group linances the irvestmants in
Australia and United Kingdom by bank borrowings denominated in Australian Dollars and British
Peund Starling respactivaly, and theraby establishing a natural Redge against any lofalgn cumency
ris® arising from assels and liabilties denominated in Australion Dollars and British Pound Starlng.

The Group has desgnated cortain Britlsh Pound Stering bank borowings as hodging Instruments
for the changes in 1he value of tha net Investmenis In United Kingdom attributable 1o changes

in tha HKS/GBP spol rate. The carnying amount of the Britizh Pound Starling bank bormowings
designated as hedging Instruments at 31 March 2021 was HKEL10B million (2020: NH). The hedge
was determined (o be fully effectve as the carmying value of the hedged item did not drop below
the carrying ameunt of the hedging Instrument throughout the hedging peried. A foreign exchange
{oss of HKS50 million (2020: Mil) was recognised in the Group's other comprehensive income

for tha year on transiation of the British Pound Sierling bank borrowings to Hong Kong doltars,
Manzsgemeant considers that thers s no significant et cumancy risk exposune with respect to
Australian Dallars and British Pound Sterling

As al 31 March 2021, the Group has certain medism term nolas and financial assets at amartised
cost (2020: cortain madium term noles and linancial assals at amortised cost) denominated

in United States Dollars, The Group uses Cross cUtrancy swap contacts (o hedge its axposure
against changes in lonaign axchange rale on 1S mediom erm notes: Since Hong Kong Dollars s
pegaed to the United States Dallars, managament considers That there is no significant currency
risk with respect 1o linancial assals at amorised cosl

(E]'] I Livd Rial Eatano brvedtmmant Troml
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4 Financial Risk Management (continued)
(a) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
(h  Market Rizk (Cantinued)

(B Currency Riek [Continued)

As-at 31 March 2021, the Hong Kong Dollars equvalant of Uinited States Dollass madium term
notes stands at HKEY 859 millon [2020: HKE? 918 million). The effects of the cross cumency swap
contracts on tha Group’s iinancial posiion and parformance are as follows:

2020
HEE'M

Canrying mmount = assels as v

Hatianal ameount T80T 153

Barturily dube Seplomber 2024 - Sapambear 2024 -

July 2026 by 2026

Hadpe matio [H] El
Change in lak value ol outstanding hodging inainemaents

sinoe Deginreng of year 13 2T

Change in value of hedged bem used 1o determine
hedge effectiveness {73) 477

‘Weightod average hedgec mie lor the year 238% 23T

il Credit Risk

Credit dzk angses from the potential failene of the Group's counterparties 1o meat their obligations undear
financial contracts. The Group is exposad to credi tisk on iis cash and cash equivalants and deposits
with banks and linancial institutions, financial assets at amonised cost, derivative linancial instruments
as wall a3 trade receivables.

Cradit risk iz managed on a group basis, The Group manages Its deposits with banks and financial
institutions by limiting the level of deposits to be placed with ony countarperties. Deposits ploced with
any Individual countenpanty cannot excead a pre-defined limit assigned 1o the indvidual counterparty. As
at 31 March 2021, all bank daposits ware placed with financial instilutions with external credit ratings of
no less than "BBE".

For linancial assets at amortisad cost, the Manager closely manitars the financial performance of

the issuers and their credit ratings 1o ensure that adequale impairment bosses are recognisad for
irrecoverable debls. As a1 31 March 2021, all the linancial assels at amortised cost held have external
credit ratings of na lass than "BEB-", In this regard, tha Manager considars thal the Group's credit risk is
lowws.

Armuml Bapo 20200071 | 18
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4 Financial Risk Management continued
(a) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

i)

Credit Risk [Continued)

In respect of credit exposures ko tenants, which includes trade recelvables and certzln tenant-related
other receivables, credit risk exposure s minimised by undertaking transactions with a large number
of counterparties and conducting credit reviews on prospective tenants, The Group also has policies
In place 1o ansure that rental security deposits of bank guarantees equivalent 1o 2 1o 3 months rentals
are requifed from 1enants paor 1o commeancameant of laases. |1 also has other moniionng procedunes to
ensura that follow-up action is taken 1o recover overdue debts. Accordingly, management considered
that the axpecied credit 1555 on a collective basis is close 10 2are. In addition, the managameanl
regularly raviews the recoverable amount of sach long overdus trade receivable on an individual basis
16 ensure that adaguale provision lor impairmant losses s made for potentially Irecoverable amounts
which uses a [iatime axpacted loss allowance for trade receivables, The Group has also incorporated
tonward-looking infermation which takes into accaunt the macnoeconomic Ias10rs in astimating the
expected credil loss. The Group has no signilicant concantrations of credit ek

Thie masamum exposura 1o credit risk is representad by the carnying amount of aach financial assol

Im the consolidated staternant of financial position after dedwcting any iImpalmant allewance. The
Group's exposurae to cradit risk ansing from financial assets at amortised cost amounted (o HK$2 742
mallion (2020: HKE2,746 milllon) and is sat out In Note 17, The Group's exposure (o credit rsk ansing
trom trade receivables amounted 1o HES253 million 2020: K210 million) and 1S sat out in Naote 18,
The Group's exposune 1o credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents amounied to HK$2,530
mdlllon (2020; HKET 877 milon) and Is set out in Note 19, The Group’s exposure (o credit risk anising
trom derivative financial Instrumants amounted to HKS218 million (2020: HK$231 millien) and is set out
Im Wote 25.

Liguidity Risk

Prudant liguidity fisk managemant includes maintaining sufticient cash and tha avallability of funding
from committed credit facillfies and oparating cash fow,

The Group nas cash and cash equivalents of HKE2,530 million (2020 HKET 87T milllon) a5 at 31 March
2021, In addition to the cash resources, the Group hes total avallable borrowing facllities amounting to
HES48 5ET million (2020: HES42 806 milllon), of which HK238 611 milllon (2020; HKS34 585 million)
was drawn 85 3t 31 March 2021, The undrawn committed facilities, in the form of bank loans, lotalled
HEED.976 milllon (2020, HKEB 30T milion) &s at 31 March 2021,

(e I Livd Rial Eatano brvedtmmant Troml
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4 Financial Risk Management (continued)
{a) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

Iy Liguidity Risk (Continuad)

The table below anslyses tha Group's lirancial Babilites into relevant matuity groupings based on the
remaining pericd at the reporting date fo the contraciual maturity dates, The amounis disclosed in the
table are the expected contractual undiscounted cash flows which comprise both interest and principal

cash flows.

Lisss than
Al 31 March 2021
Trade paynbles ond oconinis 2.0 2 =
Darreatve linancial instruments {nat setiled) T B 1o -
SEcuily deposts a6Zr 800 554 108
Carvertible bards B4 B4 4,065 -
Inferest bearing Rabdites ama 37 2,47 B.300
Amicird du bo foh-tanlioing nhames = o 02 - -
Marn—contralling imanast put option obigation - 34 - -
Linitiwsidara’ hunds - - - 158,720

At 31 March 2020

Trade payables and accrnuals 2328 2 - -
Dol linans sl Instniments (fal asttied 16 24 T 26
Spcutity deposits GAE 43 G35 4
Comanible bords &4 B4 &128 2
Imtirast bearing Ratulites 7.028 3307 13,257 1,082
Amowmi dusa b non=cormming niares = 3058 = =
Ran-conralling imaness put opoen chlgaton - T = =
Restenion amount lor scguadion of @

BusinEEs TIO = - :
Unitholdars' funds - - - L]

Aremml Raport 202002001 | @

3007437



—_— e

4

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

rrimracs, (hsckmnres ol Fnoncis! Siabemmiees | ot o m Cormod daied Finencisl Staismsmis

Financial Risk Management continued

(b) Capital Management
The Group's objectives whan managing capital ane to safeguard the Group's ability 1o continue as a going
cancem whilst seeking 1o maximisoe oenafits 1o Unithaldors.

The Group moniters capital on a regular basls and cbserves the REIT Code's maximum gearing rato of
50%a (2020; 45%). This ratio Is calculaled as total borrowings (interest baaring liablities and convertible
bonds) divided by iolal asset value as shown In the consolidated siatement of financial position.

2020

HEEM

Total Berowings 34,598
Total assal vales 200,885 207 618
Gepring i AT BT

(c) Fair Value Estimation

{l) Falr Value Hierarchy

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure of Tair value measurament by three levels of lair value measurement
hierarchy. The following table prasents the Group's assets and liabilitles that are maasured at falr
value:

Lewal 1: Quoted prices (unacjustad) in active markets for kentical assels of labilithes.

Lewal 2: Inpuls other than quoted prices included within Lavel 1 that are observable for the assel or
liahility, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, darived from prices).

Leval 3 Imputs for the assatl or [ability that ane not based on obsanable market data {that is,

urobsenable Inputs).

A1 31 Mareh 2021

Anmpin

Invasimant propertios - - 166,074 M 074
Detivative firmncaal instruments - 28 - Ha
Total masets - Ha 189 074 196 252
LsalaStas

Diashvatne Bnncal nstrumsnis - ] - Pt
Momn-cortioling intesest put option obiigation - - H0at 204
Total liabikies - [Fa] 204 333

Livd Rial Eatano brvedtmmant Troml
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4 Financial Risk Management (continued)

(c) FairValue Estimation [Continued)

(n

(i

Falr Value Hierarchy (Continued)

Lovonl | Lamnd 3 Lovval 3 Total
HESW HEENM HEEM HEE'M
At 31 March 2020
Assatn
Imvestment properass = = g2 193,224
Darreative linarcid instrumants = 231 - 3
Tenal assecs - s || 3,224 183,455
|ishilitan
Darivatyva linancid instiuments - BB - aA
Nan-contmiling imanast put opton obigation - = 530 _ 530
Total Eakabtins = HBE B30 618

Thers were no ransfers between these three levals during the yesar (2020 Ml

Tha Group's policy is [o recognise Wransfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of
the event of change in clicumstances that caused the translar.

Fair Value Disclosure

The carrying values less impairment provision of trade recaivables and the carmying values of trade
payabiles, accruals, bank deposits and interest bearng Babilities 1hat are expected 1o be recavered
of settied within one year are a reasonable appraximation of thair fair values dua to thelr shon-larm
faturites,

The 1air values of inlerest bearing kabilities, llabifity component of convertible bonds and accruals, that
are expected io be setiled afier one year are based on market prices or are estimated by using the
expected future payments discounted at market interest ratas,

Armuml Bapert 200200001 | 23
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5 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

24 |

Tha preparation of the consolidated fimancial statements in conlormity with HEKFRSs raquires the use of certain
ctitical accounting estimates. [t also requiras the Manager 1o exercisa its judgament in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies,

Estimates and jucgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experence and othar faciors,
Including expectations of future evenis that are belleved to be reasenable under the clreumsiances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concaming the futura, The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the relalad actual resulls. The estimates and assumplions that have a significant

risk of causing a material adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets and fiabillities within the next year are

discussed balow.

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Investment Properties

The falr value of each investment property is Individually determined at sach reporting date by independant
valuer basad on a markel value assessment, The valuars have ralied on the Income capitalisation approach
a= thalr primaty mathad, cross-raferanced o the direct comparison approach where applicable. Details of
1he valuation techndques and assumplions have bean disciosed in Note 15.

Financial Instruments

In estimating the fair value of its linancial instrumants, the Group uses valuation techniguas such as
dealer quotes and discountea cash Rows. The Group atso makes assurmnplions that are based on market
canditions axisting al each reporting date.

Long-term Incentive Schemes Valuation

The value of awards granted is estimated based on valuation technigues and assumptions an unit

prices, nutstanding length of the awards, distribution pay-out ratas and athar market canditions, which
managemant considers as representing the bast estimate of the value of the liability for such awards at the
raparting date. The carrying valua of the long-term incantive schames awards is reviewad every six months
ant |s independantly valued by external valuer af least annually,

Mon-controlling Interest Put Option Obligation

Tha tair value of the non-controling interast put oplion obligation 18 determined at each reporting date by
independent valuer based on a market value assessmant. The valuer has used discounted cash fiow as the
valuation tachnique. The valuation is baged on varous assumptions, Including the estimated fair value of
1he equity interests of the non-wholly owned subsidiany at the expected time of exercise of the put option,
the axpected lima of exercise jtsell, tha cash llow and the discount rate used. Detads of tha vabuation
technigue and assumptions have been disclosed in Note 22,

Livd Rial Eatano brvedtmmant Troml
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Revenue
Revenue recognisad during the year comprises:

Fangmss

« Hong Kong rotail propostoes

= Hong Kong car parks

- Masnland Chira rotall proportios

= Hang Kong, Masnland China and oversoas ollices
Othor imvonua (Mola)

Total navisnus

2020

HEE'M

6,168 6,288
1.583 L#12
B50 par
e 440
1,074 1580
pLeiE w0ore

Mt Dghar svs rese inclucles manngemar 1ses, i condioning serdcs lese, promodon ledes and miccelianscus: wanug, Managemant e

hvan b resciassitied from rental o olber revenue, comoarative figures have besn restaled

Leases with tenants provide for monthly base rant and recovery of cerain oulgoings. Additional rents based
on business urmover amounted to HEKSEE million (2020: HEEN4 milllon) and have been inciuded in the rental

Imcome.

304/437

Armuml Bapert 200200001 | 35



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

_— Girvarrniaras, sckmres ol Fnoncis! Siabemmiees | ot bo Em Cormod daisd Finemcisl Staismsms

7 Segment Information

Far tha yoar anded 31 March 2021
Aeanume E800 1.683 LG 41 LT
Segrment reiuts 5228 L&ag 741 260 TEM
Chimge i tae values of imestmant _

peopeting and impairment of poodwil {3554) ) (161 1334) {5323
Irfareat meome 26
Financs costs {70y
Profit beloms taxation and fransactons

with Liniholdars 1544
Taation oazy
Profit bar 1he yoor, beldin transaciions

wilh Linitholders 752
Captial expersdtuie B2 B0 5 7308 B30
Depieciation - - (] (90 it}
Az a1 31 Marek 2071
Segment assalz 126,506 31,528 20,870 26,183 204 003
Goochvwill 2
Findnciol sesobs af amoitasd oo 2742
Dieervative fnancal imtrumants a8
Cash and canh equivalonis 2530
Total assets 205 885
Begrmani labiliss 2468 i 581 1,085 4093
Dhsbamad 1850 habiles 3029
Long=Bam incanthn schames provson azr
Chibaiet btz 4,018
Intareat bonfing liaklities 34604
Comtible bonds 4,002
Diestrvative rancal Fmtrumants ']
Prowision Iee fniitian a7
Tl listwities; s uding rel assets

aftributabila o Uinitholdess 5,602
Moi-cormroling knenes Py
Hat assets aitibutable ko Unitholdars 1SET20

Far the year endad 31 March 202, ravenue of HK$1.357 million [2020: HK$1448 million) is attributable to
extamal customars from Mainkznd China, HESE9,006 million (2020: HES9,.200 millkon) s antrbutable to extemal
cusicmers from Hong Kong, and HES371 million (2020: Nil) is attributable to extemal custamears from overseas,

Azt 31 March 2021, investment propenies, propey, plant and equipmant, and goodwill amounting 1o
HESZT, 288 millign (2020: HKS25,474 million) are located in Mainkand China, HES165,422 millign (2020:
HE$168,563 million) are located In Hong Kong and HKSE, 057 milllan (2020: Nl ase located In cvarseas.

136 | Lk foad Extano bresstmeant Tros)
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7 Segment Information (continue)

Hong Kong Mainland
redail Horg Kong China recall
preshmes cas porks ropaities Crhars Total
HEE™M HESM HESM HEE™ HEEM
For the yesr ended 31 March 2020
Rirveniug T2 181 i ATH 10,7
Sagrment maulls 5576 1469 ] 0] T.B0a
Chargs in far valuas of invesimant
proparties {7261 14,048 1804 (Loan 3848
Inteeast incaima 153
Finance coats (=]
Livas Before laxatien sl [Pl petiofa
with Ustholders 16,581
Taxatan (rped]
Loms Jor the yeer, belone vansactions with
LUnitkoidan: (730
Capital axpanditsn Gam 7 wr E06 1B0E
[agenciation = = i a4y 51
s 5t 31 Merch 2020
Begmont nseats 128,337 3LEDN BATE 6,728 188,34
Goodwill a4
Finahcisl aesels ol aroised cosl 2746
Dacval e Snancial instaimesnts 23
Caah anc caah oguivaienia TETT
Totsl assain 20761
Sagrrant kabilties 394 142 69k 1.250 442
Desfieerrend Ra bl ies 287
Lang-tesm incentia schomes povision 28
Drthar liatsities S0
Inteeesl besring Rablmees 305664
Corwaritls bonds 2810
Deaenvarthve Arancinl ingbeumets B
Paowizion lor tmabon i
Total ksbities, excluding nat assats
nitrimitabde fo Lnkhokders 4Thn
Tcen-confroll e (roerest A0
Nl assets ativbuinble 1o Ursthoideis. L]
Anrunl Raport 20000300 | 137
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124 |

Property Operating Expenses
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s
HEEM
IF'mp-unymmam‘ faes, sacuinty and clearing . G50 i1
Srall coats 443 =i
Rapai pnd mainenance a5 M
Litidies 281 T
Gawsinmant fan and rabes I3 i} s |
Promction mnd rumseEng sipenses 188 132
Estae common anea cosis (21 B3
Piral sstats tanoes a0 e ues lmass a9 =2
Gther property opemiing axpensos 4 xa
2,508 2458

Finance Costs
-
HES'M
Intarest axpenses on intasest beating labilties T35 B3
Interest axpenaen an convenible bands (Mota 24) 125 125
Cahar bomowing cosls [(Note 11 a2 B2
LOE1 LR
Less: captalasd wnde imestment propaedss (Note i) {7 1]
064 1047
Changa in fair values of darvative component of comveribla bonds [Nota 24) 32 [Ha5)
Fair valus gain on non-controlling inbenest put option obligation iNote 2.2 (35) [2E0)
o 630

b

1} Cehar bomowing costs. mainly nchade HKEGE million (0020 HKSNE milion) nenes! expenses ho non-controling indanest, HEEST million net
Iospars (2020 HEEAE milion el gans) on mores! rEe swep conbings desgnated a5 cash low nedges, HICKS millon net gaine 2020
HEELT millon nat Iosest) on citss curency, swap confracts ord irtenes] e swap conlrac s desigrabed as {oif vales hedges and milous

trarking ord inncing chages

il bleresal expanges e boin CEpTMmed Wnder Frediment propares B overngs infele st rebe of 2 0% 2030: 3 394} par annum
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10 Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation and Transactions With Unitholders

Profit/{loss) before taxatlon and transactions with Unitholders for the year is slated afar charging/{crediting).

2020
HES'M

Stalf costs [Note 1) 1] 589
Depraciatan of pioparty, plan and equipment ol 75
Trustoa's foa 15 el
Veluaton les & i

Audeot's memunaralion

Audit and sudit-relaind ossrance sonvicos n 4]
Angesiion ealed profesaiong leas 3 2
Oahare 1 |
Professional lees capitalised undar investment popseries (E]] -
Bank changss B 5]
Commission to propary sgents 20 10
Daonationa 1L 14
Exchangs losaf g on fnanceal sl umsnis 7o [=10]
Shorl-tesm lease expanses & 13
Other lagal and prolessional lses T 3

11 Staff Costs

2020
HES'M

Wages and salares Toe T8
Contributions o mandastory peovident lund schamse (Note (1 u W
L= Be T | Sl i S Pbeitas nwairds 1 25

736 el
Lesds: captalised undor immastment propsnles ] {73
Stall costs {Mota 10} B9 B89
Maotec

¥ The Groug operales @ pantion sohems - Mandatory Provident Furnd. Thi schemss @ o detned contritution plan furded thiaugh paymands ia
Srustes-adminsiened funds. & dedined cortribution plan is & persion plan under witich Bhr smployor pays fived contributions inio o sepanrhe
@nlity (@ fundl. The Groug haa na hariber paymmont cbigations ono The contritutions have bean paid
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12 Taxation

Hang Kang profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessabls
profit tor the yaar. Incama taxes in Mainfand China and ovarseas have bean provided lor al tha applicable rala
on the estimated assessable pralit ‘or the year.

The amount of taxation chargedicredited) to the consolidated income stateément raprasenis:

2020
HEE'M

Current faxation

- Hong Kang as aid
= Mairizhd Clens e 74
D taatian a2 [are)
Tanatian 1,092 a2

The differances batween the Group's expected 18x chamge, using the Hong Kong profits ax rate, and tha

Group's taxation for (he year were as follows:
2020
HESM

ProlitMoss) belone taxation and trensactions with Untholdesns 1844 [(E5an
Expected tnd caloulsied a2 the Hong Kong prolits tax mbe of 16.5% (2020 16.5%) an4 2|y
Tax wlfec! of diffesent taxation rales 58 (B
Tan ellec! of non-deductible sxpanses Bo0 A554
Tani alte] ol non=laxkable ncorma {B4) [t 7]
T alie) ol othar tempormey diferences %) (5
Utik=atian of preaiaushy uniscogrised tax kes 3 aj
Wilhhalding tax on unmmitted samings of subsidiaries [P} Xl
Tavailan 1,062 2

On 18 March 2021, the Group receved & prolective additional tex assessment for the year of assessment
2004015 from Hong Kong's Inland Revenue Department (IRD") amounting to HK$345 million, Such additional
profits 1ax assessment was made on the gain in respect of the disposal of properties and |5 additional to the
profits tax assessment already made by IRD on profits denved from s business during the assessment pariod.

Based on tha pralessional opinion and advice of the legal and tax advisars, the Group believes that there |5 no
graund 10 the assassment and has lodged an objection 1o IRD on the basis that prodits tax shall not be charged
on the profits dertved Irom the sales of the properties, which sales were capital rather than trading In rature,
Accoedingly, no 12x provision was made in respect of this protective assessment. Accarding 1o the instruction of
the IRD, tax resene cerificates amounting to HE$1TZ million were purchased on 10 May 2021 as a candlithon far
the tax payabie holdover arrangemant.
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13 Earnings/(Loss) Per Unit Based Upon Profit/(Loss) for the Year, Before
Transactions With Unitholders Attributable to Unitholders

] o

Profitlcsa) far 1he yeor, bedons trensacticns with Unitboidess altributable 1o

Unllhodders HEEL185 rlllian [HESTT, K22 millkae)
Weighted svarmge rumber ol units far the year for caloulating basic and

dilused eamingsfless) pes unt 2,066 800.618 2086 2441049
Baskc and diluted samings/{ices) pes unit HES0.57 [HESH 1T}

The basic and diluted eamings/loss) per unit are the same as the converible bongs have an ant-diluthe elfect
on the basic earnings/loss) per undl for the vears ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

14 Goodwill
2020
HEE'M
& 1 April 41
Exchange adustments " {8
Impdermisnt (&} -
A1 31 March 392 A4

During the year ended 31 March 2021, impaimment losses af HKSAE million (2020: Nif) an goodwlll were chamged
12 the consolidated Income stalement resulting from changes in the market environment for the undetiying
businessas,

Armuml Bapor 20200011 | ™
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15 Investment Properties
(a) Details of the Movements of Investment Properties are as follows:

Property mnder

devalopment
HES'M
AL Apnl 2020
Exchange adustmants [Mote (o
Addiions
Mesgaibition ol assols [Mate 304
Change in kir vakees 15.278) - (5.278)
AL 31 March 2000 e Ora - LR
A2 1 April 2000 207048 10548 2105
Exchange adustments e . (k]
Ao e 029 (=2 1583
Vrarsier to Eopaty, plarm and eguipmant = 1ALl A1)
Trarsler to complated propertes =l 1] [o=R=t o] -
Changa in kairvakmes i Ll - .8
£ 30 Manzh 3020 G = 190 g
(b) Valuation Process

Thie Investrment properties were revalued on a market value basis as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021
by Colligrs Intemational (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Principal Valuer®), an independent firm of professional
gualified valuers and the Principal Valuer of Link.

The Manager hald discussions with the Principal Valuer and reviewed all significant inpuls usad by the
Principal Valuwer. Discussions of the valuation processes and resuts at each reporting date ane hesd
batweaen the Managar and the Principal Valuer.

Valuation Technigues

The Principal Valuer has relied an the ncome capitalisation approach as the primary approach with cross-
raferance o the direct comparison approach,

(c

—

The income capliafisation approach &= based on the capitalsation of the curmant passing rental Income and
potential ravarsionary Incomee of the proparty from the date of valuation at appropriate rvesimant yiesds to
arrive at the capital value. The appropriate adjustments/deductions for rent-free period, ongoing vacancy
volds/marketing periods and non-recoverabla expenses fof (e vacant space have Dean allowed,
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15 Investment Properties (continued)

fe)

(d)

(e)

Valuation Techniques (Continued)
The valuation technique is summarsed in the below oke with ts significant unobSensablo inpuls:

Eu;l'ulhr.:ln: unobeervable inpuls = 0 mar vidhea

Income capitalsntion apprasch

Cormplsted propenies - natail and I} Captalisaion e [Hhended Thea hoghes the capialsation e,
cornmarcial propanes and car parks 0% - 5249 (2000 2 0FW - 5.50%) 1 erveir 1ha Tair vaiuie.
i} Mat passing InCoume per anmuIm The hoghes tha net passing
HEEDTIM - HEEIGI S ncome, the highar the fair
{2020 HRE0 8 = HIKEIG1BM) vakig

The Investment properiies are Included in Leved 3 (2020; Level 3) of the fair value hierarchy.

Restrictions under the REIT Code

Link acquired 77 Hol Bun Rosd in Kowloon East for commercial devalopment, 100 Market Street in Sydney
and The Cabot in London, the completions of which were on 23 February 2015, 7 April 2020 and 25 August
2030 respectively, while the commercial development at 77 Hol Bun Road, now known 8s The Quayside,
was compieled in May 20190 In accordance with the REIT Code, Link is prohibited from disposing of its
propertias for at least two years from either the time such properties are acquired or the dates of the
completion of tha development of the properties, unless the Unitholders approved the proposed disposal
by way of special resolution passed i accordance with the Trust Deed,

Exchange Adjustments

The exchange gain on translation s attributable to the Group's investmant propanias in Mainkand China,
Australia and United Kingdom amounting 10 HKS2,063 milbon, HESB01 milion and HESIEO milllon
respeciively. Thesa amounis ara included in exchangea resarva. Tha amoun! was partly offset by hadging
linancial instnuments.

Security for the Group's Loan Facilities

As ar 31 March 2021, cartain of the Group®s imesiment proparties In Mainland China and Ausiralia,
amounting (o approximately HE$3,005 milllion (2020; HKS10,026 million] and HEKS4,038 milllcn (2020; M)
respactivesy, wera pledged 10 secure the Group's [can lacilities tolaling HK$3,418 million (2020 HKS2.177
rmilllican).
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Az Apri ZD.'-!D- 126 1389
Acteditmars @ - 15 24
Dsposals 14p - im Fal]
Depeciation chame for the year {54} 15 i 1) ®1)
Al 31 March 2021 1,208 F 1 03 1,301
it 31 March 2001
Cost L3321 ] T 182 L5328
Accumuialod doprocalon [ Fi | (&) () (228}
Mal book valup 1,208 2 1 93 1.3m
Av1 Aprd 2019 1 2 A ]
Addditiors [ i) 1 5 235
Tramzlar IRCem s atma

O pEfies |1 - - LiG
Dhsprasals i (14} 15}
Depeecintion chaege for the year 40y ] in (32} 5}
A 31 March 2020 254 T 2 26 1
A2 31 March 2020
Carsl 136 | T £ L5445
Accumulaiod daprecalon e (¥ (4] {87 [F=]
Mat bogk value 1154 T 2 26 13655
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17 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Fenanclal assets at amonised cost include the lollowing dabt investiments:

20

HES'M

Listed compomia bonds 26
Uit eoiporale b nds a0
2742 2748

During the year, the Group has interest income arsing from financial assels at amartised cost smounting to
HES0E million (2020; HKEES millionk. The carmying amounts of the inancial assets at amortised cosi are expected

I ba recovered ag below:
HEEM
= Wil Fun one yer 432
= Affor one year 2310 2,740
2742 a0

18 Trade and Other Receivables

2020
HEE'M
a0

'I-'mch recodablas 2ra
Loes: pronision for knpaimmant of trode moovablos 16T (&)
Trade recenmablas — rat 253 210
Othar mmcahables Baz Lo

1185 LEN

The casying amounis of these receivables approxmate their fair values and are expacied to be mosily
recovecad within one year.

There are no specific credit terma given 1o the tenants, Tha ret trade receivabilas are mostly coverad by tha
rental depogita/bank guaranteas from corresponding tenanis,

Arruml Rapon 202003011 | 136
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18 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Tha ageing ol trade recetvables, presentad based on the due date, I= as lollows:

2020
HES M

030 days 18 m\r
31-80 dws w B8
Crvar 50 doys 62 i

320 o

Monthly rentals in respect of retal and commerckal proper ies ane payabla in advance by 1Bnants in accondancea
with 1he leases while dally gross receipts from car parks are received Trom e car park oparators in amears.
Inciudad in the met trade recelvabies of HKE253 million (2020. HKE210 millkon) presented 2bove were HKE40
milllion (2020; HKE52 milllon) of sccrued car park income and HKS19 miflion (2020: HK$S miilon) of accrued
turnover rent, which were not yel due as at 31 March 2021.

KMovements on tha provision for Impairment of trads receivables are as loliows:

=

HES'M HECEM

A% 1 Apri 60 (i ]
Proveson lor smpairment ol trade recenablas 14 55
Recanables wrtton of during the yeor ne uncoBectible m 1]
Exchange adjusimants 4 -
AL 31 March BT Lilh]

The creation and refease of provision for impalmment of irade recelvables have been included In property
operaling expensas in the consodidated income statement. Amounts charged (o the provision accouns will be
written off when there is no expeciation of recovering additional cash.

The cther classes of recelvablas included in tha trade and other recehsablas do nol contaln Impaired assets
sinca tha axpaciad cradit loss of the olher recabables Is closo to Zaro.

Tha maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of trade receivables.

19 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2020
HEEM
Cagh at bank “l:i\,.'J-I-"
Bank daposis with original matunty of less than thes months 549 1,560
2530 T.aT
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20 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred taxation ks calculated in full on temporany differences undear the liabllity method
Analysis of met defered 1ax liabllines as tollows:

2020

HEEM

Dletasrod tax assmis [{Fe ] (&)
D] L Hakule s 3,202 2.0868
3029 28T

Deferred tax asgats and kabilities are expected 1o be recoverable and seftled after one year,
The movemants in delerred tax assats and Eabilities during the year wera a5 lollows:

|rrvarstime proper e
alwaticn and

ratod

Others

HES'M
Al | Apnl 2020 an
Exchange adpastmants 1£ 2 258
Recognised in the corsoldated noome statamant Fike [1-rd] E
#1301 March 2021 3,08 [l=1:1} ERiF]
Al 1 Apil ZO0HE 3204 (13 358
Exchangs adustments {38) 1] [d)
Recognised m the corsolidated nooma stolemant (38T} fl &7
Ab 30 Mareh 2020 2ErS i ] 287
Aol Rapom 202002071 Ear
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21 Long-term Incentive Schemes Provision

2020
HEEM

Leng-1anmi incanmtyne Schames Do isnn

— B e 10 e il it For oy 35 Bl
= gxpercied 10 be setled after one year a7 55
B2 135

Cn %0 Juby 2007, Link adopted a new lang-tarm incentive scheme (the “2017 LTI Scheme™). Under the 2017 LTI
Scheme, the Manager may grant resincted unit awards and conditional cash awasds to directors of the Manager
and key emplovess of the Group.

During 1he yaar, cartain directors and employesas of the Manager weara granted rasiricted unit awards and
conditional cash awards at nll monetary consideration under the 2007 LTI Scheme. The restricted unit swards
granted under tha 201 LTI Schama, in ganarad, will vest approximately two 1o threa years fram the date of
grant, Under the 2017 LTI Scheme, units will be purchased in the grantees’ favour from open stock market 1o
sallshy restricied unlis awards vested, For those restricled unit awargs granted with perflormance goals, tha
eventual numbears of units 1o be purchased In each grantee's lavour upon vesling ara linked o the performanca
of Link based cn the total Unitholdars retum, nat proparty income o certain vesting conditions. Conditional
cash awards were also granizd in conjunction with the restricted unit awards, bestowing upon each granies

a conditional right to receive a cash payment represanting an amount equivalent to the aggregate of the
distributions during the vesting period, catch-up adjusiments and ex-gratia payments pursuant 1o tha 2007 LTI
Schame., if applicable.

Diuring thie year, the Group purchased 515 483 units (2020: 366,239 units) from the market for restricled units
avards which have vested in accordance with the 2017 LTI Scheme.

During the vesting penod, a liablity is recognisad representing the estimated value of the awards granted under
both the 2017 LTI Scheme and the portion of the vesting period expired as at the reporting date, The value of
the awards was estimated at the reporting date by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, an independent extermnal
valuer based on valuation technigues and assumptions an unit prices, cutstanding length of the awards,
distribution pay-ouf rates and other marke! conditions, if appropriata. The change in value of the cutstanding
awards was charged 1o the consolidated income siatement. In the event that the vesling conditions are not met,
the amount previausly accrued will be written back accordingly.

133 | Liek Raad Estann bregatrmant Trost

317/437



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

orwarmnoe, Desclosones ano Firmncls Stetemants | Nofes bo e Comnldnted Finsmncm! Steiamsmis _—

21 Long-term Incentive Schemes Provision icontinued)

Movemsants in 1he number of rastricted unit awafd during the year and the madmum number of unils to be
vasiad upon vesting of restricted unil award are as followes:

Dimoigrant  Vowng panod

N0 LTI Scherrm
1y 2007 M iy 206 w30 e 210 Josam - (6,00 o) @A
£ July 208 4 Ly 2008 10 X0 A 0 L4581 - {35,260 (.50 HEATE)
A by 20 1030 Jurm 200 LEiFd - - - 500 &N Em
Sy 209 Sy 2018 1230 Jorm 2008 408 £83 - - = RO AT, O LTS D
5 by 2008 13 30 Jrw 2000 AOF 652 . - - GOSTE Am T L75.
DI85y X003 e 200 - R548 - - cchol] TeR T -Frars
55 oy 00010 30 Jera 2000 - BZL548 - - B3 T 1 TE T
Subiztal LIBE 565 LE4500E il s ] [.500q B3 om Lk ] 4661354
Aol ety versted vt HO0M of it uml
] graried . . rﬂm
IR0 atal LIBESEE 15468 (15488 (.50 fE3E0m) LW 456138
M ol e 115,857 BN 7 ooy HE 255 2156045 LmiAm
Motes:

i Restricied unil owed vasting peroantagoes during the yeer meged om 0% to 200%.
W} I cerinin wosling comdi e afn Il
Fil) Rdditional uniis over 100% of msincied unit swond granted weds vesiod pursusnt Bo tha nolesan] westing oonditons.
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22 Other Liabilities

2020
HEEM

Aot chie 1o non-conolling fmanest 1844 arm
MNan-controllng interest pul aptian abligalon 204 Ban
Ratentian amownt for acquisition of a busingss - Fali]

4,048 5.0r
Moo

[ On 23 Februmey $O15, the Group Ihvough & non-whiolly ovned subsidiary (She “Project Compary”, in which Link has an ndeect 0% menest
ana Man Furg Devedapmant Limilad (Man Fung”) ias an ndinect 2054 inbedear aeeuired 7T Hol Bun Resd 0 Kowioon East lor commansial
developmenl. For the purpose of fundding the commeicial developmeesnl, Han Fung, a non-controling imerest of the Priject Sompany has
contributsd eash in propartion to the sharshalding ato fo the Progect Company. The Srrcunt s 10 nan-coniroling noemst is urmscuned,
Intenest boaring ot an elfective interead rate of 285 (030 3356, has ng fued repaymond ianm and ks ol fepayatie within ore year, Swuch
At inchiing ey scerued intenss will e sepdid Brom 1 Praject Company's suphus caeh ol lie realing |ls paymant abligatiors

fi# Pursuard 10 the shanshalders” agressmant, Man Fung bas o right to exercizs 8 putt opticn b requine Link 10 pochate sl the issued snams Man
Fung halds in the Project Comgsary at the than tair markot value, afoer the second anrvsersany of this issuance of the Casficass of Compllance
for tho commerciol oroperty dinvolopmint and cerln condtiona huwd boon satisled, The non-conlrofing inlenssl put oobon abligaban
Wik necogrEsed 86 8 financisl kablity based on 4 valssbon perommed by Crowa Homwath First Trust Apgraisal Fre Lid, an independant fimm
al pralessiongl ouskliod valusn Tha vsluer furs wead decounisd cash fow 8 (ha valuation tschque. The valustion (s based on varkous
assumptions and cakudsted by efarsncs toa rimber of unabsanable inputs, incheSeg the estimaded e vafus ol tha souity interests of e
Praject Compary a1 1he expected lime of axeicise of the pol option, the expected tims of ecstcise fisell, the cash fcw and the discount rats
used. Tha Marager hald discussiong with the vafuar and redesed all gignificant inputs used, Discusgions of the valuation processes and
residbs o each rEporing date o Meld between ths Managar ofd The viuer, Fal value of she pul option obligation & ncleded in Level 3 2020
Lanval 3] of the fair value hinrarchy. If tha estimated fai value of the squily interests of the Project Company o the time of exercic &5 highar,

1 Fair walue of e put apton obligalion vwould oleo be Righer. I Ihe expectsd lime of sxshtiss b e o # The decount e is higher, then He
inirvalys of The put option obligaticn would b ower.

The movement of non-contraling interest pul option abligation during the year is as follows:

Ax | Aprd 630 oo
Rucsgrised in the consalidated nsemo simement:

= Fair valua gain (Note B (Era] {2600}
AL 31 March 204 B30
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23 Interest Bearing Liabilities

20K
| HESM
l.l.lmec.mad Iaank BodrewIngE I Haae 2.7
Secured bank barowengs BAI6 anr
Medum term notes 18,770 15774
34,534 30,588
Tha camang amounts interest bearing liabillties are expected 10 be seliked as below;
20K
HEE'M
ﬁul in the first year
Urnecured bank bomowings. 1751 4
Sacuned hank bosrowings 56 BA
Madium fem noles 1441 350
3,248 gar
Duw in the second ymor
Unsecured bank bamowngs. 288 J.aed
Secured bank bormowinga T Tt
hadmm tefm noles 1228 L43g
- intia o
Disi i e 1hied yaar
Unsacumd bank bamowings B.o28 294
Bacumed bank barrowings ae 14l
M tefm noles - Lz2r
gaar 1,566
D in the fourth year
Unsecuied ank borowings 1,248 BATE
Securad bank borrawings as 158
Maciurm teim notes 4 fad -
- T eom 710
Do im the fifth year
Unsecurnsd ban bomwvings am 1003
Sacumd hank bormowings i L&)
Meadium tesm notes Lagg a5
) T.raa 6,87
Anrunl Rapart 2000030010 | 89
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23 Interest Bearing Liabilities (continued)

2020
HEEM

Dues bayend the lifth year

Sacustedt hank bafrowngs i L1555
Wedium lorm notes 7.510 8,043
7,888 i
04,634 30688

Motes:

fii Afier tnking HCCOUN e SRISS SUMPBRCY SWOE SOMEBCIS, axtant fof bank borowings ol HICE2 834 milliah 20200 HESZ 1T milien], HICkRBE1
o CROR0 HKE DO millond and HEEY A milian 2050 NY) which ane denomirated in RBerrminbi, Austalian Dolles and Aressh Pound
Saariing respectvly, all the othir inberes! Dearing latsitles oow danceninated in Hoog Koang Dolirs.

(i Aty Rasdeing CroUne e Crosh Cums ey Swap oomirscts ahd e e Swop cohtracts, he etlectve inleresl role of thes nlses! baiing
Habilfes whech ore denominaded m Hong Kong Dollars as o1 31 Manch 2001 was 2405 (2020: 2 04%:) and that of the interest boaring
Rabiimes wihich are denaimrated in Renminkl, Austraban Dollats and Britsnh Pound Steing was 184% 2020 5.58%), LDGY (020 145%|
and 1 0@2% E020 N reapectialy,

24 Convertible Bonds

0n 3 April 2008, the Group issued HKE4 bdllion convertible bonds at 1.6% par annum dus 2024, Thase bonds
are convertible into néw Link wunits at an initial convarsion price of HEKSI09.39 per unit &t the option of the
bondholdar, Link has ha option 1o radeem the bonds if the closing price of the units 5 130% or above tha initial
conversion price while bondholders have the nght 10 require Link 1o redeem all or some andy of the bonds an

3 April 2022. The convertible bonds are unsecured, The effactive intérast rate of the convedtibla bonds at 31

March 2021 was 3,12% (2020: 3.12%0).
2020
HICEM

Liabilsty componant

Aa 1 Aprd 3,910
Issuarce of commr_ibla bonds - 387
Firmnen podts ate 9) 125 175
Intares! gxpanses pad (85) el
At 31 March 390 3910
Derrvalree companant
A1 Aprl - -
|ssuarce of comeible bonds - 157
Change in e unlie Mot 9 a2 (157}
At 31 March xn -
4,002 3010
143 I Lirk Raal Eatato bressdemant oot
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25 Derivative Financial Instruments

20K
HESM
Elarlullw [ I
Diesigratic s eaak low hadgs
= infanast f@le SWap contmacts 43 -
Designated &5 fair vakie hedps
= CHOSS CUMTBNGY SWap contract 146 Fav
- interaEt e swap contmct s 18 15
Nt deskgnated os hedging instruments
= EAOISE CUFfBNEY SWaj contmet n -
Detivative liabilites
Designatud ms cash ow hadge
- inerast rate swap contracts (i} {BH]
Dezignated as lair value hedgs
- CIDRS CUFMNCY SWap contacts = 3
Nol designated as hedging instumerts
= CIOES CUFMNCY Swap contmct (16} -
[12e) (BE}
Nl disrivistive assols B9 - 143
Mates:

M Tha fairvatses of inancial instrumanis hat see not Tced in an aciive market e detamined by Using vakumtion techiigues. Thess valustion
EREhrIUed MEmise e uss of absenmable mare] dals whens 8 B ovaiabie e raly i e B potelie oh enlily spaciic estrmales IF ol
sigraficand inouts mdquined ol valuae an instrumant are obsanable, ine instrumant s included im Leved 2 of 1he Faer vorun hiemechy.

Fl T fair valuis of S1C08S CLmincy' BWaD COMITSCIE and MSrea) Fale SWiD Corinicts e calculnled Dy Mletancs 1o 1 onesens values of (e
estimatd futune coish fiovwa, tokeng imo acooant marknt oosenmble yiesd cunsss ond Sorward echange raiss o sach neporting date; Cross
ELHTONCY PWED EOPITGDY Sendl Ibiiasd Fobd SO cOnrests o includsd i Lind 2 2020 Lervel 20 of wha helr valo Feenaechy.

The camying amounts of net derivative assets are expecled to be seliked as balow:

2020
HES™

W¥ihin one year - 12}

Afor ong yoar Bg 146
<1] 143
Annuml Repan 202002001 | 143
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25 Derivative Financial Instruments continued

The Group uses cross curmency swap contracts (swapping from lorelgn cutrencias 1o Hong Kong Dollars) and
interest rate swap contracls to minimise its exposure to movemanis in foreign curency exchange rates and
Intarast ralas in ralation (o its intarest bearng liabiities. Any changa in fair values of the allective partian of 1ha
cash flow hedges In relation to Inferest r@ale Swap coniracts is recognised In the hedging resenve. Any change
in fair values of the fair value hadges in refation to interast rate swap contracts and any change in fair value of
&ross currency swap conlracts are recognised directly in the consolidated income staterment. A net amount

of HE$120 miflicn (2020: HKE36 million debited) had been credited to the hadging reserve during the year as
further sat aut in Nota 28.

Az a1 31 March 2021, the dervative linancial Instiuments qualiying as cash low hedges have, In effect, provided
the Group with an everage foied Interest rate pariod of 4.68 yvears on HKEE,654 million borrowings (20202 6.50
years on HKE3,000 million bomowinga) from the reparting date. Tha notional principal amount and the walghted
average fxed Interest rate of the outstanding floating rates to fived rates interest rate swap contracts as al

31 March 2021 were HKS8,654 milllon (2020, HKE3,000 million) and 0,779 (2020 1.58%) respectively. The
Group has no ocutsianding ficating rates to floating rates interest rate swap contracts as at 31 March 2021 (2020c
HKSZ, 000 millian),

Az at 31 March 202, the darivativa financisl instruments qualifying as fair valua hedges havs, in effect, corweriad
part of the Graup Domowirgs inta Hong Koog Dalkars thed rate and Noating rates interest baaring liabilities. The
notional principal amounts of the autstanding cross cufrency swap contracts and Intarast rale swap confracls
qualifying as fair value hedges as at 31 March 2021 were HKST, 753 millian (2020: HEST,753 million) and HKS400
millicn (2020: HKS1.400 million) respectively.

Galns and loeses on interest rale swap contracts recognised in the hadging resene (MNote 28) as at 31 Masch
2021 will be released to the consolidated Income statement at seftlement.

Az a1 31 March 2021, the Group has cutstanding cross cumency swap confracts that gre not designatexd for
hedge accounting and the notional principal amaounts were HKE3, 754 million (2020: Nif.

The Group's hedging resenves disclosed in Mole 28 relate 1o the following hedging instrumeanis:

A1 ADrE 2020 (@& {aa)
Changa in faer value af hedging matiumant necogresad

in othe! comprehansive income 63 63
Raclassfiod from ofhes comprebensae incoma ta

consglidated income slalament &7 &7
AR 31 March 2021 32 a2
A1 Aprl 2009 1] a8
Changs in fair value of hedging instniment mcognised

in other comprehensive income (58 -]
Reclasadiad lram othe: comprebansive income to

consolidated Income stalemend (=i 0] 38}
A 31 March 2020 (B8 (B}

Livd Rial Eatano brvedtmmant Troml
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26 Trade Payables, Receipts in Advance and Accruals

200
HES'M

Ttada poyabies ] &
Racsipts m advahics 401 a0
Accrunts 2045 2,250

1504 2540

Tha camang amounts of these payables approximate thelr fair values and are expected 10 be selled as balow:;

2020

HEE'M

Within ona year ?.5:.*9
ARer ore year 2 2 ;

2504 2840

Thia ageing of trade payables, presentad based on the due datae, i5 as Tallows

2020

HES'M

0-30 days 55

3190 days 13

Crvar 90 cays 12

58 BO

Aruml Raporn 202000011 | 146
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27 Units in Issue

2020
Rumberof urits

A1 Aprd 057,688,380 280063254
Lirts baught Baek lor eancallation 6,000, 0:00) (61,200,500}
Unis issuad under distibiaticn reénvestmant schemae 8,984, 400 -
Uris issusd under the 2007 LTI Fan - ATT R
At 31 March 2 (kB1 BE2 BES 2057 ERA 38R

Pursuant ta the genaral mandala grantad 1o the Manager by the Unitholders, the Manager (on baball of Link)
bought back a total of 6,000,000 units [2020: 51,900,500 units) at 2n aggregate price ol HK337S milllon (2020;
HEE2, 240 million) Al units bought back ware cancedled during the year,

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Manager issued and allotted 29 564,480 units in 1otal pursuant to the
distribution relpvestment seheme in respect of the interim distribution for the six months ended 30 September
2020 and the final dhatribution for the financial year ended 31 March 2020,

Clasing prica of the units a5 at 31 March 2021 was HKSTO.ED (2020: HE$EE. 7O} par unil Based on 2,081,862 BE6
units In issue as at 31 March 2021 (2020: 2,067,898,386 units), market capitalisation was HK$147,388 millicn
(2020 HKS135,204 milllan)

28 Reserves
cash How
hedge
ool |usir
AL April 2020 (5B0)
Caih Now hadges:
- Chango in {air voluos - B3 . 1%
= Aumount fransiemed o the consalidated
incama stateeriont (Mata [i) = 57 - - 57
- #1a] - - 120
Fosegn curmency lransaliens.

= Exchampe gain on transtaton ol fnancial
statamants - - 2,088 - 2,008

= Changs in lar valoe of ned imerstment
hedgas

- - (50} - {50}
E = 20489 E 2049
Nat assalis altnbudabla 1o Lint holoem:
- Amount adaing fram axchanps resene
and cash fow hedging resorve
moreaments [Nate i) - - - [.160] 2163)
At 3 March 2021 (B} 32 22 [0} (B0}
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28 Reserves jcontinued)

Earnirgs
ratained lor
esharge ang
txlbw
Other Hedgirg Excharge  hedge Tozal
[ resare ERENE adstmants e BRNEE
HEEM HEEM HEEM HEEM HEEM
Al 1 Apiil 2019 [[=2214]] 2] (B I8 (58]
Cosh Paw hedpes:
= Changa in Fair values x (1M - = |5H}
= Armouent transhemed 1o tha consoldated
mcome statemant (Ncte il - 38| - - [36]
- 13 - - (98]

Exchangs loss on fransiation ol fnancisl
slatoments - = |LE8T) - 1,587}

Mol Easats e bucnbiy fo Unitho idarn:
= BUMCIEl AFT8ing from exchands resdns

and cash low hadgpng rasare

mrpaarTeels (Mote ) - - - LTES g
A Maich 2020 (BB (B8} {2.07m 2158 {580
Nales:

B Amourn Tanelorod b 1he connolidated incom stabiment in reapoct of cath fow hodges v nclsed in “Finonce costa® MNote B)
Ji} This amount sepeetsnied anmings retirssd Tor the yaar bo oifast 1he snchangs resacns nd canh fow Fadging fedanm movemesTin.

29 Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2020
HEE'M

{a) MNet Cash Generated From Operating Activities

Frofiloss] bafore taxation and trinsactons wih Unitholdars 1544 {8581
Lang-term incantive schemes avands |t 25
Depreciation changs 1 (-]
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eq.ipment i 15
Imtenast Incoma (126} {1:51]
Finance costs. T &30
Exchanga ditfersnca 40 48]
Craange in falr values of investment propesties and imgassment of goocel a2 23,548
Incraase n tade and olher recesvables, deposils and prepaymaents =] 304
Cocraasa in Irede paymbles, moaipts in advance and accrua's 299) @
{Decreaselincreass in socurty depoaks ==} 25
Larg-tarm incenttve schames setilad (1.1-1] (421
It tax pacd [ara Ba3]
Mot cash ghnanated inam oparating acthatios r.ora 6,589
Anrunl Rapart 202003001 | a7
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29 Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

(b) Major Non-cash Transactions

Dunng the year, distrioutions amouniing to HKS1,954 millon (2020: N were pald to Unitholders in the fom
ol edditicnal unils undear the distribution reinvestmant schama,

(c}) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

Accranls Instrumssnis
HES'M HES M
A1 Apnl 2020 38,333
Changes liorn Insheng Sass Mows
Procsads o iminreed baanng
labilties, net o esacton costs 20037 - - - . 20627
Fepaymaeni of interes! beasing
labikties (Ir.458) - - - - |17 AE8)
Incsnans in armount dus 1o nor-
controfing inissear - - - - 49 g
Ireores: pad - &5} 758 28 i) o2
Paymant of keese ksbities - - 5 = ~ 15
Tk charges tom fnancrg actnfies 389 [B5) (T64) 26 (v 2.785
Man-cash chargas
Changes in lais vakas of eash lovw
hediges - - - 63 - o]
Friance coass (23] LT Tad 43 B0 1,308
Exchanges atjustmants nnd othams T - 1 = - BOD
Total res-cash changes i 157 T35 B0 o LE45
&t 31 March 2021 34,534 4,002 (' (HE 3844 42481
a8 | @l AL v T e
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29 Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities (Continued)

Mmoot
Irfares Desraative e ko non-
bearing  Cowentible financial cortioling
ligkslatiers i Aeerunls  insinuments Fiest Total
HEEW HEEM HES'M HEEM HESM HEEM
A ot 1 Azell 2010 247 - Bl 204 3552 28054
Charges fom Bnarcing cash fows
Procesds o inbamst Baaring
Rabilties, net of ansaction cosls 21628 - - - - ]
Rupayran ol Focs! badnng
liabilties (54T - - . - (15474)
Proceocds fiom comvertible bond, net
of iiansacton costs - agrd - - . aor4
Incraesa im Emount tos b0 non-
eonirailing inaresy - - - - 158 158
el [edifeceved - vy} adl 38 3 H8ET)
Paymant of loasa kabitios - - 2 - - [vd]
Total changes from financing actiites E.155 3043 BT 36 i B
Mon-cash changes
Chranges n Lair valoes of cash flow
hadges - - 58 - 5a
Finance cosls 45 @ 657 [a4n m 580
Eschargo sdustments and ot [l & &3
Totad non-cagh changen Il 3 B53 =2 m ars
As gt 3 Warsh 2020 30,568 agio i L arm 3833
Arrunl Rapart 202003070 | 48
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30 Acquisition of Assets

On % December 2018, Link, through a whally owned subsidiany, entered into a unit sales agreement and a
ghare sale agreemeant to acquire the entire issued units of Market Sub Trest and the entire issuwad shares of
Market Sub TC Pty Lid, at a cash consideration of Australlan Dollars 855 million (squivalent to spproximately
HKS3,132 million) and Link incurmed acquisition-redated transaction cosls of HK$I80 million. The iransaction was
completed on T Apil 2020, Market Sub Trust owns the 100 Market Street located at 100 Market Street, Sydney,
Austraiia,

O 24 July 2020, Link, through a wholly owned subsidiary, entered nto a sales and purchase agreemeant 1o
acquire the entire Issued share capetal of 25 Cabot Squere 3.0 1.L and Cabot Square Retall 5. rl, at a cash
consideration of British Pound Sterling 368 milion equivalent to appresdmataly HKS3,751 million] and Link
incurred acoulsition-related transaction costs of HKS28 millkan. The tronsaction was completed on 25 August
2020, 25 Cabol Square 5.4 rlL and Cabol Square Retail S.ar). own The Cabol located at 2E Cabol Square,
Canary Wharl, London, United Kingdom

Thia above acquisitions have been accounted for by the Group as acquisitions of assets as the entities acquired
by the Group do nol conslifule a business,

The asses and liabilies ansing from the acquisitions ang as foliows:

3457 3796 7.253

lonvmsimant propades |hNote 5

Caah and cash eguivalents - T T
Dahar rst cutnert liabiities [135) 24 59y
Purchasae consideraton aax a7 7.
Dexponit paid in pror year [(385) - ]
Camnh and cash squivilmnts aoguired - [ Iy}
Caah outfiow on sequisitions. 2957 372 6710

31 Capital Commitments

2020
HEEM
Captal evpa nditure of swostimant propaifies corracied but

peorvided lor al theend of the yesr [l &l

1B | Lk Raad Estann bregatrmant Trost
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32 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions
and Balances

Infarmaticn required 1o be disclosed conceming retated party wangactions ls sal out in this note unless
disclosed alsewhers in these consolidated financisl statemants.

(a) Nature of Relationship With Connected/Related Parties

The table set forth below summarizes the nameas of the connectad/retated parties, as defined in the REIT
Code/HKAS 24 |Revisad] *Related Party Digcicsures”, and the nature of thair relationship with the Group as
at 31 March 202t

wctad rmlated party Ralntiorahip with the Grow

HSBC rstbational Trust Senices (Asia) Limited (he Trzsiee) * Thed Trupsieses of Link

Tri Honglong and Shang e Baring Corponation Limised and its subsidianas Asgociaias ® of tha Tnstes
lenciuging the Tresbes and B propnetary subsidinnes) iha "HEBC Group’) "

Cofier Intemabensl fHong Fangh Limited (Mote [3| The currert Principsl Valuer of Link

dJonas Lang LaSalle Limaed fihe Formes Principal Yaluer”) (Mote il The lormes Prircepad Valuer of Link

Jones Larvg LaSalis Managemant Senvices Lirmined (Mobe B Axsociabe * of tha Former Princioal Yalsse

hmmmmwmnumﬂmmsm Assoczale " of thie Farmnér Pancioal Vaksee
Branch (Note &7

Badas Limited * Associaie * ol dmctor

Aedas Beijrg Limaed ° Associie * ol deecioe

Diah Sing Bank, Limied Associgie® of descior

D85 Bank [Hong Keng) Linnitax Assoiaie * ol descioe

*  These cormscied parlies e also considsisd o8 ielabed paenies of e Groug
*  “dspooiole” has the mesaning sscribed 0 i under (e REIT Code.
Notes:

@ Colisrs intamational (Hong Kongl Umiied & e curens Prncipsl Yakser of Link wiho i responsibis for the propsy valuaton of Link as
a1 31 March 2031 Colliens Intesrertiohal (Hong Kong) Limited was appoinied as the Principst alust of Link with sflect from 17 Novermber
20

i Jones Lang LaSals Lirnbed vwas the lammer valier o Link who wild responsstss far tha propety waluation of L up 1 30 Sephamiber
201 Jorws Lang LaSaks Limied retined as 1he Frincipal Valuer of Link in accordance wish the REIT Code om 17 November 208 and
ainGe e, Jores Long LaSally Lirdod and 5 assocaton cooed 1o bo conmotod pories of Link

Armuml Baport 20200011 | 161
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32 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions

and Balances (Continued)

(b} Transactions With Connected/Related Parties

The tollowing transactions under HKFRSs wara carmied out with connected/ralated parties:

Trustes's fee paid and payabile 10 the Trostes Mobe (1]
Transactions with the HSBC Group [Note il
Irteseat axpense and vadious financ ng chaspes 1o 1he HSBC Group on
Innarest baaring Eatelites, cross curency Swap contracts and imenest
rale swap contracts
Runtal irsors from the HSBC Greup on easing of mstail uras
Ertores] incearme from Thi HSBC Group on bank doposits
Transactions with the Principal Valuer (Notes (i) and (W)
Waluation fea
Consultancy sanvices lees
Agancy lee

Chranges for prowision of fitlor serdces pald ard payabée 1o Jonos Lang
LiSalke Mmnasparmura Serdcgs Limited (hote (56)

Proparty mansgamant lee paid ard payable o Bajing Jores Lang LaSalls
f"a:anvﬂ“ammmm Sanrvicas Company Limited Sherzhen Branch
& (i

Archileclumirnayation comsultanty sendoes lees paid and payabls to
Mgt Lirndte [Motes (] and (W)

Archilpctursancovadion comsiltancy senvoes leos paid and payatdo to
Aadzs Baijing Limitod (MNotes il and i

Rermal mcoime (rofn Dah Sayg Bank, Limited on leesing ol reeail units
[Mates {ill and vl

Il resss] Enpanses ahd various Finssncmg chargas 1o Dak Sng Bank, Lmted
[Matas (i) and (il

Il esst i pnse s and vawious Financing charpes 1o DBS Bank Horg Kang!
Limited (Mates [ii and il

5

125)
35
7

()

(3

1

HEE™M

s

20

(2
2
]

Motes:

M Al comecledirelned pany ransachons vwing Ghmed oul in Becosiarcs will i e of The releven ogreements govenreng the

TBnERs0ng and i tha Ordinary Coured of Susineds,

] TMTrnmnmanmmuMwmﬁmmmmmmn ra%es Fangeg Inafr DUDDE% pad andem 15
CLONES peer arresmy (2020 _dmhmﬂmemhﬂmeldhmmMHnduw n the

ohalf of Link fnam timae: to time, subject 3o o minimuem of Hmﬂﬂﬁ e maanith,

[H] Tha ransactons vwem anssgd nio of aem's lengin on pommal commancal Ieems and N complorcs with Link's procuremant policy,

It Collera irtermations! Hong Kong) Limsed wak apocinted o8 the Prncnal Valuar of Link with alfect fiom IT Moweimbes 2008, Th Formers
Principal Valusr, Jones Lang LaSale Limitec, waa nesponsitie for the propesty waluation of Link up il the pariod ended 30 Soptember
208, Vakuation fes for the yaar shoed 31 March 20201 of HEd malion wens paid and payabes 1o Collers irtemational Hong Kang

Urnited 2020, HEXE3 millon and HE$1 mition wem paid 1o Collers

{Hong Kong) Limited and Jones Lang LaSalle Limbod

Irfarmational
g ively). senvices e of HER0S milion and sgency fee of HICED .4 rmilion vweis pakd 1o Colliens Inpstmational (Hong
Kong) Limited Q2020 Corsultancy senices fees of HIKEZ mithon and agency tee of HKSZ million wene pasd to Jones Lang LoSalle

Lirnitach
Iv) Amdos Limited and Ardas Beding Limied ore susociales of br lan Keith GRIFRITHS
[} Do Sing Fank, Lirrstsd is an associale of kr Alpie Chilion PICKERELL.
fill DBS Bark {Hiang Kong Lirreed is &0 associone of Ms Mooy TSE Sai Ling.

L] I Livsk Faad Estann brreastenant T ot
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32 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions
and Balances (Continued)

(c) Balances With Related Parties

(d

=

Balances with related pariies are set oul balow;

2020

HEE'M
Trustea's lee payable 1o the Trusies _“_.;1.].
ImeiEst beailng kalates wih ihe HSBO Grougs (2.820)
Nist irtenost recaiablsipayable) to the HSBC Goup 2 {6}
Secuity deposits fram the HSBC Group 13 (4]

Crass cuimency swap comracts and imanest rats swap contracts with

rhe HSBC Group k| i

Caposis paced with the HESEC Goun fE@a 8.560

Arghfiecturalrenovalon consultancy senvices feas payabla to
Aadas Bafing Limited {4}

Key Management Compensation

As at 31 March 2021, key management composed of two Exscutive Directors, 11 Non-Executive Direclors
and 9 sanior management staff. Further details of the remuneration of the Directors on @ named basis
are disciosed In highlighted sections of the Corporate Governance Repart with a heading of “Audited® an

pages 26 to 28. These sactions form the “Audited” part of Corporate Governance Report and are pan of the
financial statemonts,

The aggregate amounts of emolumants of the key managemeant stalf of the Group are as lollows;

2020
HEEM

Faas L] g

Basic salories, allowanoes ard othet cenolida 160 128

Lorg-term incentive schemes anands 13 x|
23 {14 +]
Annunl Rapor 20200300 | 153
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32 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions
and Balances (continued)

1=

(d) Key Management Compensation {Continued)

The amownis refiected in the emolument bands balow are those in the financial statemeants undar HKFRSs
Im the year 2020/2021, and Include short term remuneration paid In cash and postion of the long-term
incentive schemas recognised (although a portion of which has not bean wested) In the year 202072021
attributable to the Executive Directors and sanior managemant.

Emolumant bands (Note (i)

HES1, 000, 001-4K 53,000,000 - I

HES3 000,001 HKSS 000, 000 a8 2

EHEES, OO0, 001-HEST 000,000 4 2
1 2
2

HEET, S00,00- 58, 000,000
HES8,500,00- HES9,000,000
HEES 500, 001=HKS10, 000,000 = I
HES10, GO0, 000 -HRS L 50O, 0O - 1
HES1L0C0.00-HEEILED0,000 - |

HES1500,001-HES.000,000 - 1=

HiC§14,000,001-HKSM 500,000 . _
HKE31,500,001-HKE3Z 000,000 -

HKET3,500,001-HET4,000,000 . at

Total meriber of Executie Directons and sonior manage mant (Note (=) 1z 12

Moles:

(B The caloubitioh of B ot rermiresilion for (s sroiuriend burds 5 bt on B vaios of (s long-lerr incenls avards recogised
dunirg the year and the sho jlenm remunaration pakd and recogrised durirg the yoar

[ Emouments paid and rcoghised for the Exscutve Direcioes, Mr Gaooge Kwoll Lung HONGCHONYS and M Kok Siang MG, Mr. Kok
Ehong MG was appoinlad as an Executyve Dirscior with efect Irom | February 2020, Out of the [otal remuneration avwamsd 1o Mr,
Ko Song NG Tor the yeor endad 31 March 2000, only 2 monii's remunanation wos oirbutablo o senvices provided oo o Executivo
Dwector. Decsils ane S8 Ul in e “Reminsmabon Asanded o Exscutive DInsSIons™ Section on oxges 26 10 27, The respective
aroumans ncuce the porlion of M Kng-tormm noentve Scharmes recognSaed 1o the ywoor, wheth the detnils are 5% oul in The "Long-
16T |l o Seiiefries™ Sl O PGS TE 85 B1. The ramdniig (8 118 pakl Shor- 18w remunerilion

[ Inchuded cne resigned G020 one mofind) senkor managemenl siaf

Livd Rial Eatano brvedtmmant Troml
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32 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions
and Balances (Continued)

(d} Key Management Compensation (Continued)
The five highest pald individuals for the year Include two (2020: two) directors whose emolumants reflected
In the above emalument bands. The emolumenis pald and recognised 1o the remalning thres (2020: three)
Individuals during tha vear are as follows:

200
HEE'M

Basic salarias, other alloaances and saralids in king g
Cencretionany bonus n 21
Larg=titm incentve schemes mards 4 2
25 X

33 Future Minimum Rental Receivables

As al 31 March 2021, the analysis of the Group’s aggregata iutune minimmum renial incomea recaivables undar
non-cancedlable operating |eases s as lollows;

020

) ! L3 HES'M
Within ara year G437 6,384
Brbopiinmy i Fult fancd [ yisans B.oEg 1061
Bayond Trve yoars 2.508 L6
16,934 5

Mast ol the aperating leasas are on lixed terms and for terms of threa years (2020; three years)

Armumnl Rapon 202003011 | 156
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34 Principal Subsidiaries

Lirk hedd the following principal subsiclares as at 31 March 2021

Place ol esinbbshment snd

Rined of Begat asvlityd
Hamp place ol aparations Principal sctivites
Dieacily heddt
Thie Linsk bhcdlinga Lirited Cayman Ialarwls, brrisecd lisbibty Imventment boidrg
campanyHong Kong
Link Asset Managaman! Limited Hong Kong, Imited lablity company'  Asset maragamant
Hang kang
Bty fakd
Afcrd Limied Hong Ko, imited liability company  Imvpgiment bolding HKE50 530 360 10D
Hang kong
Atannc Bast Limaed Hong Kong, imaad llaodity company  Imvesimin boding HKg2 1009
Hong ¥eng
ENNEER () ANLE People's Fopubic of Chira, lmited  Fropesry hoiding and L5538 500,000 120
Baoyi Praserty Managernasd [Bhenshen] Tabiry comgamyFoopke's Republe  lting
Cormpary Limibad) o Crana
tRENR=REREAANLD People's Repubic of Chirm, limited.  Propary holding anc US5162,.600,000 1004k
Beyng Yaleng Real Estmbe Maragament  labidiyy compomyPoopke's ARepublc  laasing
Cerrpary Limbed) o China
Cabat 45 Limted Hang Kong, imnod liability company  Inveszmen: Poiding HEET 00
Hang Kong
Cabat Souare Reto? Garl Lusermibourg, imited Eabdty company! Property holding and GEPILOD [LE T
Linieed Kongdnm lasming
Cantury Land brvesimant Lisied Hong Kong, Irhed lebdity company/ Propeny developmen! HHEL GO
Heng Kang
Crvnia Bl inwessimen, Limstad Hang Kong, irmfed ksbillty company Invesirsan] hoidng HEKES, (o0 s
Hang Kang
=1 L1 RES LR i Peopie’s Rapubic of Crira, kmited [Peoparty holding and RMEL242.300 4 0o
(ECA! Propery Hiokding (Tangn| Ca,, L] mmmmm Ingsing
s} Venhue RLE. Linwed Horg Kong, brviled hebelily company”  invesimen| hoideg HKE1 00
Heng Kang
Graal Land [HK] Lmibed Hisng Kong, Imiled lakeiity compuny/. Property halding and HESLO00,000 100
Horg Morg lnasing
REERARERERLDE Peapie's Rapublic of Crira, kmifted Feoperty holding and RNEIG00LH00,000 ok
{Guangihcu Gian Ging Hus Real Estas iablity cormpary Peopk's Republc leasing
Company Limied) of Chim
Link CB Lmited (Formay sncwen Brmshy Vg Iatands, lmied kel Fnancing uss W00
e Link X050 CH Limited] compEmHong Kong
Link Wonts [HE) Limited Hong Kong, irmited Saleirty compamy!  Fropersy holding and HHE] W%
Heng Kang boaaing

155 I Livsk Faad Estann brreastenant T ot
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34 Principal Subsidiaries continued

Faee of wikablishmant s

haned of legial enbty!
Naime Elace ol e mlicsiri Princpal activities
Iy huaied [Contimect
Link P Lisis Conviary llandi, imfsd Rabdey Progadty holdng i S84 i
Link Proparty Managament Senices Liméiad  Hong Koog, limied iisbity compeny! Propeerty managesneni HE1,000,000
Hong Kong
HHSeREN A AREE Peopla s Repultiic of Chira, Bmited Cavnoraie maragement AMES D00, 000 1004
[Link Ressl Esams Corsllanty Tiaindiry cormpany Peopie’s Repatihs BaNVICE
[Shanghal Lited el Ching
Markst Wed Trus: Aprala, Innl st It holding BLEEEL, 000,100 00
Warked Wed Pry Lizd Ausraa imiled sty compam' Tristes of kst lid AUE1 Lt
Mt Trest
Warket Sus Teus! Auntrala (rust st Proprty holding ard ALISEIS 0% 254 1005
karing
Market S TC Py Lid Ausiala, kmited Bty company! Trussea of Markst Sub Ast pur
Hgmtralia Trest
Praston River HE) Limied Hong Fong, lmited lisbiny compenyy  Inwestment halding i1 L
Hang Kang
LEREREEEMR Pcples & Requitiic of Chirn, bmalod Property holding ard FNEIZAT 505,000 HHHA
[Stong'se Geg Bay Propeses Co. Lid} listoiity companyPeopie s Republic kg
ol China
Traz Link Finance {Cayman) 2006 Limited Caryrean bslands, mita fabsey Ireestrreet L5 L
comguany! Hong Karg
Tree Lisk Finance iCaymani 2009 Limited Cayraan lslands, imitad Rabdy Frnanzing usq v
cosmgumy/ Hong Kang
Tt Link Fenasiew Limetad Hoag Kosg, lirted lishiny compeny'  Fnancng HEST L
Hong Kong
25 Cabot Souars Sarl Leosmboury, kmissd kabliy company' Property holding and GarL000 0w
Liniad ®argdom Basing

The Manager considers the non-controlling interest in respact of Century Land Invesiment Limited |s not
matedial ta the Group.

Tha Manager is of the opinion that a camplata list of the particulars of all subsidiaries will be ol excessiva langth
and therslore the above list containg anly the particulars of the subsidiaries which principaliy affect the results
of assats and liabilities of the Group.

Armuml Baport 200200011 | 67
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35 Event After the Reporting Date

Cn 24 February 2021, Link, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a framewark agreement and
an eguity trans!er agreamant 10 acquire 50% issued share capital of LiREWENEHERELE atacash
considaration of RMEB2,772 million (equivalam to approximately HEK$3,228 million), which represents 503
ol an amount equal to the agreed proparty value of Qibao Vanke Plaza of RMBE,A00 million lequivaient to
approximaiely HKET &7 millkon) adjusted by net liabilities of RMBBSS milllon (equivalent to approximatealy
HES1.027 million). A2 a1 31 March 2021, HE$2. 305 million was paid as dopesit and included in dapasits and
prepayments on the Group's consolidated statemont of financial position, The transaction was comphated
on2 April 2021, LBER & EEE R 2 E s the solo owner of the Gibao Vanke Plaza lacatoed a1 5/3 Ciu,
620 Block, Qibao Town, Minhang District, Shanghal, the Paople’s Republic of China.

Cn 4 Jume 2021, Link, through a wholly-cwnad subsidiary, entered info a sale and purchase agreemeant 1o
acquire Happy Valley Shopping Mall at a cash consideration of RMB2,0849 milllon {equivalent io approximsately
HK$2,552 milllon), which comprises the agreed property value of Happy Valley Shopping Mall of RMB3,205
million (equivalent to approximately HES3 BT milllon) and net liabdities of RMB110S milllen fequivalent to
approxtmately HKS1,345 millon). The compiation will take place atersatistaction of cenain complation
conditions In accordance with ihe sale and purchase agreasment. Happy Vallay Shopping Mall is located at No.
36 Machang Road, Tiznhe District, Guangzhou, the People’s Republic of China,

36 Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The consalidated financial slalements were suthorised for ssue by the Board of Directors of tha Manager and
the Tiustes on 17 Juna 2021,

158 I Livd Rial Eatano brvedtmmant Troml
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2021 31
1 209,885 2,974,070
. 51,165 725,008
Il I 11 158,720 2,249,062
V. 2,081,862,866
V. v 76.24 1,080

2021 31 27 383
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Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

183 17 1712-1716

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

CCASS
HKSCC CCASS

0.0027
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®
22,000,000 312
22,000,000
2017 31 5,000,001
2018 28 12,000,000
2019 22,000,000
6,999,999
2018 28 5,000,001 12,000,000
10,000,000
2019 12,000,000 22,000,000
@
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38 59 131
€)
23 103
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
193
Independent Auditor’ s Report
®

2021
1417
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@
2021 31
31
2021 2020
504,866,818  7,153,962,811 697,278,232  9,880,432,547
(278,077,761)  (3,940,361,873)  (452,556,620) (6,412,727,305)
1,849,891 26,212,955 6,269,540 88,839,382
(226,789,057)  (3,213,600,938)  (244,774,611) (3,468,456,238)
1,849,891 26,212,955 6,216,541 88,088,386
52,999 750,996
1,849,891 26,212,955 6,269,540 88,839,382
17 29
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2021 31
31
2021 2020
1,849,891 26,212,955 6,269,540 88,839,382
1,849,891 26,212,955 6,269,540 88,839,382
17 29
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2021 31
31
2021 2020
10 6,602,500 93,557,425 6,602,500 93,557,425
3,060,638 43,369,240 5,021,104 71,149,044
12,456,688 176,511,269 9,342,516 132,383,452
11 75,934,083 1,075,985,956 34,518,241 489,123,475
11 4,684,917 66,385,274 1,386,882 19,652,118
12 234,172,553 3,318,225,076 381,733,462 5,409,163,157
336,911,379 4,774,034,240 438,604,705 6,215,028,670
13 80,183,224 1,136,196,284 136,518,194 1,934,462,809
14 10,000,000 141,700,000 10,000,000 141,700,000
201,998,008 2,862,311,773 247,954,220 3,513,511,297
11 910,506 12,901,870 2,162,541 30,643,206
293,091,738 4,153,109,927 396,634,955 5,620,317,312
43,819,641 620,924,313 41,969,750 594,711,358
15 22,000,000 311,740,000 22,000,000 311,740,000
21,819,641 309,184,313 19,969,750 282,971,358
43,819,641 620,924,313 41,969,750 594,711,358
17 29
12 29 2021 17
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2021 31
2020 22,000,000 311,740,000 19,969,750 282,971,358 41,969,750 594,711,358
1,849,891 26,212,955 1,849,891 26,212,955
2021 31 22,000,000 311,740,000 21,819,641 309,184,313 43,819,641 620,924,313
2019 12,000,000 170,040,000 13,700,210 194,131,976 25,700,210 364,171,976
6,269,540 88,839,382 6,269,540 88,839,382
10,000,000 141,700,000 10,000,000 141,700,000
2020 31 22,000,000 311,740,000 19,969,750 282,971,358 41,969,750 594,711,358
17 29
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2021 31
31
2021 2020
16 (149,790,501) (2,122,531,399) 66,929,700 948,393,849
2,229,592 31,593,319 6,035,485 85,522,822
(6,602,500) (93,557,425)
2,229,592 31,593,319 (567,015) (8,034,603)
10,000,000 141,700,000
10,000,000 141,700,000
(147,560,909) (2,090,938,081) 76,362,685  1,082,059,246
381,733,462  5,409,163,157 305,370,777  4,327,103,910
31 12 234,172,553  3,318,225,076 381,733,462  5,409,163,157
17 29
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2021 31
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381,733,462
)

2021 31

2,150,000
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2021 31
80,619,000

12

234,172,553

100

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 100

2020 3,600,000

2020 2021 31
2021 31
HKFRS
12
2020 35,905,123
234,172,553 2020

2020 381,733,462
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2021 2020
10,000,000 10,000,000
201,998,008 247,954,220
910,506 2,162,541
®
571
)
)
©
HKFRS
©)
2021 2020
504,866,818 697,278,232
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2021 2020
461,180,442 639,907,107
9,045,597 14,134,391
13,321,272 25,489,997
483,547,311 679,531,495
2021 2020
9,516,117 8,863,100
17,668,137 13,621,073
36,000 30,049
25,616,000 55,294,310
8,921,749 12,333,917
61,758,003 90,142,449
2017 LTI
2021 2020
1,849,891 6,216,541
305,232 1,025,729
8,745
(305,232) (1,034,474)
(52,999)
(52,999)
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2021 2020
483,547,311 679,531,495
1,864,452 1,820,754
25,240 291,000
1,889,692 2,111,754
10
2021 2020
6,602,500 6,602,500
2021 31
1,000,000 100
5,000,000 100
11
12
2021 2020
19,172,553 21,733,462
215,000,000 360,000,000
234,172,553 381,733,462
13
2021 2020
34,332,475 81,045,194
45,850,749 55,473,000
80,183,224 136,518,194
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2017 LTI
2017 10 2017 LTI
2017 LTI

2017 LTI

2017 LTI
2017 LTI

2017 LTI
2017 LTI 502,126

2020 366,239
2017 LTI
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2020 2021
@)
2017 LTI
2017 14
2017 14 2020 30 305,311  (7,865) (288,176) (7,000)  (2,270)
2018 2018 445,188  (7,500) (35,250) (6,500) (395,938)
2020 30 ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
2018 443,121 (7,500) (20,250) 415,371 919,773
2021 30 ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
2019 2019 496,683  (11,392) (19,018) 466,273 1,052,287
2021 30 , , , , ,052,
2019 496,682  (11,392) (19,018) 466,272 1,052,286
2022 30 ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
2020 29
2020 29 2022 30 799,350 (31,029) 768,321 768,321
2020 29
2023 30 799,350 (31,029) 768,321 768,321
2,186,985  (45,649)1,598,700  (323,426) (13,500) (518,552) 2,884,558 4,560,988
100
(178,700)C )
2020 2021 2,186,985  (45,649)1,598,700 (502,126) (13,500) (518,552) 2,884,558 4,560,988
2019 2020 2,293,280 1,194,497 (843,871) (7,000) (687,295) 2,186,985 4,883,469
) 200
)
) 100
14
2021 2020
10,000,000 10,000,000
2009 27 10
2023 26 2021 31
10 2020 10
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15
2020 2021 31 22,000,000 22,000,000
2019 12,000,000 12,000,000
2019 10,000,000 10,000,000
2020 31 22,000,000 22,000,000
16
2021 2020
1,849,891 6,216,541
(1,849,891) (6,269,540)
1,580,765 7,545
(41,415,842) 203,078,646
(3,298,035) 1,227,386
(45,956,212) (55,667,198)
(1,252,035) 807,391
(56,334,970) (63,754,224)
(3,114,172) (18,716,847)
(149,790,501) 66,929,700
17
2021 2020
15,601,624 9,265,620
489,265,194 688,012,612
18
19

2021 17
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FRRETEARLE

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Management fee income
Direct costs

Interest income
Administrative expenses
Profit before taxation
Taxation credit

Prafit for the year

EDINETOOOO
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2020
HE$

6o7,278 232

(452,556,620)
6,260,540

(244,774,611

6,216,541

F2,999

Note 2021
HEKS

L] 504,866,818
(278,077,761

1,840,801
(226,789,057)

1,849,891

a -

9 1,849,801

6,269,540

The notes on pages 17 1o 20 form part of these financial statements.

-12 -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FeRETEERLT

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2021 2020
HES$ HES

Profit for the year 1,849,801 6,260,540

Other comprehensive income .

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,849,801 6,260,540

—

The notes on pages 17 to 20 form part of these financial statements,

_Iﬂa.
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FmEETEERE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH zoz1

Note 2021 2020
HXs HES$
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Assets
Investments in subsidiaries 10 6,602,500 6,602,500
Receivabies, deposits and prepayments 3,060,638 5,021,104
Taxation recoverable 12,456,688 9,342,516
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 11 75,034,083 34,518,241
Amount due from Link Real Estate Investment Trust 11 4,684,017 1,386,882
Cash and cash equivalents 1z 234,172,553 381,733,462
Taolal asscts 336,911,379 438,604,705
Liabilities
Long-term incentive schemes provision 13 Bo,183,224 136,518,104
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary 14 10,000,000 10,000,000
Trade and other payables 201,008,008 247,954,220
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 1 910,506 2,162,541
Total liahilities 293,001,738 206,634,955
Nel assels 43,810,641 41,960,750
EQUITY
Zhare capital 15 22,000,000 22,000,000
Retained eamings 21,819,641 15,960, 750
Member's funds 43,819,641 41,964,750

The notes on pages 17 to 20 form part of these financial statements,

The financial statements on pages 12 to 20 were approved by the board of directors of the Company on
17 June 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

Director

=14 =
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HERENEARLE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Share Retained

capital earnings Total

HES HE% HES

At 1 April 2020 22,000,000 19,060,750 41,064,750

Tatal comprehensive income for the year - 1,849,801 1,840,801

At 31 March 2021 22,000,000 a1, 819,641 49,819,641

At 1 April 2019 12,000,000 13,700,210 25,700,210

Total comprehensive income for the year - 6,209,540 6,260,540
Transaction with equity holder

Izzue of shares 10,000,000 - 10,000,000

At 31 March 2020 22,000,000 10,060,750 41,060,750

The notes on pages 17 to 20 form part of these financial statemnents.

.-15.-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FREETEERLT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Operating activitics
Net cash (vsed in)/generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest income received

Investment in subsidiaries
Met cash generated from/(used in) investing activities
Financing activity

Proceeds from issuance of shares

Net cash generated from financing activity

Met change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

The notes on pages 17 to 29 form part of these financial statements,

-lf=

Note

16
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2021 anzn

HKS HES
(149,790,501} 66,000,700
2,226,502 6,035,485

- {6,602,500)

2,229,592 {567,015)

- 10,000,000

- 10, 00, 000
(147,560,000) 76,362,685
381,733,462 305,370,777
381,733,462

234,172,553




{a)

(b}

(c)
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
S TR RA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate information

Link Asset Management Limited {the *Company™) is a limited lability company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its principal activity is asset management, The address of its registered office is
20/F., Tower 1, The Quayside, 77 Hoil Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company s licensed to carry oot Type @ "Asset Management” regulated activity under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company acts as the management company of Link Real Estate Investment Trust (“Link”).
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRS3s") and the Hong Fong Company Ordinance, HKFRSs is a collective
term which includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Aceounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Fublic Accountants,

Accounting convention and functional currency

The financial statements have heen prepared under the historical cost convention.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars, the functional currency of the
Company.

Adoption of new and revised accounting policies

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has adopted all the following new standards and
amendments that are currently in issue and effective.

Conceptual Framework for Finaneial Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

Reporting 2018

HEAS 1 and HEAS 8 Amendments Definition of Material

HEAS 39, HEFRS 7 and HEFRS g Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
Amendments

The adoption of these new standards and amendments has not had any significant effect on the
results reperted and finaneial position of the Company,

=17~
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FERE TS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation {Continued)

Adoption of new and revised accounting policies (Continued)

The following new standards and amendments, which have been published but are not yet effective,
have not been early adopted in the financial statements. These are effective for the Company's
aceounting periods heginning an ar after 1 April 2021

HKAS 1 Amendments Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
HEAS 1 and HEFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies &
Amendments

HEAS 8 Amendments Definition of Accounting Estimates (2

HEFRS 3, HEAS 16 and HEAS 37 Marrow-Scope Amendments (2
Amendments

HEFRS 4, HEFRS 7, HEFRS g, HEFRS 16 Intercst Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 ()
and HEKAS 30 Amendments

HEFRS 10 and HEAS 28 Amendments  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
itz Aszociate or Joint Venture 4

HEFES 16 Amendments Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions @

HEFES 16 Amendments Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021 13

HEFERS 17 Insurance Contracts s

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle i

4 pffective for necounting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

@ gffective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

43 gffective for accounting periods beginning an or after 1 April 2om

Wi gffective for accounting periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2022

5} gffective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

¥ no mandatory effective dote is determined yet but early application is permitted

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new standards and
amendments upon initial application.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set
oul below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented.

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, incloding structured entities, over which the Company has eontrol. The
Company eontrols an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the sbility to affect those returns through its power over the
entity.

In the Company’s statemnent of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses, The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable,

Wo consolidated financial statements are prepared as exempted under HEFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”. The Company’s ultimate holding entity is Link and the consolideted

financial statements of Link have been prepared in accordance with HEFRSs and are publicly
avatlable.

18-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
SR TR B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{b) Receivables
Receivables are recognised Initlally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less
provision for impairment. The Company holds the receivables with the objective to collect the
eontractual eash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effertive interest method, The Company applies the HEFRS o in assessing expected credit lossas.
Receivables are considered to be low risk, and therefore the impairment provision is determined as
12 months expected credit losses.

(e)  Cash and ecash egquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts,

(d} Tradeand other payables

(i) Trade payables

Trade pavables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortisad cost using the effective interest method.

(ii)  Provisions
Provisions are recognised whan there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and 2 reliable estimate of the amount czn be made. Where a provision is expected
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain,
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the ehligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the rsks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as intorest expense,

(e} Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognized for the

amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable

amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and valoe in use. Non-finaneial assets

cther than goodwill that suffer impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

()  Revenue recognition

Management fee income is recognised over time when services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
(g) Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised on an accrual basis,

- 10 -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FERETTEARAY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h} Emplovee benefits

Employes benefits such as wages, salaries and bonuses are recognised as an expense when the
employee has rendered the serviee.

Employes entitlements to annual leave are resognised when thay acerue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated Hability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the reporting date. Employee entitlernents to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave, The employer's contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund for
employees are expensed as incurred,

(i) Employees' long-term incentive schemes

Incentives in the form of a long-term incentive schemes are provided to cligible employvees
(including directors).

Employee services rendered in exchange for the grant of the long=term incentive schemes awards
are recognised as an expense, with @ corresponding increase in the lability incurred. This expense
is charged to the income statement over the vesting perieds. Until the liability is settled, the value
of the Hability is re-measured at each reporting date and at the date of settlement, with any changes
in value recognised in the income statement for the year. At each reporting date, estimates of the
number of long-term incentive schemes awards that are expected to vest will be revised and the
impact of the revision is recognised in the income statement. The carrying value of the long-term
incentive sehemes awards iz reviewed evory six months and is independently valued by external
valuers at least annvally. If the awards do not vest on the vesting dates, the amounts charged to the
income staternent will be written back.

4 Financial risk management
{a)  Financial risk factors

The Company™s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (incleding interest rate
rigk and eurrency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management is carried out by the Company, The Company's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks lo minimise potential
adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

(i) Market risk
(A}  Intercstrate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will impact the
earnings of the Company. The Company is exposed to imterest rate risk since the
Company’s deposits at banks bear varizble interest rates.

As at 31 March 2021, if interest rates on deposits at banks had been 100 basis
points {2z020: 100 basis points) higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been approximately HES$z2,50,000 (2020
HE%43,600,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income
from deposits at banks.
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
SRR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Market risk (Continued)
(B) Currency risk

Curreney risk arises on account of monetary assets and lisbilities denominated in
a currency that is not the funelional eurrency. As at 91 March 2020 and 2001, thees
are no significant monetary balances that are held in a noo-funetional currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed by the ultimate holding entity on a group basis. Credit risk arises
from the patential failure of the Company’s counterparties to meet their ohligations under
financial contracts. The Company is exposed to eredit risk on its receivables due from group
companies/Link as well as cash and cash equivalents and shori-term bank deposits.

The Company manages its deposits with banks by limiting the level of deposits to be placed
with any counterparties, Deposits placed with any individual counterparty cannot exceed a
pre-defined limit assigned to the individual counterparty. As at 31 March 2021, all deposits
were placed with banks with external credit ratings of no less than "BBB".

For amounts due from group companies, the Company regularly reviews the recoverable
amount of each receivable and applies the HEFRS o in assessing expected eredit lozses that
is determined as 12 months expected credit losses which consider current and forward-
Inoking information to ensure that adequate provision for impairment losses is made for
potentinlly irrecoverable amounts.

The maximum exposure to eredit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the staternent of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance, As at g1 March 2021, the Company's exposure to credit risk arising from
amounts duc from group companies/Link amounted to HEKS80S10,000 (2020:
HE$35,505.123). The Company’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents znd short-term bank deposits amounted to HE$234,172.553 (20z0:
HE5381,739,462) and is set out in Note 12,

Liguidity risk

Prudent liguidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding from committed credit facilities and operating cash flow,

As at 31 March 2021, the Company has cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
deposits of HKS234,172,553 (2020: HE$381,733,462), Management considers that the
Company does not have significant liquidity risi,

- 21~
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
SENETEEMAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4 Financial risk management (Contimied)
(a)  Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Liguidity risk (Continued)
The tible below snalyses the Company'’s flnancial lnhilitles ioto relevant matirity

gronpings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2081 2020
HEs$ HES$
Less than 1 vear
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow
subsidiary 10,000,000 10,000,000
Trade and other payables 201,908,008 247,954,220
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 910,506 2,062 541

(b}  Capital management

The Company's obfectives when managing capital are to safegoard the Company's ability to
continne as a going concern whilst seeking to maximise benefits to member,

The Company ¢onsiders the equity of the Company (as shown in the statement of financial position)
as its capital.

As the Company is a licensed corporation for Type g "Assct Management” regulated activity under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance {Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), it has to comply with
the following requirements cegarding ite capital as stipulated in the Securities and Futures
{Financial Resources) Rules:

(i) a minimum level of paid up share capital has to be met; and
{11} a minimum level of liquid capital has to be met.

The Company reviews the capital stracture periodically and manages its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends and issuance of new sheres, Its share capital and liguid capital
levels are closely monitored to ensure strict compliance with the statutory minimum requirements.
(c)  Fairvalue estimation
The carrving values less impairment provision of receivables and the carrying values of bank
deposits and trade and other pavables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values due to
their short-term maturities,
5 Critical acecounting estimates and judgements

“The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with HEFRSs requires the use of certain
eritical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applving the Company’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reazonable under the
circumstances.

-9 -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HiEEEEEHIAE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements {(Continued)

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
pstimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carryving amounts of assets and
lighilities within the next year are discussed below.

(a) Long-term incentive schemes valuation

The value of awards granted is estimated based on valuation technigues and assumptions on unit
prices, outstanding length of the awards, distribution pay-out rates and other market conditions,
which management considers as representing the best estimate of the value of the liability for such
awards at the reporting date. The carrying value of the long-term incentive schemes awards is
reviewed every six months and is independently valued by external valuers at least annually.

G Management fee income
2021 2020
HKS HEsS
Management fee income 504,266,818 to7,278,232
- Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
2021 2020
HKs HE%
Wages and salaries 461,180,442 639,907,107
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme 9,045,597 14,134,391
Long-term incentive schemes awards (Mote 13) 13,321,272 25,489,997
Staff costs (Note o) 48354730 679,538,495
2021 2020
HES$ HKS
Fees 0,516,117 8. 863,100
Base pay, allowance and other bensfits 17,668,137 13,621,073
Comtribution to pension scheme 46,000 40,049
Varfable remuneration related to performance 25,606,000 55,204,910
Long-term incentive schemes awards (Note) 8,921,749 12,333.917

61,758,003 90,142,449
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FRAEEEAmAE

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
= Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) (Continued)

Mote: Values of the long-term incentive schemes awards are estimated bazed on valuation
technigues with assumptions on unit prices, outstanding length of the awards, distribution
pay-out rates and other market conditions. There is no commitment to pay oul the
estimated values provided, The eventual amounts to be paid depend on the scale of
achievernent against cerlain performance and serviee related vesting conditions. For the
portion of the awards which do not vest on the vesting dates, the amounts previously
charged to the income statement will be written back, Details on the long-term ineentive
sehemes are set out in Note 13,

The amaunts recognised as expenses represent the provision of the awards granted under
the 2o17 LTI Scheme recognised as set out in the accounting pelicy Note 301,

8 Taxation credit

Ko Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as there i no estimated assessable profit for the
vear [zozo: Nil).

The differences between the Company's expected tax charge, using the Hong Kong profits tax rale,
and the Company's taxation for the vear were as follows:

2021 2020
HES HES
Profit before taxation 1,849,891 6,216,541
Expected tax calculated at the Hong Kong profits tax rate of
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) 305,232 1,025,729
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses % 8,745
Tax effect of non-taxable income {305,232) (1,034,474}
Adjustment to prior vear . (52,999)
Taxation credit * (52,099)
] Profit for the vear
Profit for the vear i stated after changing:
2021 2020
HES HES
Staff costs (Nate 7) 483,547,311 679,531,495
Auditor's remuncration
Audit and andit-related assurance services [ 1,864,952 1,820,754
Others a5 240 2HE000
Total auditor's remuneration 1,880,602 2,111,754

-4 -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

SEEETEYRAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments, at cost
Unlisted shares

The Company held the following subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021

MName
Dirgctly held:
Link Property

Management Services
Limited

LRk
FE 28

Flace of

establishment

and kind of legal ~ Principal
entity aclivities
Hong Kang, Property
Hmited liability managsment
COmpany

Peaple's Republic of  Corporate

Ching, limited liabiliny -management
company services

Balances with group companies/Link
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2021 2020
HES HES
6,602,500 6,602,500
Particulars of
issued share
eapital/
registered Interest
capital held
HES1,000,000 100 %
RMB35, 000,000 100%

The balances with group companies/Link are mainly management fee receivables, Amounts due
from/to group companies and amount due from Link were unsecured, interest free, repayable on
demand and denominated in Hong Kong Dallars.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank

Short-term bank deposits with original maturity of less

than three months

2021 2020

HE$ HES
10,172,553 21,733,462
215,000,000 360,000,000
234,172,553 381,733,462

‘The carrying amounts of cash and eash equivalents are expected to be recovered within 1 year,

_25_
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
AREETEARLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Long-term incentive schemes provision

2021 2020
HKS HES
Long-term incentive schemes provizion
- expected to be settled within 1 vear 34,332,475 81,045,194
- expected to be settled after 1 vear 45,850,740 55.473.000

80,189,004 136,518,104

2017 LTT Scheme

On 10 July 2017, Link adopted a new long-term incentive scheme (the "2017 LTI Scheme”). Under
the zo17 LTI Scheme, restricted unit awards and conditional cash awards may be granted to
directors of the Company and key emplovess of the group.

During the year, certain directors and key emplovees of the Company were granted restricted unit
awards and conditional cash awards at nil monetary consideration under the 2017 LTI Scheme. The
restricted unit awards granted under the 2017 LTI Scheme, in general, will vest approximately two
to three years from the date of grant, Under the 2017 LTI Scheme, Unitz will he porchased in the
grantees” favour from open stock market to satisfy restricted units awards vested, For those
restricted unit awards granted with performance goals, the eventual numbers of Units to be
purchased in each grantee's favour upon vesting are linked te the performance of Link based on the
total Unitholders retumn, net property income or certain vesting condilions, Conditional eash
awards were also granted in conjunction with the restricted unit awards, bestowing upen cach
grantee a conditional right to receive a cash payment representing an amount equivalent to the
aggregate of the distributions during the vesting perind, catch-up adjustments and ex-gratin
payments pursuant to the 2017 LTI Scheme, if applicable,

During the year, 502,126 units (2020: 366,239 units) purchased from the market for restricted units
awards which have vested in accordance with the 2017 LTI Scheme.

During the vesting period, s liability is recognized representing the estimated value of the awards
granted under both the 2017 LTT Scheme and the portion of the vesting period expired as at the
reporting date. The value of the swards was estimated al the reporting date by Towers Watson Hong
Kong Limited, an independent external valuer based on valuation techniques and assumptions on
wnit prices, outstanding length of the awards, distdbution pay-out rates and other market
conditions, if appropriate. The change invalue of the outstanding awards was charged to the income
stalement, In the event that the vesting conditions are not met, the amount previously accrued will
e written back accordingly.

= 9y =
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HREETEAMRLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Long-term incentive schemes provision (Continued)

Movements in the number of restricted unit award during the year and the maximum number of
units to be vested upon vesting of restricted unit award are as follows:

Transferred iy Manimum
Ghetilandimg  Link Peopariy Graadnl Woxiod  Canceiled Lapsed  Duramnding o be vested
Tage of  Verilng a8l Binnagrement daring durieg haring during Al uRTEPERE
Erant pefied vApril soze Berdoed Limited theyear  tha yearin et yEar aheyear 310 arch ross dater=
@y LT Babamia
i Jully L July sy
1017 o 3o Jise
BOND 08511 Ll TR S L ] Cr.owe) el s ]
aduly A duly Bl
aomf W He June -
) i (nz00) = famzsed (bgoa)  (resnad) f .
LE ]
W 30 Jame
Lo 4401 {740} * T = (m0,3p0) 415,38 Lol o
8y sy g
() i 30 Juss
F0EN 496,68y [LTR ] - - - ngouA) Abh 3Ty Loge why
3 Judy woay
i 30 June
et a9t 08 (uia9a) . - - (oK) shbama  1omuEbs
a5 My i Judy 3030
RO20 W 3o June
BoFL . s TeRIEe - " LEIE L] TR an TE xEE
e duly pown
[P T =
s . . RS0 -  (3LeTe) b E FhRg
Hubtotal pRL s (anian)  asoBren  (3ERaRE)  (oges) (GiBase) LBRLA2H gstogER
Adeilosall mritn vmind
ovar 105% of pritrizied
il award pranted - 3 * (meay . . - -
Todd bl okl RS PR EazSau) hEsETae (ELERF ] 35y (518,55) ARLEIA g0 pEN
R RO0 10T PR ¥ AT [LIRE o) ] [7.o00} LERT 5] AL 881450
Notes:
m Restricted unit award vesting percentages during the year ranged from 0% to 200%.
15 If eertain vesting conditions are met,

1) Additional units over 200% of the restricted unit award granted were vested pursuant to
the relevant vesting conditions.
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
ST AT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14 Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidinry

2021 2020
HE3$ HES
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiany 10,000,000 13, 00, OO0

On 27 March 2009, an agreement In respect of a revolving subordinated loan facility of HE$10
million from a fellow subsidiary was signed among the Company, the fellow subsidiary and The
Securities and Fulures Commission and the availability of the facility kad been extended to 26
;-Iarch 2023, As at 31 March 2021, HES10 million (2020: HES 10 million) was drawdown from the
acility.

The approved subordinated loan from the fellow subsidiary is unsecured, interest free, repayable
on demand after two years from the drawdown date and denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

The carrying amount of the approved subordinated loan from the fellow subsidiary approximates
its fair value,

15 Share capital

Kumber of
shares HEKs
Issued and fully paid:
At 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 22,000,000 22 000,000
At 1 April 2019 12,000,000 12,000,000
Izsuance on 9 April 2010 10,000,000 10,000,000
At 31 March 2ozo 22,000,000 22,000,000
16 Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities
2021 2020
HE$ HES
Profit before taxation 1,840,801 B, 216,541
Interest income (1,849,851) (6,269,540)
Decrease in receivables, deposits and prepayments 1,580,765 7.545
{Increase)/decrease in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries (41,415,842) 208,073, 646
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from Link (9,208,035) 1,227,486
Decrease in trade and other payables (45.956,212) (55.667,108)
{Decrcase)fincrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries {1,252,035) Bo7, 301
Deereaze in long-term incentive schemes provision {56,334,970) (63,754.224)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (zatqarz)  (18,716.847)
et cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (149,790,501) 66,420,700

-8B

377/437



17

19

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LINE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NPT SR AT ]

NOTES TO TIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Related party transactions

During the year, the Company underiook the follewing Lransactions with related parties at mutually
agreed rates in the normal course of its business:

2021 2020
HE$ HES
Managemen) fee income {Note 6) from:
Link 15,600,624 0,265,620
Fellow subsidiaries 480,265,104 688 oz 61z

The management fee ineome is subject to the terms agreed by the parties involved, which is based
on reimbursement of the actual eosts incurred by the Company,

Ultimate holding entity
The divectors regard Link as being the ultimate holding entity.
Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company on 17 June 2oz
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(1,554.6)
HSBC (14.9)
)
(3-6)
(0.4)
(0.3)
HSBC 35.3
HSBC )
16.5
(51.0)
(13.7)
The Hong Kong (0.02)
Institute of Directors Limited
HKloD
Aedas (1.1)
Limited
Aedas (6.3)
Beijing Limited
8.5
Dah Sing Bank Limited )
)
2.2)
(0.3)
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DBS 0.1
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
DBS HK (0.6)
0.2)
The Hong Kong (0.02)
Management Association
HKMA
0.006 0.015
150,000
ATM
2020 21 HK1oD
HKIoD 2020 21
2021 HKMA
2021
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Lok Fu Place 2021
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30
23
2.7
Temple Mall 2021
South G3C
1.4
Tin 2021 11 30
Shing Shopping
Centre L120
3.5
Hang 121A 2021
Seng Bank, Limited
3.5
G202 2022 10 31
HSBC 5.2
L201 L206 | 2022 21
1.3
Temple Mall 2021 31
North N119
1.0 0.3
Hin 2020 12 12
Keng Shopping 2023
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HSBC HSBC
HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited HSBC
HSBC Bank Australia Limited HSBC HSBC Bank plc)
DBS HK
32 HSBC
HSBC
i 2016 15 2021 31
12
il 2019 120 2021 31
HSBC 10
DBS HK 10
HSBC
2021 31 HSBC 60
2021 31 HSBC 17
MTN HSBC
1,010 2025 400
2038 2020 2020 10 27

HSBC
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MTN
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HSBC
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iii HSBC 2005 11 14
HSBC
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information
Practice Note 740 Auditor’ s Letter on

Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

unqualified letter

HSBC DBS HK
HSBC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF LINK REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST

(a collective investment scheme authorised under section 104 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong))

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Link Real Estate Investment Trust (“Link”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages [99] to [158], which comprise:
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021,
the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of distributions for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and net assets attributable to Unitholders for
the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

422/437



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. The key audit matter identified in our audit relates to the valuation of investment
properties.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
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Valuation of Investment Properties

Refer to notes 3(d), 5(a) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Group’s investment properties are
the key component of the net asset value
attributable to the unitholders and
underpins the Group’s result for the year.
The valuation of investment properties in
the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2021 was
HK$199,074 million and the fair value
loss of investment properties in the
consolidated income statement for the
year was HK$5,276 million, which were
significant components of the
consolidated financial statements. As at
31 March 2021, the Group’s investment
properties portfolio comprises retail and
office properties and car parks in Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Australia and the
United Kingdom.

The valuations were carried out by a third
party valuer (the “Valuer”). Under the
Code on Real Estate Investment Trusts
issued by the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission (the “REIT Code”),
the Valuer shall retire after it has
conducted valuations for three
consecutive years, and may only be
reappointed after three years. The current
Valuer was first appointed for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and engaged by
the Trustee of Link.

The valuation of the Group’s completed
investment properties is inherently
subjective due to, among other factors,
the individual nature of each property, its
location and the expected future rentals
for that particular property.

In determining a property’s valuation as at
31 March 2021, the Valuer took into
account property-specific information
such as tenancy agreements, rental
income and direct property expenses.
The income capitalisation approach was

Management’s controls and processes

We understood management’s controls
and processes to assess the valuation of
the investment properties and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty, the judgement involved in
determining assumptions to be applied
and susceptibility to management bias or
fraud.

We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls over the
valuation of the investment properties.

Experience of Valuer and relevance of
their work

We assessed the Valuer's qualifications
and their expertise and read their terms of
engagement with the Group to determine
whether there were any matters that
might have affected their objectivity or
may have imposed scope limitations
upon their work. We found no evidence to
suggest that the objectivity of the Valuer
in their performance of the valuations was
compromised.

We read the Valuer's report and
understand that the valuation was carried
out in accordance with the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors’ RICS
Valuation — Global Standards,
incorporating the International Valuation
Standards Council’s International
Valuation Standards, and with reference
to the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors’
HKIS Valuation Standards and Chapter 6
of the REIT Code.

Valuation methodology used by the
Valuer

We involved our property valuation
experts to assess and evaluate the
reasonableness of the valuation
methodologies and models used by the
Valuer by comparing against our
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used, with cross reference to the direct
comparison approach where applicable.
The Valuer applied assumptions for
capitalisation rates and reversionary net
passing income, which were influenced
by the prevailing market yields and
comparable market transactions to arrive
at the final valuation.

Judgements are made in respect of
capitalisation rates and market rents.

The adoption of income capitalisation
approach is in line with market practice of
property valuation and is compliant with
the Trust Deed.

There were a number of specific factors
affecting the valuations in the year which
we considered when making our
judgements:

revitalisation of certain investment
properties through the Group’s Asset
Enhancement Program; and

the performance of the Group’s
investment property portfolio.

We focused on the valuation of
investment properties due to the
significant judgements and estimates
involved in determining the valuations.
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knowledge in valuation and the properties
industry.

Data used by the Valuer

We checked, on a sample basis, the data
used by the Valuer to perform the
valuation to appropriate supporting
documents, including:

key terms of lease agreements;
operating expenditure details; and
rental income schedules.

Assumptions and estimates used by the
Valuer

We, including our valuation experts,
attended meetings with the Valuer where
the valuation approach and the key
assumptions were discussed. The
assumptions used varied across the
portfolio depending on the age, nature
and location of each property but they
included estimated capitalisation rate and
net passing income. In each of these
areas, and on a sample basis, we
compared the estimates and assumptions
used by the Valuer against the published
industry benchmarks and comparable
market transactions, and our experience
in the sector.

We performed further work on the
properties where assumptions suggested
possible outliers in comparison to market
data. Where assumptions were outside
the expected range or were otherwise
unusual, and/or valuations showed
unexpected movements, we held further
discussions with the Valuer to understand
the rationale and obtained additional audit
evidence to support the explanations
received.

Overall, we considered that the
methodologies used in preparing the
valuation were appropriate and key
assumptions were supportable in light of

425/437



EDINETO OO
OOooooooooooooooooonoOn(els19s)
Ooooooooooooooooogno

available and comparable market

evidence.

We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures related to the valuation of
investment properties in the context of
HKFRS disclosure requirements and
were satisfied that appropriate disclosure
has been made.

Other Information
Link Asset Management Limited (the “Manager” of Link) is responsible for the other information.

The other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Audit and Risk Management Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Manager is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such
internal control as the Manager determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Manager is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

In addition, the Manager is required to ensure that the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the First Amending and
Restating Deed dated 8 February 2021 (the “Trust Deed”), and the relevant disclosure
provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements. In addition, we are required to assess whether the consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure provisions of
Appendix C of the REIT Code.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Manager.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the

entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk Management Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Matters Under the Relevant Provisions of the Trust Deed and the Relevant
Disclosure Provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant
disclosure provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Wong

Hung Nam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

Thefinancial statements of Link Asset Management Limited (the “ Company”) standing alone set out on pages 12 to 29, which
comprise;

the statement of financial position asat 31 March 2021,

the income statement for the year then ended;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company standing alone as at
31 March 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") and with reference to Practice Note
820 (Revised), “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company Standing Alone section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Directors Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’ s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements of the Company Standing Alone

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financia statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’ s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no redlistic aternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financia statements are in accordance with the records kept under the

Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements of the Company Standing Alone

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as abody, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a materia misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materid if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of userstaken on the
basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules
and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSASs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
abasisfor our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control;

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ahility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financia statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’
s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements Standing Alone (Continued)

We communicate with directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures

(Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit)
Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 June 2021
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